
 

 

 
 

 
Date: 6th September, 2024  
 
To,  
The Manager,  
Department of Corporate Services   
BSE Limited  
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street,  
Mumbai- 400001  
Scrip Code: 533482 

The Manager,  
Listing Compliance  
National Stock Exchange of India Ltd.  
Exchange Plaza, C-1, Block G, Bandra 
Kurla Complex,  
Bandra (E), Mumbai – 400 051  
Symbol: KRIDHANINF 

 
 
Dear Sir/Madam,  
Ref.: Company Code: BSE – 533482, NSE Symbol: KRIDHANINF 
 
Sub: Submission of Annual Report for the financial year 2023-24 
 
In pursuance of Regulation 34 of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to 
time, please find enclosed herewith the Annual Report of the Company for the financial 
year 2023-24 containing inter-alia the Notice convening the 18th Annual General Meeting 
to be held on Monday, September 30, 2024 through physical mode, Board’s Report with 
the relevant annexures, Management Discussion and Analysis Report, Audited 
Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements, Auditors’ Report, etc. for the financial 
year 2023-24. 
 
Thanking You.  
Yours sincerely, 
 
For Kridhan Infra Limited, 
 
 
 
___________________ 
Gautam Joginderlal Suri  
Managing Director 
DIN No.: 08180233 
 
Place: Mumbai 
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NOTICE is hereby given that the 18th Annual General Meeting of KRIDHAN INFRA LIMITED will 

be held on Monday, September 30, 2024 at 9:30 a.m. at Office No 421-422, C wing, 4th floor, 215 

Atrium,Next to Courtyard Mariott, Andheri Kurla Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai – 400 059., to transact 

the following business:  

 

 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Standalone and Consolidated Audited Financial Statement of the 

Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, together with the Reports of the Board of 

Directors and Auditors thereon. 

 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Anil Dhanpat Agrawal  (DIN: 00360114), who retires by 

rotation pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and who is not 

disqualified to become Director under the Act and being eligible, offers himself for reappointment. 

 

 

 

By Order of the Board of Directors, 

For Kridhan Infra Limited, 

 

 

  Sd/- 

Hemant Agarwal 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

ACS: 50464 

 

Date: August 14, 2024  

Place: Mumbai 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 
 

 

 

Notes: 

 

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS 

ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF 

HIMSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER. Proxies, in order to be 

effective, must be deposited at the Registered Office of the company not less than 48 

hours before the commencement of the meeting. A blank proxy form is enclosed 

herewith. Members are requested to note that a person can act as a proxy on behalf of 

Members not exceeding 50 (fifty) and holding in the aggregate not more than 10 % (ten 

percent) of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. In case a proxy 

is proposed to be appointed by a member holding more than 10 % (ten percent) of the 

total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights, then such proxy shall not act 

as a proxy for any other person or Members. 

2. Corporate Members intending to send their Authorized Representatives to attend the 

meeting are requested to send a Certified True Copy of the Board Resolution 

authorizing their Representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting. 

3. Members, Proxies and Authorized Representatives are requested to bring the duly 

completed Attendance Slip enclosed herewith, to attend the AGM 

4. As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, securities of listed 

Companies can be transferred only in dematerialized form with effect from April 1, 

2022. In view of this and to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and for 

ease of portfolio management, members holding shares in physical form are requested 

to consider converting their holdings to dematerialized form. Members can contact the 

Company or Company’s Registrars and Transfer Agents for assistance in this regard. 

5. Members who still hold share certificates in physical form are advised to dematerialize 

their shareholding to avail the benefits of dematerialization, which include easy 

liquidity, since trading is permitted in dematerialized form only, electronic transfer, 

savings in stamp duty and elimination of any possibility of loss of documents and bad 

deliveries. 

6. As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act, the facility for making nomination is 

available for the Members in respect of the shares held by them. Members who have not 

yet registered their nomination are requested to register the same by submitting Form 

No. SH-13. Members are requested to submit the said form to their DP in case the 

shares are held in electronic form and to RTA in case the shares are held in physical 

form. 

7. The notice of AGM is being sent to those members/beneficial owners whose name will 

appear in the register of members/list of beneficiaries received from the depositories as 

on Friday, August 30, 2024. 

8. The copy of Annual Report, Notice of 18th Annual General Meeting, notice of e-Voting 

etc. are being sent to the members through e-mail who have registered their e-mail ids 

with the Company/ Depository Participant (DPs)/ Company’s Registrar and Transfer 

Agent (RTA). Members are requested to update their preferred e-mail ids with the 

Company/ Depository Participant (DPs)/ Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agent 

(RTA), which will be used for the purpose of future communications. 

9. Members whose e-mail ids are registered with the Company and who wish to receive 

printed copy of the Annual Report may send their request to the Company for the same 

at its registered office before the Annual General Meeting. 



 
 

 
 

10. All the documents referred to in the Notice, Annual Report and Register of Director’s 

Shareholding are open for inspection, during the business hours, at the Registered Office 

of the Company up to and including the date of Annual General Meeting. 

11. The Register of Members and Share Transfer books of the Company shall remain closed 

during the Book Closure period i.e. Saturday, September 21, 2024, to Monday, 

September 30, 2024, both days inclusive. 

12. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of 

Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members 

holding shares in electronic form are therefore, requested to submit the PAN to their 

Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members 

holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN details to the Company. 

13. The Members holding shares in the same name of same order of names under different 

folios are requested to send the share certificates for consolidation of such shares to the 

Company 

14. Shareholder seeking any information with regard to the accounts is requested to write to 

the Company at an early date but not later than 10 days before the scheduled date of 

holding of Annual General Meeting. 

15. In case of joint holders attending the meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the 

order of names will be entitled to vote. 

16. To support the ‘Green Initiative’, Members who have not yet registered their email 

addresses are requested to register the same with their Depository Participants (“DPs”) 

in case the shares are held by them in electronic form and with RTA in case the shares 

are held by them in physical form. With a view to serving the Members better and for 

administrative convenience, an attempt would be made to consolidate multiple folios. 

Members who hold shares in identical names and in the same order of names in more 

than one folio are requested to write to the Company to consolidate their holdings in one 

folio. 

17. The notice of the 18th Annual General Meeting and Annual Report for the Financial Year 

2023-24 of the Company is also been uploaded on the website of the Company i.e., 

www.kridhan.com. 

18. E-voting :  

In compliance with the provisions of section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 

of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as substituted by the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 and Regulation 

44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (SEBI 

(LODR) Regulations, 2015), the Company is pleased to provide its members the facility 

to exercise their right to vote on resolutions proposed to be considered at the 18th 

Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means and the business may be 

transacted through e-voting services. The facility of casting the votes by the members 

using an electronic voting system from a place other than venue of the AGM (“remote e-

voting”) will be provided by Central Depository Services Limited (CDSL). The 

Members may cast their votes using an electronic voting system from a place other than 

the venue of the Meeting (“remote e-Voting”).  

 

The Company has appointed Mr. Rinkesh Gala, proprietor of M\s. Rinkesh Gala & 

Associates, Company Secretaries as Scrutinizer for conducting the e-voting process in a 

fair and transparent manner. 

 

http://www.kridhan.com/


 
 

 
 

19. In terms of provisions of Section 107 of the Companies Act, 2013, since the Company is 

providing the facility of remote e-Voting to the shareholders, there shall be no voting by 

show of hands at the AGM. The facility for ballot / polling paper shall be made available 

at the Meeting and the Members attending the Meeting who have not cast their vote by 

remote e-Voting shall be able to vote at the Meeting through ballot / polling paper. 

20. The Shareholders can opt for only one mode of voting i.e. remote e-Voting or physical 

polling at the meeting. In case of voting by both the modes, vote casted through remote 

e-Voting will be considered final and voting through physical ballot will not be 

considered. The members who have cast their vote by remote e-Voting may also attend 

the Meeting. 

21. Route Map showing directions to reach to Venue of Meeting is provided in this Report. 

 

VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS AND ATTENDING THE AGM  

 

In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Act read with Rules made there under and 

Regulation 44 of the Listing Regulations, the Company is offering evoting facility to all Members of the 

Company. A person, whose name is recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of Beneficial 

Owners (in case of electronic shareholding) maintained by the Depositories as on the cut-off date i.e. 

Friday, September 20, 2024, only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e voting/ evoting at the 

AGM. CDSL will be facilitating remote evoting to enable the Members to cast their votes electronically. 

Members can cast their vote online from 9.00 A.M. (IST) on Friday, September 27, 2024 to 5.00 P.M. 

(IST) on Sunday, September 29, 2024. At the end of remote e-voting period, the facility shall forthwith be 

blocked. 

 

THE INTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER: 

 

I. The voting period begins on 9.00 A.M. (IST) on Wednesday, September 27, 2024 to 5.00 P.M. 

(IST) on Sunday, September 29, 2024. During this period shareholders’ of the Company, holding 

shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of 

Friday, September 20, 2024, may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be 

disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. 

 

II. Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the 

meeting venue. 

 

III. Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under 

Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility to 

its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. However, it has been observed that the 

participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible level.  

 

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed 

entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user 

IDs and passwords by the shareholders.  

 

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has 

been decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login 

credential, through their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. 

Demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without having to register again with the 



 
 

 
 

ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and 

convenience of participating in e-voting process.  

 

IV. In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e-

Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat 

mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository 

Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat 

accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 

Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding 

securities in Demat mode is given below: 

 

Type of 

shareholders 

 Login Method 

Individual 

Shareholders 

holding 

securities in 

Demat mode 

with CDSL 

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their 

existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page 

without any further authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit  www.cdslindia.com and click 

on Login icon and select New System Myeasi. 

 

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option 

for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the information 

provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-

Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the remote 

e-Voting period. Additionally, there is also links provided to access the system of all 

e-Voting Service Providers i.e. CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user 

can visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly. 

 

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration 

 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account 

Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home 

page. The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & 

Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be 

able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to 

directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers. 

 

Individual 

Shareholders 

holding 

securities in 

demat mode 

with NSDL 

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services 

website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the 

home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under 

“Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen will open. You will 

have to enter your User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be 

able to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services 

and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting 

service provider name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider 

website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period. 

2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login
http://www.cdslindia.com/
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration
http://www.cdslindia.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/


 
 

 
 

https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click   at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 

URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which 

is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will 

have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with 

NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After 

successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein 

you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider 

name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your 

vote during the remote e-Voting period. 

Individual 

Shareholders 

(holding 

securities in 

demat mode) 

login through 

their 

Depository 

Participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your 

Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.  After 

Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting 

option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 

authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-

Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider 

website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period. 

  

 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget 

User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues 

related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL 

     

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in Demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 

contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor contact at toll 

free no. 1800 22 55 33. 

  

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in Demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 

contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at 

evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 

1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30   

 

(i) Login method for e-Voting for shareholders other than individual shareholders holding in 

Demat form & physical shareholders. 

 

1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com. 

 

2) Click on “Shareholders” module. 

 

3) Now enter your User ID  

https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
http://www.evotingindia.com/


 
 

 
 

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,  

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,  

c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with 

the Company. 

 

4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 

 

5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted 

on an earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.  

 

6) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below: 

 For Shareholders holding shares in Demat Form other than individual and 

Physical Form 

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department 

(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders) 

 Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the 

Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the sequence 

number sent by Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA. 

Dividend 

Bank 

Details 

 OR Date 

of Birth 

(DOB) 

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as 

recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order to login. 

 If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, 

please enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details 

field as mentioned in instruction (3). 

 

(ii) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab. 

 

(iii) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection 

screen. However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ 

menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password 

field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for 

resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts 

for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with 

any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential. 

 

(iv) For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the 

resolutions contained in this Notice. 

 

(v) Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company Name> on which you choose to vote. 

 

(vi) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the 

option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies 

that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution. 

 

(vii) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details. 

 

http://www.evotingindia.com/


 
 

 
 

(viii) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation 

box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, 

click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote. 

 

(ix) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

 

(x) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the 

Voting page. 

 

(xi) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image 

verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system. 

 

(xii) Facility for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians –Remote Voting 

 

 Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are 

required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates” module. 

 A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be 

emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

 After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and 

password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote 

on. 

 The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and 

on approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.  

 A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in 

favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the 

scrutinizer to verify the same. 

 Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/ 

Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory 

who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz; 

cs@kridhan.com (designated email address by company), if they have voted from individual tab 

& not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 

 

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT 

REGISTERED WITH THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES. 

 

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of 

shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned 

copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to 

Company/RTA email id. 

 

2. For Demat shareholders -, please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective 

Depository Participant (DP)  

 

3. For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile no. with your 

respective Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting. 

 

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, 

you can write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- toll free no. 1800 22 55 33. 

http://www.evotingindia.com/
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
mailto:cs@kridhan.com
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com


 
 

 
 

 

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh 

Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon 

Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an 

email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call on toll free no. 1800 22 55 33. 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

(i) It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to 

keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful 

attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the ‘Forgot User 

Details/Password?’ or ‘Physical User Reset Password?’ option available to reset the password. 

(ii) The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed Mr. Rinkesh Gala, proprietor of M/s. Rinkesh 

Gala & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries (Membership No. A42486 & CP No.-20128), to act 

as the Scrutiniser, to scrutinise the entire e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner. The 

Members desiring to vote through remote e-voting are requested to refer to the detailed procedure given 

above. 

(iii) The Scrutiniser will submit her report to the Chairman or to any other person authorised by the 

Chairman after the completion of the scrutiny of the e-voting (votes cast during the AGM and votes cast 

through remote e- voting) not later than 48 hours from the conclusion of AGM. 

(iv) The results of the electronic voting shall be declared to the Stock Exchanges where shares of the 

Company are listed after the conclusion of AGM. The results along with the Scrutiniser’s Report, shall 

also be placed on the website of the Company https://www.kridhan.com/  . 

All the documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and Explanatory Statement shall be available 

for inspection through electronic mode, basis the request being sent on cs@kridhan.com.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
https://www.kridhan.com/
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DETAILS OF DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT/RE-APPOINTMENT AT THE FORTH 

COMING ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING  

 

Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015 and Secretarial Standards-2 on General Meetings] 

 

Name of Director Anil Dhanpat Agrawal 

Date of Birth 20/01/1976 

Date of First Appointment 21/03/2006 

Qualification B.COM & Master in Management Studies. 

Expertise in specific functional areas He holds a bachelor’s degree in commerce from 

Mumbai University. He has completed a diploma 

course in Master of Management Studies. 

Terms and conditions of appointment or re-

appointment 

Re-appointment of Mr. Anil Dhanpat Agrawal, 

whose term shall be liable to retire by rotation. 

Directorships in other listed entities as on March 

31, 2024 

Nil 

Membership of any Committees of other listed 

entities as on March 31, 2024 

Nil 

Name of Listed entities from which the person has 

resigned in the past three years 

Nil 

No of Equity Shares held in the Company 2,62,60,160 

Relationship between directors inter-se Not related 

 

  



 
 

 
 

 

ROAD MAP TO THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING VENUE: 

Office No 421-422, C wing, 4th floor, 215 Atrium, Next to Courtyard Mariott Andheri Kurla 

    Road,Andheri (East), Mumbai – 400 059. 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 
 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

To  
The Members, 
 
Your directors are pleased to present the 18th Annual Report of Kridhan Infra Limited (“the Company”) 
together with the audited financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY AND HIGHLIGHTS: 

(Rs. In lakhs) 

 STANDALONE CONSOLIDATED 

Particulars  F.Y.2023-24 
(INR in Lakhs) 

F.Y.2022-23 
(INR in Lakhs) 

F.Y.2023-24 
(INR in 
Lakhs) 

F.Y.2022-23 
(INR in 
Lakhs) 

Revenue from operation  84.50 344.67 84.50 562.20 

Other Income  89.58 74.91 89.73 87.38 

Profit/Loss before Depreciation, 
Finance Cost and Tax Expense 

(2456.01) (4943.48) (2465.79) (5452.04) 

Less: Depreciation and 
Amortization Expenses 

37.92 54.07 39.40 57.41 

Profit/Loss before Finance Cost 
and Tax Expense 

(2493.93) (4997.55) (2505.19) (5509.45) 

Less: Finance Costs 7.35 2.72 7.35 2.92 
Profit/Loss before Tax Expense (2501.28) (5000.27) (2512.54) (5512.37) 
Less: Tax Expense (Current & 
Deferred) 

(1.83) 27.28 (1.83) 38.03 

Profit/Loss after Tax (2499.46) (5027.54) (2510.72) (5550.40) 
Add: Other Comprehensive 
Income/loss for the year 

- - - - 

Total Comprehensive Income (2499.46) (5027.54) (2510.72) (5550.40) 
 

STATE OF THE COMPANY’S AFFAIRS: 

During the year under review, the Company has earned on a standalone basis the total income for the 
Financial Year ended March 31, 2024 stood at Rs. 1,74,08,391/- as against an income of Rs. 4,19,57,789/- 
for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023. The Company incurred a Profit before tax of Rs. 
(25,01,28,497) /- for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024 as against a Profit before tax of Rs. 
(50,00,26,738) /- for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023. The Company reported a net Profit of Rs. 
(24,99,45,950) /- for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024 as against net profit of Rs. (50,27,54,459) 
/- for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023. 
 
During the year under review, the Company has earned on a consolidated basis the total income for the 
Financial Year ended March 31, 2024 stood at Rs. 1,74,23,191/- as against an income of Rs. 6,49,57,663/- 
for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023. The Company incurred a Profit before tax of Rs. 
(25,12,54,419)/- for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024 as against a Profit before tax of Rs. 
(55,12,37,051)/- for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023. The Company reported a net Profit of Rs. 



 

 

 
 

(25,10,71,872)/- for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024 as against a net Profit of Rs. 
(55,50,39,881)/- for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023.  

Your Directors are hopeful of better performance in the forthcoming year. 

TRANSFER TO RESERVE: 

During the year under review, the Company has not transferred any amount to the General Reserve. 
 
DIVIDEND: 

The Board of Directors of your Company, after considering holistically the relevant circumstances, has 
decided that it would be prudent, not to recommend any Dividend for the year under review and retain the 
profits of the Company for its future growth. 

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION 
FUND: 

Since there was no unpaid/unclaimed Dividend in the books or any Unpaid Dividend declared and paid 
last year, the provisions of Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply to your Company. 

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS: 

There has been no change in the business of the Company during the financial year ending March 31, 
2024. 
 

SUBSIDIARY/ JOINT VENTURE/ ASSOCIATE COMPANY: 

Following are the Subsidiary and Associate Companies considered for the purpose of Consolidated 
Financial Statement: 

Sr no. Name of subsidiary Proportion of ownership interest 
  As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 

 Subsidiary Company:   
1. Kridhan lnfra Solutions Private Limited 100.00% 100.00% 
    
 Associate Company:   
1. Vijay Nirman Company Private Limited 47.47% 47.47% 

 

Further, as informed during the last financial year, the subsidiary of the Company namely Ready Made 
Steel Singapore Pte. Ltd., is under liquidation process and its step down subsidiary KH Foges Pte. Ltd. is 
under scheme of arrangement (Resolution). Hence, the financial numbers for the year ended 31st March, 
2024 are not available. The Company has, already impaired its investments and loans outstanding in the 
overseas subsidiary Readymade Steel Singapore Pte. Ltd., in its standalone financials. In view of the 
same, there will be no material impact of the said liquidation on the financials of the Company. 

Consequently, the consolidated figures for the year ended March 31, 2023 consists of one subsidiary viz. 
Kridhan Infra Solutions Private Ltd. And one associate Company viz. Vijay Nirman Company Private 
Limited. 

As required pursuant to first proviso to sub section (3) of section 129 read with Rule 5 of Companies 
(Accounts)Rules, 2014, Form AOC-1 forms part of this report, appended as Annexure A. 



 

 

 
 

Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section 136 of the Act, the financial statements of the Company 
including consolidated financial statements along with relevant documents and separate audited financial 
statement in respect of subsidiary, are available on the website of the Company at www.kridhan.com 

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL 
POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE 
FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT: 

There are no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the Company, which 
has occurred between the end of the financial year for the Company i.e. March 31, 2024, and the date of 
this Board’s Report i.e., August 14, 2024. 

SHARE CAPITAL: 

The paid up Equity Share Capital as at March 31, 2024 stood at 1895.58 Lakhs. During the year under 
review, the Company has not issued shares or convertible securities or shares with differential voting 
rights nor has granted any stock options or sweat equity or warrants. As on March 31, 2024, none of the 
Directors of the Company hold instruments convertible into Equity Shares of the Company. 

ANNUAL RETURN: 

Pursuant to Section 92(3) and Section 134(3) (a) of the Act, read with Rule 12(1) of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the extract of Annual Return has been uploaded on the 
Company’s website on https://www.kridhan.com/ . 

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 

The Board of the Company is duly constituted in accordance with the requirements of the Act read with 
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”). 

A) Directors: 
 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Company’s 
Articles of Association, Mr. Anil Dhanpat Agrawal (Din: 00360114) is liable to retire by rotation 
at the forthcoming AGM and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment. 
 
The Board recommends the re-appointment of Mr. Anil Dhanpat Agrawal for the consideration of 
the Members of the Company at the forthcoming AGM. The relevant details, including profile of 
Mr. Anil Dhanpat Agrawal is included separately in the Notice of AGM. 
 
During the year under review, Mr. Mahesh Garg, tendered his resignation as a Director of the 
Company due to personal reasons with effect from March 7, 2024 and Mr. Abhijit Vidyanand 
Ranade, ceased to Independent Director of the Company as his first term of 2 (two) consecutive 
years has completed on March 31, 2024. 
 
During the year under review, Mr. Gautam Joginderlal Suri (DIN: 08180233) has been re-
designated as Managing Director of the Company at its Board meeting held on February 13, 
2024, to hold office for a term of 5 (Five) years effective from February 13, 2024 to February 13, 
2029. His appointment was approved by the shareholders through postal ballot dated April 25, 
2024.  
 



 

 

 
 

During the year under review, on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee, the Board at its meeting held on March 22, 2024, appointed Mrs. Rachna Achal Daga 
(DIN: 09311592), as an Additional Director on the Board of the Company in the category of 
Non-Executive & Independent Director to hold office for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years 
from March 22, 2024 to March 21, 2029. Her appointment is not liable to retire by rotation and 
was approved, and regularised as Independent Director by the shareholders through postal ballot 
dated April 25, 2024.  
 
As on the date of this Report, the Company’s Board comprises of six ((6) Directors viz. 1 Non 
Executive-Non Independent Director, 2 Executive Directors and 3 Non-Executive Independent 
Directors including women Directors. The composition of the Board is in conformity with 
Regulation 17 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and also with the provisions of the Act. 
 

B) Independent Directors: 

All Independent Directors of the Company have given declarations under Section 149(7) of the 
Act that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down under Section 149(6) of the Act and 
Regulation 16(1)(b) and other applicable provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations. In terms of 
Regulation 25(8) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Independent Directors have confirmed that 
they are not aware of any circumstance or situation, which exists or may be reasonably 
anticipated, that could impair or impact their ability to discharge their duties with an objective 
independent judgement and without any external influence. The Independent Directors hold office 
for a fixed term of five years and are not liable to retire by rotation. In the opinion of the Board, 
the Independent Directors, fulfill the conditions of independence specified in Section 149(6) of 
the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) and other applicable provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations. 

The terms and conditions of appointment of the Independent Directors are placed on the website 
of the Company at https://www.kridhan.com/ . 

In compliance with the requirement of SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company has put in place a 
familiarization programme for the independent directors to familiarise them with their role, rights 
and responsibility as directors, the working of the Company, nature of the industry in which the 
Company operates, business model, etc. The details of familiarisation programme are explained 
in the Corporate Governance Report and the same are also available on the website of the 
Company at https://www.kridhan.com/ . 

Mr. Mahesh Garg has resigned from the post of Independent Director on the Board of the 
Company w.e.f. March 07, 2024. 

Mrs. Rachna Achal Daga has been appointed as an Independent Director on the Board of the 
Company w.e.f. March 22, 2024 and has been regularized w.e.f. 25.04.2024. 

C) Key Managerial Personnel: 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 2(51) and 203 of the Act, read with the Rules framed 
thereunder, the following are the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company: 
 
- Mr. Anil Dhanpat Agrawal, Chairman & Non Executive- Non Independent Director 
- Mr. Gautam Joginderlal Suri, Managing Director  
- *Mr. Hemant Agarwal, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
- **Mr. Bhavesh Narendra Nagda, Chie Financial Officer 
 



 

 

 
 

* During the financial year, Mr. Hemant Agarwal was appointed as Company Secretary and 
Compliance Officer of the Company w.e.f. 08.01.2024. 
 
**Mr. Bhavesh Narendra Nagda, was appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the company w.e.f. 
February 13, 2024 and subsequently he resigned from the position of CFO w.e.f. June 12, 2024. 
 

D) Committees of the Board: 

The Company has Three Board Committees as on March 31, 2024: 

1) Audit Committee 

2) Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

3) Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

During the year, all recommendations made by the committees were approved by the Board. 

Details of all the committees along with their main terms, composition and meetings held during 
the year under review are provided in the Report on Corporate Governance, a part of this Annual 
Report. 

E) Nomination and Remuneration Policy: 

The Board of Directors has framed a policy which lays down a framework in relation to 
appointment and remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management, and 
other employees of the Company (“Policy”). The Policy broadly lays down the guiding 
principles, philosophy and the basis for payment of remuneration to Executive and Non-executive 
Directors (by way of sitting fees and commission), Key Managerial Personnel, Senior 
Management and other employees. The Policy also provides the criteria for determining 
qualifications, positive attributes and independence of Director and criteria for appointment of 
Key Managerial Personnel/Senior Management and performance evaluation which are considered 
by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors whilst taking a 
decision on the potential candidates. 

The salient features of the Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company are outlined in 
the Corporate Governance Report which forms part of this Annual Report. The Policy is also 
available on the website of the Company at https://www.kridhan.com/ . 

F) Whistle Blower Policy /Vigil Mechanism: 
 
As per the provisions of Section 177(9) and (10) of the Act and Regulation 22 of the Listing 
Regulations, the Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy for establishing a vigil 
mechanism for Directors and Employees to report genuine concerns about unethical behaviour, 
actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct and provide adequate 
safeguards against victimization of persons who use such mechanism and makes provision for 
direct access to the chairman of the Audit Committee in appropriate or exceptional cases. The 
said policy has been hosted on the Company’s website at https://www.kridhan.com/ . 
 

G)  Performance Evaluation: 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Board has carried out 
the annual performance evaluation of the Directors individually as well as evaluation of the 



 

 

 
 

working of the Board and of the Committees of the Board, by way of individual and collective 
feedback from Directors. The manner in which the evaluation was conducted by the Company 
and evaluation criteria have been explained in the Corporate Governance Report which forms part 
of this Annual Report. 

The Board of Directors has expressed its satisfaction with the evaluation process. 

H) Number of Meetings of the Board: 

During the year under review, the Board of Directors of the Company met seven (07) times i.e. on 
May 30, 2023, August 14, 2023, September 07, 2023, November 11, 2023, January 08, 2024, 
February 13, 2024, March 22, 2024.  

The particulars of attendance of the Directors at the said meetings are detailed in the Corporate 
Governance Report of the Company, which forms a part of this Report.  

The intervening gap between the Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies 
Act, 2013. 

I) Remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management: 

The remuneration paid to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management is in 
accordance with the Nomination and Remuneration Policy formulated in accordance with Section 
178 of the Act and Regulation 19 read with Schedule II of the Listing Regulations. Further details 
on the same are given in the Corporate Governance Report which forms part of this Annual 
Report. 

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(c) read with Section 134(5) of the Act, the Directors of the 
Company state and confirm that: 

a. in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year 2023-24, the applicable accounting 
standards had been followed and there are no material departures from the same. 

b. the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at March 31, 2024 and of the profit and loss of the Company for that period; 

c. the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing 
and detecting fraud and other irregularities. 

d. the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis. 

e. the directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such 
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and 

f. the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws 
and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEE, AND INVESTMENTS: 

The particulars of loans, guarantees and investments as per Section 186 of the Act read with the 
Companies (Meeting of Board and its powers) Rules, 2014 as on March 31, 2024, have been disclosed in 
the Notes to the Financial Statements of the Company. 



 

 

 
 

 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY: 

In line with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under with respect to 
the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), your company is not governed by the provisions of Section 
135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014.  

So, the Company is not required to conduct CSR activities.  

ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 

Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 (3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014 requires disclosure of the particulars regarding conservation of Energy and Technology absorption. 
The Company on continues basis undertakes programs of conserving energy. The details of the same are 
as follows: 

Conservation of Energy 

(i) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy  Not Applicable 

(ii) The steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of 
energy  

(iii) The capital investment on energy conservation equipment’s   

 
Technology absorption: 

(i) The efforts made towards technology absorption   Not Applicable 

(ii) The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, 
product development or import substitution. 

(iii) in case of imported technology (imported during the last three 
years reckoned from the beginning of the financial year) 

The details of technology imported; 
The year of import; 
Whether the technology been fully absorbed; 
If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken 
place, and the reasons thereof;  

(iv) The expenditure incurred on Research and Development  NIL 

 
Foreign Exchange Earnings/ Outgo: 

The details of Foreign Exchange Earnings and outgo are as follows: 

Particulars  For the year ended 31st 
March, 2024 

For the years ended 31st 
March 2023 

Foreign Exchange Earnings Nil Nil 

Foreign Exchange Outgo Nil Nil 
 



 

 

 
 

RISK MANAGEMENT: 

The Audit Committee has been delegated the responsibility for monitoring and reviewing risk 
management, assessment and minimisation procedures, developing, implementing and monitoring the risk 
management plan and identifying, reviewing and mitigating all elements of risks which the Company may 
be exposed to. 

APPLICATION / PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY 
CODE, 2016 (“IBC”): 

During the year under review, no application was made under IBC by or against your Company and no 
proceeding is pending under IBC. 

DISCLOSURE ON ONE TIME SETTLEMENT: 

During the year under review, the Company has entered into one-time settlement with Union Bank of 
India who has issued a sanction advice dated February 20, 2024, for all its outstanding towards the 
Company. 

Further, the Company has made the required payments as per the Sanction letter issued by Union Bank of 
India, for one time settlement (OTS) towards all its outstanding dues. 

In connection with the same, the Union Bank of India has issued settlement certificate and released all the 
attached properties and guarantees. 

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS: 

During the year under review, there are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators/Courts 
that would impact the going concern status of the Company and its future operations. 

AUDITORS: 

A) Statutory Auditors & their Report: 
 
M/s. B.R. Kotecha & Co, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 105283W) was 
appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company in the previous AGM held on September 30, 
2023 for period of five years from the conclusion of 17th AGM of the Company till the conclusion 
of 22nd AGM. 
 
M/s. B.R. Kotecha & Co, Chartered Accountants have submitted their Report on the financial 
statements of the Company for the FY ended March 31, 2024, which forms part of this Report 
with a modified opinion. The comments in the Auditors’ Report read with notes to the accounts 
are self-explanatory. 
 

B) Secretarial Auditor & their Report: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act read with the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company had appointed Mr. Rinkesh 
Gala, proprietor of M/s.  Rinkesh Gala & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries (COP No. 
20128), for conducting Secretarial Audit of the Company for the FY ended on March 31, 2024. 

Secretarial Audit Report issued by Mr. Rinkesh Gala in Form MR-3 forms part to this Report as 
“Annexure- B”. The Secretarial Auditor has qualified the Secretarial Audit Report dated 
September 8, 2023. 



 

 

 
 

The Management ensured to comply with all the provisions are compiled to the fullest extent 

A Secretarial Compliance Report for the FY ended March 31, 2024, on compliance of all 
applicable SEBI regulations and circulars/guidelines issued thereunder, was obtained from Mr. 
Rinkesh Gala, Practicing Company Secretary, and submitted to the stock exchange. 

C) Internal Auditor: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 138 of the Act read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014, the Company has appointed M/s. U. B. Lakhani & Co, Chartered Accountants, as the 
Internal Auditor of the Company. 

The Internal Audit reports are reviewed by the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis. 

D) Reporting of Frauds: 

There was no instance of fraud during the year under review, which required the Auditors to 
report to the Audit Committee and / or Board under Section 143(12) of Act and Rules framed 
thereunder. 

DISCLOSURE UNDER PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT 
WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT: 

The Company has adopted a Sexual Harassment Policy on prevention, prohibition, and redressal of sexual 
harassment at workplace in line with the provisions of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder.  

The aim of the policy is to provide protection to employees at the workplace and prevent and redress 
complaints of sexual harassment and for matters connected or incidental thereto, with the objective of 
providing a safe working environment, where employees feel secure. The Policy is available at the 
Registered Office of the Company and is accessible to all the employees of the Company. The Company 
has not received any complaints during the FY under review. 

PUBLIC DEPOSITS: 

During the year under review, your Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of 
Sections 73 to 76A of the Act read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT: 

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review as required under Regulation 
34 read with Schedule V of the Listing Regulations is annexed to this Report as “Annexure-C”. 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: 

Report on Corporate Governance and Certificate of the Auditor of the Company regarding compliance of 
the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Part C of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, 
are provided in a separate section forming part of this Report as “Annexure D”. 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY: 

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements. 
Internal audits are undertaken on a quarterly basis by Internal Auditors covering all units and business 
operations to independently validate the existing controls. Reports of the Internal Auditors are regularly 
reviewed by the management and corrective action is initiated to strengthen the controls and enhance the 
effectiveness of the existing systems. The Audit Committee evaluates the efficiency and adequacy of the 



 

 

 
 

financial control system in the Company and strives to maintain the standards in the Internal Financial 
Control. 

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTY 
TRANSACTIONS: 

All transactions entered with related parties as defined under the Act during the FY were in the ordinary 
course of business and on an arm’s length pricing basis and do not attract the provisions of Section 188 of 
the Act. There were no materially significant transactions with the related parties during the FY which 
were in conflict with the interest of the Company and hence, enclosing Form AOC-2 is not required. 
Suitable disclosure as required by the Accounting Standard (AS 18) has been made in the notes to the 
Financial Statements. 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES: 

During the year under review, no employee was in receipt of remuneration exceeding the limits as 
prescribed under provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. The information 
pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 relating to median employee’s remuneration is 
made available at the corporate office of the Company during working hours for a period of twenty-one 
(21) days before the date of the meeting. 

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS: 

The Company has complied with the applicable mandatory Secretarial Standards. 

APPRECIATION & ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS: 

The Board wishes to express its gratitude and record its sincere appreciation for the commitment and 
dedicated efforts put in by all the employees of the Company. The Directors take this opportunity to 
express their grateful appreciation for the encouragement, cooperation and support received from all the 
stakeholders including but not limited to the Government authorities, bankers, customers, suppliers and 
business associates. The Directors are thankful to the esteemed shareholders for their continued support 
and the confidence reposed in the Company and its management. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Kridhan Infra Limited 

 

___________           ____________ 

Gautam Suri 
Managing Director 
DIN: 08180233 

Anil Agrawal 
Chairman & Non-Executive Director  
DIN: 00360114 

 

Date: August 14, 2024 
Place: Mumbai 



 
 

 
 

Annexure-A 

FORM AOC 1 

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 Read with Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014) Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiaries/Associate 
Companies/Joint Ventures 

 
Part A - Subsidiaries 

 
Sr. 
No. 

Particulars  

1. Name of the subsidiary Kridhan Infra Solutions Private Limited 

2. Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from
the holding company’s reporting period 

2023-24 

3. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the 
relevant 
Financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries 

INR Lacs 

4. Share Capital 70,00,000 

5. Reserves & Surplus (11,09,65,177) 

6. Total Assets 1,43,41,700 

7. Total Liabilities 11,83,06,877 

8. Investments 0 

9. Turnover 14,80,000 

10. Profit before taxation (11,25,922) 

11. Provision for taxation (deferred tax) 0 

12. Profit after taxation (11,25,922) 

13. Proposed Dividend - 

14. % of Shareholding 100% 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 
 

Part – B Associate 

Sr. 
No. 

Particulars  

1. Name of the associate Vijay Nirman Company Private Limited 

2. Reporting period for the subsidiary/associate concerned, if 
different from the holding company’s reporting period 

2023-24 

3. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the 
relevant 
Financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries 

INR Lacs 

4. Share Capital (42,741.23) 

5. Reserves & Surplus 0 

6. Total Assets 21,409.74 

7. Total Liabilities 64,150.97 

8. Investments 4.95 

9. Turnover 20,478.71 

10. Profit before taxation (44,373.24) 

11. Provision for taxation (deferred tax) 0 

12. Profit after taxation (44,373.24) 

13. Proposed Dividend  - 

14. % of Shareholding 41.47% 

 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Kridhan Infra Limited 

 

___________           ____________ 

Gautam Suri 
Managing Director 
DIN: 08180233 

Anil Agrawal 
Chairman & Non-Executive Director  
DIN: 00360114 

 
Date: August 14, 2024 
Place: Mumbai 

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations – Not Applicable 
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year –NA 



 
Annexure-B 

FORM NO. MR-3 
Secretarial Audit Report 

For the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024 
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]  
To,  
The Members,  
Kridhan Infra Limited 
 
We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 
good corporate practices by Kridhan Infra Limited (hereinafter called the company).  
 
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.  
 
Based on our verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 
by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, 
during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March 2024 has complied with the statutory 
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in 
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:  
 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by 
Kridhan Infra Limited (“the Company”) for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024, according to the 
provisions of:  
 
(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;  
 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;  
 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;  
 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of 
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; 
 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 
1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-   
 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and     Takeovers) Regulations, 
2011;  
 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018;  
 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014; 
 

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;  
 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;  
 

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and 
 
(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; and 
 

vi) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 
 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:  



 
 
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.  
 

(ii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015. 
  
During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 
Guidelines, Standards, etc. Except mentioned above subject to the following as per Annexure -1: 
 

We further report that 
 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors and Independent Directors, whichever is applicable.  
 

The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were 
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 
 

All the decisions were carried out unanimously by the members of the Board and Committees and the same were 
duly recorded in the minutes of the meeting of the Board of Directors and Committees of the Company.  
 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were 
sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 
clarifications on the agenda items and obtaining shorter consents wherever necessary before the meeting and for 
meaningful participation at the meeting. 
 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 
guidelines. 
 

I further report that during the audit period the Company had no specific event /action having a major bearing on 
the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, regulations, guidelines, standards etc. 
 

We further report that during the audit period the company has made the following decisions: 
 

- The subsidiary Company at Singapore viz. Readymade Steel Singapore Pte. Ltd., is under liquidation process 
and the step down subsidiary of the Company at Singapore viz. K.H.Foges Pte. Ltd. is under judicial 
management. Hence, due to non-availability of the figures for the year ended 31st March, 2024, the same have 
not been considered for the purpose of the consolidated financials. Accordingly, the Consolidated figures for 
the year ended 31st March, 2024 includes only the Indian subsidiary’s figures and are not comparable with the 
previous years' figures and the Company has, already impaired its investments and loans outstanding in the said 
subsidiary Readymade Steel Singapore Pte. Ltd., in its standalone financials. 

- During the year under review, the Company has entered into one-time settlement with Union Bank of India who 
has issued a sanction advice dated February 20, 2024, for all its outstanding towards the Company. Further, the 
Company has made the required payments as per the Sanction letter issued by Union Bank of India, for one 
time settlement (OTS) towards all its outstanding dues. In connection with the same, the Union Bank of India 
has issued settlement certificate and released all the attached properties and guarantees. 

 
for Rinkesh Gala & Associates 
Practicing Company Secretaries 
____________ 
Rinkesh Gala  
Proprietor 
ACS No.42486 | C.P. No.20128  
Peer Review No: 2768/2022 
UDIN: A042486F001124952 
 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: August 14, 2024  



 
 

Annexure-1 

Sr. 
No. 

Compliance 
Requirement 
(Regulations/ circulars/ 
guidelines including 
specific clause) 

Deviations Details of 
Violation 

Observations/ 
Remarks of the 
Practicing Company 
Secretary 

1 Companies Act and 
SEBI (LODR) Reg, 
2015 

Not appointed CS and 
Compliance Officer 
(“CO”) within time  

Not appointed within 
time in the absence of 
Resignation of Priyank 
Jain as CS and CO on 
23.03.23 

The Company appointed 
Hemant Agarwal as CS 
and CO w.e.f. 08.01.24 
to fill casual vacancy 
caused due to 
resignation of Priyank 
Jain as CS and CO on 
23.03.23. It was 
required to appointed 
within 6 month as per 
Companies Act and 
within 3 months w.e.f. 
15.7.2023 (as per SEBI 
LODR amendment 
made w.e.f 15.7.2023  

2 Companies Act and 
SEBI (LODR) Reg, 
2015 

Not appointed CFO 
within time 

Not appointed within 
time in the absence of 
Resignation of 
Rajeshree Mishra as 
CFO on 22.06.22 

The Company appointed 
Bhavesh Nagda as CFO 
w.e.f. 13.02.24 to fill 
casual vacancy caused 
due to resignation of 
Rajeshree Mishra as 
CFO on 22.06.22. It was 
required to appointed 
within 6 month as per 
Companies Act and 
within 3 months w.e.f. 
15.7.2023 (as per SEBI 
LODR amendment 
made w.e.f 15.7.2023  

3 Companies Act and 
SEBI (LODR) Reg, 
2015 

Not appointed  
Managing 
Director/Whole time 
Director within time 

Not appointed within 
time in the absence of 
Resignation of Rishiraj 
as Executive director on 
May 08, 2023. 

The Company appointed 
Gautam Joginderlal Suri 
as Managing director 
w.e.f. 13.02.24 to fill 
casual vacancy caused 
due to resignation of 
Rishiraj as whole-time 
Director on May 8, 
2023. It was required to 
appointed within 6 
month as per Companies 
Act and within 3 months 
w.e.f. 15.7.2023 (as per 
SEBI LODR 
amendment made w.e.f 
15.7.2023  



 
4 SEBI (LODR) Reg, 

2015 
The Company has 
failed to mention the 
details of attaining the 
age of 75 years criteria 
in the resolution or in 
the explanatory 
statement of Notice of 
AGM, while 
considering 
appointment of 
Independent Director. 

The Company has failed 
to mention the details of 
attaining the age of 75 
years criteria in the 
resolution or in the 
explanatory statement 
for the appointment of 
Mr. Mahesh Garg in the 
AGM held on 
September 30, 2019. 

The Company has failed 
to mention the details of 
attaining the age of 75 
years criteria in the 
resolution or in the 
explanatory statement 
for the appointment of 
Mr. Mahesh Garg in the 
AGM held on 
September 30, 2019. 

5 SEBI (LODR) Reg, 
2015 

The Company has not 
made disclosure of 
RPT within the 
timeframe for the year 
ended March 31, 2023 

The Company has not 
made disclosure of RPT 
within the timeframe for 
the year ended March 
31, 2023 

The Company has made 
disclosure of RPT on 
June 01, 2023 instead of 
May 30, 2023. 

6 SEBI (LODR) Reg, 
2015 

The Company has not 
made disclosure of 
RPT within the 
timeframe for the year 
ended March 31, 2023 

The Company has not 
made disclosure of RPT 
within the timeframe for 
the year ended March 
31, 2023 

The Company has made 
disclosure of RPT on 
June 02, 2023 instead of 
May 30, 2023. 

7 SEBI (LODR) Reg, 
2015 

The Company 
concluded its board 
meeting on 11.11.2023 
at 6:00 p.m for 
adoption of accounts 
for the Quarter end 
half year ended 
September 30, 2023 
and it was required to 
submit to the exchange 
within 30 minutes 
however, the Company 
submitted the same at 
7:04 p.m. 

The Company 
concluded its board 
meeting on 11.11.2023 
at 6:00 p.m for adoption 
of accounts for the 
Quarter end half year 
ended September 30, 
2023 and it was required 
to submit to the 
exchange within 30 
minutes however, the 
Company submitted the 
same at 7:04 p.m. 

The Company 
concluded its board 
meeting on 11.11.2023 
at 6:00 p.m for adoption 
of accounts for the 
Quarter end half year 
ended September 30, 
2023 and it was required 
to submit to the 
exchange within 30 
minutes however, the 
Company submitted the 
same at 7:04 p.m. 

8 SEBI (LODR) Reg, 
2015 

The Company 
concluded its board 
meeting on 30.05.23 at 
10:00 p.m for adoption 
of accounts year ended 
March 31, 2023 and it 
was required to submit 
to the exchange within 
30 minutes however, 
the Company 
submitted the same at 
11:56:59 p.m. 

The Company 
concluded its board 
meeting on 30.05.23 at 
10:00 p.m for adoption 
of accounts year ended 
March 31, 2023 and it 
was required to submit 
to the exchange within 
30 minutes however, the 
Company submitted the 
same at 11:56:59 p.m. 

The Company 
concluded its board 
meeting on 30.05.23 at 
10:00 p.m for adoption 
of accounts year ended 
March 31, 2023 and it 
was required to submit 
to the exchange within 
30 minutes however, the 
Company submitted the 
same at 11:56:59 p.m.                                    
Same oucome was again 
published on the 
exchange June 01, 2023 
at 3:51:58 p.m.                                      



 
9 SEBI (LODR) Reg, 

2015 
The Company 
concluded its board 
meeting on 30.05.2023 
at 10:00 p.m for 
adoption of accounts 
for the year ended 
March 31, 2023 and it 
was required to submit 
to the exchange within 
30 minutes however, 
the Company 
submitted the same at 
12:01:56 a.m. 

The Company 
concluded its board 
meeting on 30.05.2023 
at 10:00 p.m for 
adoption of accounts for 
the year ended March 
31, 2023 and it was 
required to submit to the 
exchange within 30 
minutes however, the 
Company submitted the 
same at 12:01:55 a.m. 

The Company 
concluded its board 
meeting on 30.05.2023 
at 10:00 p.m for 
adoption of accounts for 
the year ended March 
31, 2023 and it was 
required to submit to the 
exchange within 30 
minutes however, the 
Company submitted the 
same at 12:01:55 a.m. 

10 SEBI (LODR) Reg, 
2015 

The Company 
concluded its board 
meeting on 14.08.2023 
at 6:45 p.m for 
adoption of accounts 
for Quarter 2 and half 
year ended September 
30, 2023 and it was 
required to submit to 
the exchange within 30 
minutes however, the 
Company submitted 
the same at 7:22:09 
p.m 

The Company 
concluded its board 
meeting on 14.08.2023 
at 6:45 p.m for adoption 
of accounts for Quarter 
2 and half year ended 
September 30, 2023 and 
it was required to submit 
to the exchange within 
30 minutes however, the 
Company submitted the 
same at 7:22:09 p.m 

The Company 
concluded its board 
meeting on 14.08.2023 
at 6:45 p.m for adoption 
of accounts for Quarter 
2 and half year ended 
September 30, 2023 and 
it was required to submit 
to the exchange within 
30 minutes however, the 
Company submitted the 
same at 7:22:09 p.m 

11 SEBI (LODR) Reg, 
2015 

The Company is 
required to adopt  
Standalone and 
Consolidated results 
on quarterly basis. 

The Company has 2 
subsidiaries named 
'Readymade Steel 
Singapore Pte. Limited' 
(RSSPL)  and 'Kridhan 
Infra Solutions Private 
Limited' (WOS), and 1 
associate company 
named 'Vijay Nirman 
Company Private 
Limited', and at the time 
of consolidation for 
Quarter 4 and year 
ended March 31, 2023,  
the company has not 
taken into consideration 
the results of  RSSPL. 

The Company has 2 
subsidiaries named 
Readymade Steel 
Singapore Pte. Limited 
(RSSPL)  and Kridhan 
Infra Solutions Private 
Limited (WOS), and 1 
associate company 
named Vijay Nirman 
Company Private 
Limited, and at the time 
of consolidation for 
Quarter 4 and year 
ended March 31, 2023,  
the company has not 
taken into consideration 
the results of  RSSPL. 



 
12 SEBI (LODR) Reg, 

2015 
The Company is 
required to adopt  
Standalone and 
Consolidated results 
on quarterly basis. 

The Company has 2 
subsidiaries named 
Readymade Steel 
Singapore Pte. Limited 
(RSSPL)  and Kridhan 
Infra Solutions Private 
Limited (WOS), and 1 
associate company 
named Vijay Nirman 
Company Private 
Limited (VNCPL) , and 
at the time of 
consolidation for 
Quarter 1 ended June 
30, 2023,  the company 
has not taken into 
consideration the results 
of  RSSPL and VNCPL. 

The Company has 2 
subsidiaries named 
Readymade Steel 
Singapore Pte. Limited 
(RSSPL)  and Kridhan 
Infra Solutions Private 
Limited (WOS), and 1 
associate company 
named Vijay Nirman 
Company Private 
Limited (VNCPL) , and 
at the time of 
consolidation for 
Quarter 1 ended June 
30, 2023,  the company 
has not taken into 
consideration the results 
of  RSSPL and VNCPL. 

13 SEBI (LODR) Reg, 
2015 

The Company is 
required to adopt  
Standalone and 
Consolidated results 
on quarterly basis. 

The Company has 2 
subsidiaries named 
Readymade Steel 
Singapore Pte. Limited 
(RSSPL)  and Kridhan 
Infra Solutions Private 
Limited (WOS), and 1 
associate company 
named Vijay Nirman 
Company Private 
Limited, and at the time 
of consolidation for 
Quarter 2 and half year 
ended September 30, 
2023, the company has 
not taken into 
consideration the results 
of  RSSPL and VNCPL. 

The Company has 2 
subsidiaries named 
Readymade Steel 
Singapore Pte. Limited 
(RSSPL)  and Kridhan 
Infra Solutions Private 
Limited (WOS), and 1 
associate company 
named Vijay Nirman 
Company Private 
Limited, and at the time 
of consolidation for 
Quarter 2 and half year 
ended September 30, 
2023, the company has 
not taken into 
consideration the results 
of  RSSPL and VNCPL. 



 
14 SEBI (LODR) Reg, 

2015 
The Company is 
required to adopt  
Standalone and 
Consolidated results 
on quarterly basis. 

The Company has 2 
subsidiaries named 
Readymade Steel 
Singapore Pte. Limited 
(RSSPL)  and Kridhan 
Infra Solutions Private 
Limited (WOS), and 1 
associate company 
named Vijay Nirman 
Company Private 
Limited, and at the time 
of consolidation for 
Quarter 3 and nine 
months ended December 
31, 2023,  the company 
has not taken into 
consideration the results 
of  RSSPL. 

The Company has 2 
subsidiaries named 
Readymade Steel 
Singapore Pte. Limited 
(RSSPL)  and Kridhan 
Infra Solutions Private 
Limited (WOS), and 1 
associate company 
named Vijay Nirman 
Company Private 
Limited, and at the time 
of consolidation for 
Quarter 3 and nine 
months ended December 
31, 2023,  the company 
has not taken into 
consideration the results 
of  RSSPL. 

15 Companies Act, 2013 & 
Secretarial Standard - II 

The Company is 
required to issue a 21 
clear days’ notice to 
the shareholders prior 
to the of General 
Meeting. 

The Company has given 
20 clear days’ notice to 
shareholders prior to the 
date of General Meeting 
instead of 21 clear days’ 
notice. 

The Company has given 
20 clear days’ notice to 
shareholders prior to the 
date of General Meeting 
instead of 21 clear days’ 
notice. 

16 SEBI (LODR) Reg, 
2015 

The Company is 
required to disclose to 
the exchange within 7 
working days from the 
quarter end regarding 
the defaults on 
payment of interest/ 
repayment of principal 
amount on loans from 
banks / financial 
institutions and 
unlisted debt 
securities. 

The Company failed to 
disclose  to the 
exchange within 7 
working days from the 
quarter end regarding 
the defaults on payment 
of interest/ repayment of 
principal amount on 
loans from banks / 
financial institutions and 
unlisted debt securities 
for Q1, Q2 and Q3 for 
the finacial year 2023-
24. 

The Company failed to 
disclose  to the 
exchange within 7 
working days from the 
quarter end regarding 
the defaults on payment 
of interest/ repayment of 
principal amount on 
loans from banks / 
financial institutions and 
unlisted debt securities  
Q1, Q2 and Q3 for the 
financial year 2023-24. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Annexure 2 

To,  
The Members,  
Kridhan Infra Limited 
 
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.  
 

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 
responsibility is to express as opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

2. We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about 
the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure 
that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we 
followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of 
the Company. 

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules 
and regulations and happening of events etc. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, Rules, Regulations, standards is 
the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test 
basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.  

 
for Rinkesh Gala & Associates 
Practicing Company Secretaries 
 
 
____________ 
Rinkesh Gala  
Proprietor 
ACS No.42486 | C.P. No.20128  
Peer Review No: 2768/2022   
UDIN: A042486F001124952 
 
Place:Mumbai 
Date: August 14, 2024 



 
Annexure – C 

Management Discussion and Analysis 
INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS 

OVERVIEW 
The objective of this report is to convey the Management’s perspective on the external environment 
and infrastructure industry, as well as strategy, operating and financial performance, risks and 
opportunities and internal control systems and their adequacy in the Company during FY 2023-24. 
This should be read in conjunction with the Company’s financial statements, the schedules and notes 
thereto and other information included elsewhere in this Annual Accounts 2023-24. The Company’s 
financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) 
complying with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended and regulations issued by 
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (‘SEBI’) from time to time. 
 
The Company has been facing some hurdles over the last few years due to liquidity mis-match. 
Despite of the uncertainties and challenges faced by the company, the management is optimistic of a 
resolution with its financial creditors and regain its position going forward due to strong 
fundamentals like product development, technology, manpower, quality, relationship etc., 
 
GLOBAL ECONOMIC OVERVIEW: 
Global GDP growth is anticipated to improve slightly to 3.0% in 2025, following a stabilization at 
2.9% in 2024. The ongoing geopolitical tensions, particularly the Russia-Ukraine conflict, alongside 
persistent inflationary pressures, continue to challenge the global economic environment. However, 
the easing of monetary policies by central banks, as inflation begins to moderate, is expected to 
provide some support to global growth. 
In 2025, the United States is projected to experience a modest growth rate of 2.0%, benefiting from a 
more stable monetary environment. The Eurozone is forecasted to see a slight recovery with a growth 
rate of 1.2%, as energy markets stabilize and fiscal policies support recovery efforts. China's 
economy is expected to maintain a growth rate of 5.1%, driven by continued domestic demand and 
industrial expansion. 
Global inflation is expected to decline further to 5.8% in 2025, as commodity prices stabilize and 
supply chain disruptions continue to resolve. Inflationary pressures in major economies like the US, 
Eurozone, China, and India are expected to ease, contributing to a more favorable global economic 
outlook. 
 
DOMESTIC ECONOMIC OVERVIEW: 
India's economic growth is expected to remain strong, with GDP projected to grow by 6.7% in FY 
2024-25. The government's continued emphasis on infrastructure development through initiatives 
like the Gati Shakti plan and the Production Linked Incentive (PLI) scheme will be key drivers of 
industrial growth and competitiveness. As global businesses continue to diversify supply chains, 
India's position as a global manufacturing hub is expected to strengthen further. 
India's ongoing digital transformation, supported by robust digital infrastructure, will continue to 
drive e-commerce growth and attract international investments in the technology sector. The 
widespread adoption of digital platforms is reshaping various sectors, including retail and services, 
further solidifying India's position in the global digital economy. 



 
The long-term growth prospects of the Indian economy remain positive, with a growing middle class 
fueling consumer demand. India's large domestic market, coupled with a dynamic industrial sector, 
continues to attract multinational investments across various sectors. Additionally, India's burgeoning 
startup ecosystem is expected to remain a significant driver of economic growth, supported by 
foreign investments and a tech-savvy population. 
 
INDIAN ECONOMY: 
Capital investment is projected to remain at approximately 3.5% of GDP, bolstering private sector 
investments, job creation, and overall economic growth. Significant investments in the energy sector, 
particularly in energy transition projects such as the Green Hydrogen Mission, will play a crucial role 
in driving growth. Key steel-consuming sectors are expected to perform well in FY 2024-25, with 
government-led infrastructure projects and an improving global semiconductor supply chain 
providing support. 
The government's focus on CAPEX-led growth is evident in the FY 2024-25 budget, with an 
allocation of INR 14 lakh crore for infrastructure development, marking a 35% increase over the 
previous year. This expenditure is expected to significantly contribute to GDP growth, particularly in 
sectors like railways, national highways, and housing, which are essential for driving steel demand. 
 
HOUSING AND INFRASTRUCTURE PUSH: 
The cement industry is set to benefit from ongoing infrastructure projects and robust demand in the 
housing, commercial, and industrial segments. Government policies, including increased budget 
allocations for highway and road infrastructure, are expected to sustain growth in this sector. The PM 
Awas Yojana, with its extended Credit-linked Subsidy Scheme (CLSS) until 2027, will continue to 
support growth in the real estate sector, especially in affordable housing. 
 
DEMAND FROM GROWING URBANIZATION: 
Urbanization will remain a key driver of demand for cement and steel, with construction activities in 
metropolitan, semi-urban, and urban areas continuing to grow. Large-scale residential projects under 
the PMAY program are expected to boost the residential real estate sector, leading to increased 
consumption and spending in these markets. 
 
OUTLOOK: 
The outlook for India's economy in FY 2024-25 remains positive, with strong urban consumption 
and infrastructure spending expected to drive growth. Demand is projected to grow at 7.6% in 2025, 
supported by robust consumer spending and government-led infrastructure projects. The steel and 
cement sectors are likely to see favorable growth opportunities, with continued investments in 
housing and infrastructure. The Union Budget 2024-25's allocation of $13 billion for safe housing, 
sanitation, and road connectivity reflects the government's commitment to sustained infrastructure 
development. 
 
OPPORTUNITIES: 
With inflation well-managed and economic growth on a healthy trajectory, India is well-positioned 
for continued expansion. The anticipated pre-election spending, coupled with a busy construction 



 
season, is expected to drive volume growth in the steel industry, with production likely reaching 430-
440 million tonnes. 
 
THREATS: 
However, the economic environment remains complex, with risks stemming from geopolitical 
tensions, particularly in neighbouring regions, and persistent inflationary pressures. High interest 
rates could also pose challenges to sustained growth. In the US, economic growth may be constrained 
by ongoing fiscal and monetary policies. Europe continues to face recession risks, exacerbated by 
high natural gas prices, which are dampening consumer spending and wage growth. The ongoing 
energy crisis resulting from the Russia-Ukraine war, along with tight monetary policies by the ECB 
and the Bank of England, will continue to impact Europe's growth potential. 
 
OPERATIONS 
A Summary of key financial indicators is given below. The detailed financial performance may be 
viewed from the Balance Sheet and schedules thereto in the Annual Report. 

(Rs. In lakhs) 

 STANDALONE CONSOLIDATED 

Particulars  F.Y.2023-24 
(INR in 
Lakhs) 

F.Y.2022-23 
(INR in Lakhs) 

F.Y.2023-24 
(INR in 
Lakhs) 

F.Y.2022-23 
(INR in 
Lakhs) 

Revenue from operation  84.50 344.67 84.50 562.20 

Other Income  89.58 74.91 89.73 87.38 

Profit/Loss before Depreciation, 
Finance Cost and Tax Expense 

(2456.01) (4943.48) (2465.79) (5452.04) 

Less: Depreciation and 
Amortization Expenses 

37.92 54.07 39.40 57.41 

Profit/Loss before Finance Cost 
and Tax Expense 

(2493.93) (4997.55) (2505.19) (5509.45) 

Less: Finance Costs 7.35 2.72 7.35 2.92 
Profit/Loss before Tax Expense (2501.28) (5000.27) (2512.54) (5512.37) 
Less: Tax Expense (Current & 
Deferred) 

(1.83) 27.28 (1.83) 38.03 

Profit/Loss after Tax (2499.46) (5027.54) (2510.72) (5550.40) 
Add: Other Comprehensive 
Income/loss for the year 

- - - - 

Total Comprehensive Income (2499.46) (5027.54) (2510.72) (5550.40) 
 
ENVIRONMENT & SAFETY 
We are conscious of the need for an environmentally clean and safe operations. Our policy requires 
all operations to be conducted in way so as to ensure safety of all concerned, compliance of statutory 
and industrial requirement for environment protection and conservation of natural resources. 
 
RISK AND CONCERNS: 
The Company had a well-defined risk management mechanism covering risk analysis, exposure, 
potential impact, and risk mitigation processes. We assess the overall risk exposure from both top-



 
down and bottom-up perspectives, which are then consolidated to provide a bird’s eye view of our 
risk profile. 
 
The subsidiary Company at Singapore, viz Readymade Steel Singapore Pte Ltd., is under liquidation 
process. The Company has already impaired its investments and loan outstanding in the said 
subsidiary. The accumulated losses in the previous years have resulted in erosion of Company’s net 
worth. The Company has submitted its plan for settlements to its lenders, for long term viable 
solution, which is under active consideration. 
 
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 
The Management monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of internal control systems in the 
Company, its compliance with operating systems, accounting procedures and policies at all locations 
of the Company. Based on the report of management, process owners undertake corrective action(s) 
in their respective area(s) and thereby strengthen the controls. 
 
The Audit Committee reviews the reports submitted by the management. Also, the Audit Committee 
has independent sessions with the external auditor and the Management to discuss the adequacy and 
effectiveness of internal financial controls over financial reporting and internal financial controls 
respectively. 
 
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 
Statement in this Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company’s objectives, 
projections, estimates, expectations or predictions may be “forward-looking statements” within the 
meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results could differ materially from those 
expressed or implied. Important factors that could make a difference to the Company’s operations 
include raw material availability and prices, cyclical demand and pricing in the Company’s principal 
markets, changes in Government regulations, tax regimes, economic developments within India and 
the countries in which the Company conducts business and other incidental factors. 



 
 

 

 

Annexure-D 

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  

The Directors present the Company’s Report on Corporate Governance for the year ended 

March 31, 2024, in terms of Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (The “Listing Regulations”). 

1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: 

 

The ethical values are the foundation of Company’s governance philosophy which has 

become a part of its culture. We feel proud to belong to a Company whose visionary founders 

laid the foundation stone for good governance long back and made it an integral principle of 

the business. We strongly believe that in business, there is something more important than 

just top line and bottom line and hence, each of us needs to strive towards producing our very 

best in all we do, so that, we not only fulfill the needs of each and every consumer, but also 

far exceed their expectations. This is what has set us apart and this may be the very reason 

that we have been able to enjoy a very special relationship with our consumers. After all, 

when you strive, with every sinew to be the best you can be, it will show.  

 

Corporate Governance is about commitment to values and ethical business conduct. Our 

actions are governed by our values and principles, which are reinforced at all levels within 

the Company. We are committed to doing things the right way which means taking business 

decisions and acting in a way that is ethical and is in compliance with applicable legislations. 

 

 The Company emphasizes on the need for complete transparency and accountability in all its 

dealings to protect stakeholder’s interests. The governance framework encourages the 

efficient utilization of resources and accountability for stewardship. The Board considers 

itself as the custodian of trust and acknowledges its responsibilities towards stakeholders for 

wealth creation sustainably and responsibly. 

 

2. GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE: 

The Corporate Governance structure of the Company is as follows:  

Board of Directors: The Board is entrusted with an ultimate responsibility of the 

management, directions and performance of the Company. As its primary role is fiduciary in 

nature, the Board provides leadership, strategic guidance, objective and independent view to 

the Company’s management while discharging its responsibilities, thus ensuring that the 

management adheres to ethics, transparency and disclosur 

Committees of the Board: The Board has constituted the following Committees viz, Audit 

Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders’ Relationship 



 
 

 

 

Committee. Each of the aforesaid Committees has been mandated to operate within a given 

framework.  

Chairman: The primary role of the Chairman is to provide leadership to the Board in 

achieving goals of the Company. He is responsible, inter-alia, for the working of the Board 

and for ensuring that all relevant issues are placed before the Board and that all Directors are 

encouraged to provide their expert guidance on the relevant issues raised in the meetings of 

the Board. He is also responsible for formulating the corporate strategy along with other 

members of the Board.  

Executive Directors: The Executive Directors, as members of the Board and Core 

Management Committees, contribute to the strategic management of the Company’s 

businesses within Board approved direction and framework. They assume overall 

responsibility for strategic management of business and corporate functions including its 

governance processes and top management effectiveness.  

Non-Executive Directors including Independent Directors: Non- Executive Directors play 

a critical role in balancing the functioning of the Board by providing independent judgments 

on various issues raised in the Board meetings like formulation of business strategies, 

monitoring of performances, etc. 

3. BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 

The Company’s Board comprises people of eminence and repute who bring the required 

skills, competence and expertise that allow them to make an effective contribution to the 

Board and its Committees. The composition and strength of the Board is reviewed from time 

to time for ensuring that it remains aligned with statutory as well as business requirements.  

The Board of Directors as at the end of March 31, 2024, comprised of Six (6) Directors viz. 1 

Non Executive-Non Independent Director, 2 Executive Directors and 3 Non-Executive 

Independent Directors including women Director. 

The Chairman of the Board is a Non-Executive Director. 

None of the Directors on the Board is a Director in more than 7 listed entities. None of the 

Independent Director is an Independent Director in more than 7 listed entities as required 

under the Listing Regulations. 

Further, the Managing Director and the Executive Directors do not serve as Independent 

Directors in any listed company. None of the Directors hold Directorships in more than 20 

Indian companies, with more than 10 public limited companies. None of the Directors on the 

Board is a member of more than 10 Committees or Chairman of 5 Committees (i.e. Audit 

Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee) across all Public Companies in India, 

in which he/she is a Director. Requisite disclosures of their committee positions have been 

received from all the Directors. All Directors are in compliance with the provisions for limit 

on Directorships/Independent Directorships of listed companies as envisaged under 

Regulation 17A of the Listing Regulations. The Company has received declarations on 



 
 

 

 

criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1) (b) of 

the Listing Regulations from the Independent Directors of the Company. 

 

a) Composition of Board of Directors:  

 

The Composition of the Board of Directors as at the end of financial year as well as details of 

outside directorships and other board committees of which the Company’s Directors are 

members excluding KIL is as under: 

 

Name of Director Category Directorship 

in Other 

Indian 

Public 

Limited 

Companies  

No of Board 

Committees in which 

Chairman / Member  

 

 

List of 

Directorship 

held in 

Other Listed 

Companies 

and 

Category of 

Directorship 

Chairman 

 

Member 

Anil Dhanpat Agrawal  

Din: 00360114 

Chairman 

& Non 

Executive –

Non 

Independent 

Director 

 

1 0 3 0 

Mahdav Deshpande 

Din: 01537794 

Non-

Executive-

Independent 

Director 

1 2 1 0 

Priya Dilipbhai Shah 

Din: 07594589 

Non-

Executive-

Independent 

Director 

2 0 0 1 

Gautam Joginderlal Suri 

Din: 08180233 

Executive 

Director 

1 0 0 0 

Rachna Achal Daga 

Din: 09311592 

Non-

Executive-

Independent 

Director 

1 1 2 0 



 
 

 

 

Rishiraj 

Din: 06683367 

Executive 

Director 

1 0 0 0 

 

 

 

 

b) Board Meetings and Annual General Meeting: 

 

The meetings of the Board of Directors are scheduled well in advance and usually held in Mumbai. 

The Board meets at least once a quarter inter- alia, to review the quarterly performance and financial 

results. 

 

The notice and detailed agenda along with the draft of relevant resolutions, documents and 

explanatory notes, wherever required, are sent well in advance to enable the Board members to take 

informed decisions. The Board periodically reviews the strategy, annual business plan, business 

performance of the Company, Risk Management matters. The Board also reviews the compliance 

reports of the laws applicable to the Company, Internal Financial Controls and Financial Reporting 

Systems, adoption of quarterly/annual results, Minutes of committees of the Board. 

 

The necessary quorum was present for all the meetings. 

 

During the financial year ended March 31, 2024, 07 (Seven) Board Meetings were held i.e. on May 

30, 2023, August 14, 2023, September 07, 2023, November 11, 2023, January 08, 2024, February 13, 

2024, March 22, 2024. 

 

The last AGM i.e. the 17th Annual General Meeting of the Company was held on Saturday, 

September 30, 2023, at 4:00 p.m. 

 

Details of attendance of each Director at the Board Meetings and at the Annual General Meeting is 

reproduced below: 

Name of the Director No. of Board Meetings Held and Attended 

during the year 

Whether attended last 

AGM held on 30th, 

September, 2023 Held Attended 

Anil Dhanpat Agrawal 07 07 Yes 

Mahdav Deshpande 07 07 Yes 

Priya Dilipbhai Shah 07 06 Yes 

Gautam Joginderlal Suri 07 07 Yes 

Rachna Achal Daga 

(appointed w.e.f. March 22, 

2024) 

01 01 NA 

Mahesh Kumar Garg 06 06 Yes 



 
 

 

 

(resigned w.e.f. March 07, 

2024)  

Abhijit Vidyanand Ranade  

(retired w.e.f. March 31, 

2024)  

07 07 Yes 

Rishiraj 07 07 Yes 

 

 

 

c) Board Independence: 

 

The Company has received a declaration from all the Independent Directors confirming that they 

meet the criteria of independence as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Act read with Regulation 

16(1) (b) of the Listing Regulations. 

 

In terms of Regulation 25(8) of the Listing Regulations, the Independent Directors have confirmed 

that they are not aware of any circumstances or situations which exist or may be reasonably 

anticipated that could impair or impact their ability to discharge their duties. The Board is of the 

opinion that the Independent Directors fulfill the conditions specified in the Act and the Listing 

Regulations and that they are independent of the management. 

 

Equity Shareholding of Directors as on March 31, 2024: 

  

Sr No. Name of the Director DIN No. of Shares 

1 Anil Dhanpat Agrawal 00360114 2,62,60,160 

2 Mahdav Deshpande 01537794 0 

3 Priya Dilipbhai Shah 07594589 0 

4 Gautam Joginderlal Suri 08180233  0 

5 Rachna Achal Daga 09311592 0 

6 Rishiraj 06683367 0 

 

d) Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors: 

 

At the time of appointing an Independent Director, a formal letter of appointment is given to him/her, 

which inter alia explains the role, function, duties and responsibilities expected from him/her as a 

Director of the Company. 

 

The Director is also explained in detail the compliances required from him/her under the Act, the 

SEBI Listing Regulations and other statutes and an affirmation is obtained. The Chairman & 

Managing Director also has a one to one discussion with the newly appointed Director to familiarise 

him/her with the Company’s operations. Further, on an ongoing basis as a part of agenda of 

Board/Committee meetings, presentations are regularly made to the Independent Directors on various 

matters inter-alia covering the Company’s and its subsidiary, associate and joint venture companies 

operations, industry and regulatory updates, strategy, finance, risk management framework, role, 

rights, responsibilities of the IDs under various statutes and other relevant matters. 

 



 
 

 

 

Details of the programme for familiarisation of Independent Directors are available on the website of 

the Company at https://www.kridhan.com/  . 

 

e)  Board Membership 

 

The Company believes that a diverse skill set is required to avoid group thinking and to arrive at 

balanced decisions. The Nomination & Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible for 

formulating the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a 

Director. It identifies the persons as potential candidates who are qualified to be appointed as 

Directors and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal. The Board has sufficient 

breadth of skills in areas of industry, finance, management, law and technology. 

f)  The Directors have identified the list of core skills/expertise/competencies as required for 

them to function effectively as follows and the Board believes that Directors of the Company 

possess these skills/expertise/competencies, which helps the Company function effectively: 

 
Skills identified Anil 

Dhanpat 

Agrawal 

Mahdav 

Deshpande 

Priya 

Dilipbhai 

Shah 

Gautam 

Joginderlal 

Suri 

Rachna 

Achal Daga 

Rishiraj 

Knowledge: - to 

understand the 

Company’s business, 

policies, culture, mission, 

vision, values, goals, 

current 

strategic plan, 

governance 

structure, major risks and 

threats and potential 

opportunities and 

knowledge of the 

industry in which the 

Company 

operates. 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Inter-personal:- 

Attributes and 

competencies to use their 

knowledge and skills to 

function well as team 

members of the 

Board/Committee and to 

interact 

with stakeholders of the 

Company. 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Analytic and decision 

making: - Ability to 

enhance and contribute 

to effective decision 

making. 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

https://www.kridhan.com/


 
 

 

 

Finance,Taxation, 

Banking,Investment, 

Treasury and Forex 

Management. 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Technical/Professional:- 

Technical/Professional 

skills and specialized 

knowledge to assist the 

ongoing aspects of the 

business. 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Business Development & 

Marketing 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

 

 

g)  Separate meeting of Independent Directors 

 

During FY 2023-24, the Independent Directors met separately on March 22, 2024 without the 

presence of Non-Independent Directors and members of the management in compliance with 

Regulation 25 (3) of the Listing Regulations and Schedule IV of the Act. At the said meeting, the 

Independent Directors, inter-alia, considered the following: 

 

i. Reviewed the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole; 

ii. Reviewed the performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the 

views of executive directors and non-executive directors; 

iii. Assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the 

Company management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and 

reasonably perform their duties. 

 

The Independent Directors expressed satisfaction on the performance of Non-Independent Directors 

and the Board as a whole. The Independent Directors were also satisfied with the quality, quantity 

and timeliness of flow of information between the Company management and the Board. 

 

h)  Independent Director databank registration: 

 

Pursuant to a notification dated October 22, 2019 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, all 

directors have completed the registration with the Independent Directors Databank. Requisite 

disclosures have been received from the directors in this regard. 

 

i)  Disclosure of relationships between directors inter-se: 

 

No Directors are related to each other. Besides the transactions reported in the Notes to the Accounts 

for the year, the Company has not entered into any materially significant transactions with its 

Promoters, Directors or their relatives or with the Management, etc. that may have potential conflict 

with the interest of the Company at large. 

 

4. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 

 



 
 

 

 

The Board of Directors has constituted Board Committees to deal with specific areas and activities 

which concern the Company and require a closer review. The Board Committees are formed with the 

approval of the Board. 

 

The Chairman of the respective Committee(s) brief the Board about the summary of the discussions 

held in the Committee Meetings. The minutes of the meetings of all Committees are placed before 

the Board for review. The Board Committees can request special invitees to join the meeting, as and 

when appropriate. 

 

During the year, all recommendations of the Committees of the Board which were mandatorily 

required have been accepted by the Board. The terms of reference of the Committees are in line with 

the provisions of the Listing Regulations, Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules issued thereunder. 

 

The Company currently has 3 (Three) Committees of the Board, namely, Audit Committee, 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee. 

 

I. AUDIT COMMITTEE: 

 

Audit Committee of the Company is constituted in line with the provisions of Regulation 18 of SEBI 

Listing Regulations and Section 177 of the Act. As on FY end the Audit Committee comprises of 

two Independent Directors and one Non-Executive Director, possessing sound knowledge on 

accounts, audit, finance, taxation, internal controls etc. The Company Secretary acts as the secretary 

of the Audit Committee. The previous AGM of the Company was held on September 30, 2023, and 

was attended by the Chairman of the Audit Committee. 

 

The committee met four times during the FY under purview on May 30, 2023, August 14, 2023, 

November 11, 2023, and February 13, 2024. 

 

The details of the composition of the Committee and attendance of the Members during the FY are as 

follows: 

 

Sr. 

No.  

Members  Category Position held 

in 

the 

Committee 

No. of 

meetings held 

No. of 

meetings 

attended 

1. Mahdav 

Deshpande 

Non-Executive - 

Independent 

Director 

Chairman 4 4 

2. Anil Dhanpat 

Agrawal 

Non-Executive - 

Non Independent 

Director 

Member 4 4 

3. Rachna Achal 

Daga 

Non-Executive - 

Independent 

Director 

Member 0 N.A 

4. Priya Dilipbhai 

Shah 

Non-Executive - 

Independent 

Member 4 4 



 
 

 

 

(ceased as member 

w.e.f. March 22, 

2024) 

Director 

 

Brief description of terms of reference: 

 

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee as stated below is in line with what is 

mandated in Regulation 18 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and Section 177 of the Act: 

 

A) 1. Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its 

financial information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and 

credible. 

 

2. Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors 

of the Company; 

 

3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the 

statutory auditors; 

 

4. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor’s report 

thereon before submission to the Board for approval, with particular reference to: 

 

a) matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be 

included in the Boards' report in terms of clause (c) of subsection 3 of Section 134 

of the Act. 

b) changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same. 

c) major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment 

by management. 

d) significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit 

findings. 

e) compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial 

statements. 

f) disclosure of any related party transactions. 

g) modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report. 

 

5. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before 

submission to the Board for approval including the financial statements, in particular, 

the investments made by unlisted subsidiary(ies); 

 

6. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised 

through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of 

funds utilised for purposes other than those stated in the offer document / prospectus / 

notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilisation of 

proceeds of a public issue or rights issue or preferential issue or qualified institutions 

placement, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in 

this matter; 



 
 

 

 

 

7. Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness 

of audit process; 
 

8. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related 

parties; 

 

9. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments; 

 

10. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary; 

 

11. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; 
 

12. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, 

adequacy of the Internal control systems; 

 

13. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of 

the internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the 

department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit; 
 

14. Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on; 
 

15. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into 

matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control 

systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the Board; 
 

16. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and 

scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern; 
 

17. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, 

debenture holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and 

creditors; 

 

18. To review the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism; 

 

19. Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any other 

person heading the finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the 

qualifications, experience and background, etc. of the candidate; 
 

20. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit 

Committee; 
 



 
 

 

 

21. To review the utilisation of loans and/or advances from/investment by the holding 

company in the subsidiary exceeding rupees 100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the 

subsidiary, whichever is lower including existing loans/advances/investments. 

 

22. To consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits and impact of schemes involving 

merger, demerger, amalgamation etc., on the Company and its shareholders. 

 

B) Review of the following information: 

 

1. Management Discussion and Analysis of financial condition and results of operations; 

 

2. Management letters/letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory 

auditors; 

 

3. Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and 

 

4. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief Internal Auditor. 

 

5. Statement of deviations: 
 

a) Quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if 

applicable, submitted to stock exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32(1). 

 

b) Annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the 

offer document/prospectus / notice in terms of Regulation 32(7). 

 

The Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors (whenever required) are invited to attend 

the meetings of the Committee to provide such information and clarifications as required 

by the Committee, which gives a deeper insight into the financial reporting. 

 

 

II. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE: 

 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is constituted in line with the provisions of 

Regulation 19 of Listing Regulations and Section 178 of the Act. The Committee presently consists 

of two Independent Directors and one Non-Executive Director. The Company Secretary of the 

Company acts as the secretary of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The previous AGM 

of the Company was held on September 30, 2023 and was attended by the Chairman of the 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee.  

 

Four meetings of the Committee were held during the year under purview on September 07, 2023, 

January 08, 2024, February 13, 2024, and March 22, 2024. 

 

The details of the composition of the Committee and attendance of the Members during the FY are as 

follows: 

 



 
 

 

 

Sr. 

No.  

Members  Category Position held in 

the Committee 

No. of 

meetings 

held/entitled 

No. of 

meetings 

attended 

1. Mahdav 

Deshpande 

Independent 

Director 

Chairman 04 04 

2. Anil Dhanpat 

Agrawal 

(Appointed on 

March 22, 2024) 

Non -

Executive 

Director 

Member 00 00 

3. Rachna Achal 

Daga 

(Appointed on 

March 22, 2024) 

Independent 

Director 

Member 00 00 

4. Mahesh Kumar 

Garg 

(ceased to be 

member w.e.f. 

March 07, 2024.) 

Non-Executive 

- Independent 

Director 

Member 03 03 

5. Priya Dilipbhai 

Shah 

(ceased to be 

member w.e.f. 

March 22, 2024.) 

Non-Executive 

- Independent 

Director 

Member 04 04 

6. Abhijit Vidyanand 

Ranade 

(Appointed on 

March 7, 2024 

ceased to be 

member w.e.f. 

March 22, 2024.) 

Non-Executive 

- Independent 

Director 

Member 01 01 

 

 

a) Brief description of terms of reference 

 

The broad terms of reference of Nomination and Remuneration Committee as stated below is in 

compliance with Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 19 of the SEBI Listing Regulations: 

 

1. To identify persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in 

senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board their 

appointment and removal, and shall specify the manner for effective evaluation of 

performance of Board, its Committees, Chairperson and individual directors to be carried out 

by the Board, by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee or by an independent 

external agency and review its implementation and compliance. 

 

2. Every appointment of an independent director, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

shall evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board and on the basis 



 
 

 

 

of such evaluation, prepare a description of the role and capabilities required of an 

independent director. The person recommended to the Board for appointment as an 

independent director shall have the capabilities identified in such description. For the purpose 

of identifying suitable candidates, the Committee may: 

 

a. use the services of an external agencies, if required; 

 

b. consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds, having due regard to 

diversity; and 

 

c. consider the time commitments of the candidates. 

 

3. To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence 

of a director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the 

directors, key managerial personnel and other employees. 

 

4. While formulating the policy, to ensure that: 

 

a. the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain 

and motivate directors of the quality required to run the company successfully;  

 

b. relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance 

benchmarks; and 

  

c. remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves a 

balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance 

objectives appropriate to the working of the company and its goals. 

 

5. To take into account financial position of the company, trend in the industry, appointees 

qualifications, experience, past performance, past remuneration, etc., and bring about 

objectivity in determining the remuneration package while striking a balance between the 

interest of the company and the shareholders while approving the remuneration payable to 

managing director, whole time director or manager. 

 

6. To lay down/formulate the evaluation criteria for performance evaluation of independent 

directors and the Board. 

 

7. To devise a policy on Board diversity. 

 

8. To ensure ‘Fit & Proper’ status of the proposed/existing directors. 

 

9. To recommend to Board, whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the 

independent director, on the basis of the report of performance evaluation of independent 

directors. 

 



 
 

 

 

10. To review and approve the remuneration and change in remuneration payable to whole-time 

directors. 
 

11. To recommend to Board, all remuneration payable to senior management (i.e. members of 

the core management team one level below the chief executive officer/managing 

director/whole time director and shall specifically include Company Secretary and Chief 

Financial Officer); and 
 

12. To undertake specific duties as may be prescribed by the board from time to time. 

 

Performance Evaluation: 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Board has carried out the 

annual evaluation of its own performance, its Committees and Directors individually. A structured 

questionnaire was prepared covering various aspects of the Boards' functioning such as adequacy of 

the composition of the Board and its Committees, Board culture, execution and performance of 

specific duties, obligations and governance. 

 

The performance evaluation of independent directors was done by the entire Board, excluding the 

director being evaluated. A separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of 

Individual Directors. The Chairman of the Board of Directors interacted with all the Directors 

individually to get an overview of the functioning of the Board/Committees, inter alia, on the 

following broad criteria i.e. attendance and level of participation at meetings of the 

Board/committees, independence of judgment exercised by Independent Directors, interpersonal 

relationship and so on. 

 

The performance evaluation of the Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole was carried 

out by the Independent Directors. The performance evaluation of the Chairman of the Company was 

also carried out by the Independent Directors, taking into account the views of the Executive Director 

and Non- Executive Directors. A consolidated summary of the ratings given by each Director was 

then prepared. The report of performance evaluation was then discussed and noted by the Board. 

 

Based on the inputs received from the Directors, an action plan is being drawn up in consultation 

with the Directors to encourage their greater engagement with the Company. 

 

III. STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE: 

 

The Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee is constituted in line with the provisions of Regulation 20 

of SEBI Listing Regulations and Section 178 of the Act. The Committee presently consists of three 

Directors out of which two are Independent Directors and one Executive Director. The previous 

AGM of the Company was held on September 30, 2023, and was attended by the Chairman of the 

Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee.  

 

Two meeting of the Committee were held during the year under purview on May 30, 2023 and 

August 14, 2023 respectively. 

 



 
 

 

 

a) The details of the composition of the Committee and attendance of the Members during the 

FY are as follows: 

 

Sr. 

No.  

Members  Category Position held 

in 

the Committee 

No. of 

meetings 

held/entitled 

No. of 

meetings 

attended 

1. Mahdav 

Deshpande 

(Redesignated his 

position from 

Chairman to 

Member on March 

22, 2024) 

Independent 

Director 

Chairman 02 02 

2. Anil Dhanpat 

Agrawal 

Non -Executive 

Director 

Member 02 02 

 Rachna Achal 

Daga 

(Appointed as 

Chair person w.e.f. 

March 22, 2024) 

Independent 

Director 

Chairperson 00 00 

4. Mahesh Kumar 

Garg 

(Ceased to be 

member w.e.f. 

March 07, 2023) 

Non-Executive - 

Independent 

Director 

Member 02 02 

 

b) Brief description of terms of reference: 

 

The terms of reference of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee (SRC) covers the areas 

mentioned in Section 178 (5) of the Act and Regulation 20 read with Part D (B) of Schedule II to the 

Listing Regulations. The terms of reference of the SRC, inter-alia are as follows: 

 

i. Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the listed entity including complaints 

related to transfer / transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of 

declared dividends, issue of new/duplicate certificates, general meetings etc. 

 

ii. Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders. 
 

iii. Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in respect of various 

services being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent. 
 

iv. Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for reducing the 

quantum of unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual 

reports/statutory notices by the shareholders of the Company. 
 



 
 

 

 

c) Name and designation of Compliance Officer: 

 

Mr. Hemant Agarwal is the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company to comply 

with requirements of Companies Act and Listing Regulations etc. 

 

d) Details of Shareholders’ Complaints: 

 

The Secretarial Department of the Company and the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, Bigshare 

Services Private Limited attend to all grievances of the shareholders received directly or through 

SEBI, Stock Exchanges, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Registrar of Companies, etc. Continuous 

efforts are made to ensure that grievances are more expeditiously redressed to the complete 

satisfaction of the investors. Shareholders are requested to furnish their updated telephone numbers 

and e-mail addresses to facilitate prompt action.  

 

During the year following complaints were received and resolved;  

 

Complaints pending as on April 1, 2023 0 

Complaints received during the year 0 

Complaints resolved during the year 0 

Complaints pending as on March 31, 2024 0 

 

 

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS: 

 

The Company pays remuneration on monthly basis to its Directors. The Company has a well-defined 

Remuneration Policy which is available on the website of the Company at https://www.kridhan.com/ 
. The details of remuneration paid to the Executive Directors during the 2023- 24 are as follows: 

 

(Rs. in lakhs) 

Sr 

No. 

Name Remuneration Perquisites Total 

1 Gautam Joginderlal 

Suri 

Nil Nil Nil 

2 Rishiraj Nil Nil Nil 

 

During the year, the Company has paid sitting fees to Non -Executive Directors as under: 

 

Sr 

No. 

Name Amount (Rs. in lakhs) 

1 Anil Dhanpat Agrawal Nil 

2 Priya Dilipbhai Shah 1,03,500 

3 Mahdav Deshpande 45,000 

4 Rachna Achal Daga Nil 

5 Abhijit Ranade 45,000 

 

https://www.kridhan.com/


 
 

 

 

Except for sitting fees, there were no pecuniary or business relationship of Non-Executive Directors 

vis-à-vis the Company. The Company has not granted any stock option to any of its Directors. None 

of the Director has any fixed component and performance linked incentives based on performance 

criteria, also there are no provisions for notice period and payment of severance fees. 

 

V. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS: 

 

a. Details of last three Annual General Meetings: 

 

AGM Financial 

Year 

Date & Time Venue 

 

Special resolutions passed 

17th 

AGM 

 

2022-23 30/09/2023 at 

4:00 p.m. 

Conducted meeting through 

Video Conferencing 

(“VC”)/Other Audio-Visual 

Means (“OAVM”) 

-None 

  

16th 

AGM 

2021-22 30/09/2022 at 

4:00 p.m. 

Conducted meeting through 

Video Conferencing 

(“VC”)/Other Audio-Visual 

Means (“OAVM”) 

-None 

15th  

AGM 

2020-21 30/09/2021 at 

04:00 p.m. 

Conducted meeting through 

Video Conferencing 

(“VC”)/Other Audio-Visual 

Means (“OAVM”) 

-None 

 

 

 

Extraordinary General Meeting  

No Extraordinary General Meeting of the members was held during FY 2023-24 under review.  

Postal Ballot  

During the financial year 2023-24, following four (4) resolutions were passed through postal ballot 

dated April 25, 2024 and as on date of this report, the Company does not propose to pass any 

resolution for the time being by way of Postal Ballot. 

 

1. Rescind Resolution of Increase in Authorized Share Capital of the Company and 

consequential amendment to Memorandum of Association (MOA) of the Company; 

2. To Increase Authorised Share Capital of the Company and consequential amendment in 

Memorandum of Association of the Company 

3. Appointment of Mr. Gautam Joginderlal Suri as Managing Director (DIN: 08180233) for the 

term of five years; 

4. Appointment of Mrs. Rachna Achal Daga (DIN: 09311592), as an Independent Director; 

 

 



 
 

 

 

VI. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION: 
 

i. The Company’s unaudited quarterly financial results were announced within forty-five days 

of the close of the quarter and its audited annual financial results were announced within 

sixty days from the close of the financial year as per the requirements of the Listing 

Regulations. The aforesaid financial results were submitted to the Stock Exchange 

and are normally published in Free Press Journal, Economic Times, Financial Express, 

Business Standards, Navshakti and Mumbai Lakshadeep. 

 

ii. The Company’s results are displayed on the Company’s website at https://www.kridhan.com/ 
and also on the website of the BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited. 

 

iii. No presentations were made to the institutional investors or to the analysts during the year 

under review. 

 

VII. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION: 

 

Date & Time of AGM 

 

30/09/2024 at 9:30 a.m. 

Venue 

 

Office No 421-422, C wing, 4th floor, 215 

Atrium,Next to Courtyard Mariott Andheri Kurla 

Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai – 400 059. 

Financial year 

 

 

The Financial Year of the Company is from April 01, 

2023, to March 31, 2024. 

Dividend payment date 

 

Not Applicable 

Date of Book Closure 

 

Not Applicable 

Listing on Stock Exchanges 

 

National Stock Exchange of India Ltd 

 

 

 

 

BSE Ltd 

 

 

Address: 

Exchange Plaza, 5th Floor, Plot No. C-1, Block G, 

Bandra – Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), 

Mumbai – 400 051 

 

Address: 

1st Floor, New Trading Ring, Rotunda Building, 

P.J. Towers, Dalal Street, Fort, Mumbai – 400 001. 

 

Annual Listing fees of both stock exchanges has been 

paid within time. 

 

Stock code 

 

533482 

KRIDHANINF 

Dematerialization Central Depository Services (India) Limited 

https://www.kridhan.com/


 
 

 

 

 National Securities Depository Limited 

 

 

Market Price Data: 

Month/Price BSE NSE 

HIGH (Rs.) LOW (Rs.) HIGH (Rs.) LOW (Rs.) 

2023     

April 3.90 1.89 3.80 1.80 

May 2.82 2.28 2.80 2.20 

June 2.59 2.26 2.60 2.30 

July 2.38 1.95 2.45 1.90 

August 2.48 2.00 2.45 2.00 

September 3.22 2.01 3.10 2.00 

October 3.03 2.20 2.95 2.25 

November 2.88 2.25 2.85 2.30 

December 3.44 2.41 3.40 2.45 

2024     

January 5.80 3.61 5.75 3.55 

February 7.68 4.45 7.55 4.30 

March 6.49 4.68 6.40 4.60 

 

Distribution of Shareholding 

 

Sr. 

No. 

Shareholding Shareholders Total Shares 

  No. of 

Shareholders 

% No. of Shares % 

1 1-500 22665 71.833 3305674 3.487 

2 501-1000 3568 11.308 3043726 3.211 



 
 

 

 

3 1001-2000 2286 7.245 3551753 3.747 

4 2001-3000 904 2.865 2343598 2.472 

5 3001-4000 420 1.331 1524554 1.608 

6 4001-5000 491 1.556 2356837 2.486 

7 5001-10000 667 2.114 5125095 5.407 

8 10001 & Above 551 1.746 73527968 77.578 

Total 31552 100% 94779205     100% 

 

Registrar to an issue and share 

transfer agent 

Bigshare Services Private Limited 

E-2/3, Ansa Industrial Estate, Sakivihar Road,  

Saki Naka, Andheri (East), Mumbai-400072, 

Maharashtra State. 

Share transfer system In respect of shares held in dematerialized mode, the 

transfer takes place instantaneously between the 

transferor, transferee, and the Depository Participant 

through electronic debit/ credit of the accounts 

involved. 

Dematerialization of shares and 

liquidity 

Held in Dematerialised Form in CDSL: 68,441,644 

Held in Dematerialised Form in NSDL: 26,272,536  

Physical : 65,025  

Total Number of Shares: 94,779,205  

 

 

 

Outstanding GDRs/ ADRs/ Warrants or any Convertible Instruments, conversion date and 

likely impact on equity  

 

The Company has not issued any GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments in past and 

hence as on March 31, 2024, the Company does not have any outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or 

any convertible instruments. 

 

Commodity Price Risk/Foreign Exchange Risk And Hedging Activities 

 

Price risk 

 

Price risk is the risk that the profits and cashflows will fluctuate because of changes in the market 

prices. The Company is exposed in the ordinary course of its business to risks related to commodity 

prices.  

 

Foreign currency risk management 

 

The Company’s functional currency is Indian Rupees (Rs.). The Company undertakes transactions 

denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposure to exchange rate fluctuations arise. 

Volatility in exchange rates affects the Company’s revenue from export markets and the costs of 

imports, primarily in relation to raw materials. 



 
 

 

 

 

The Company seeks to minimise the effects of these risks by continuous monitoring and using 

derivative financial instruments to hedge risk exposures, wherever permissible and cost effective. 

The Company does not enter into or trade financial instruments, including derivatives for speculative 

purposes. 

 

Address for Correspondence: 

 
Investors can communicate at the following addresses: 

 

Kridhan Infra Limited 

203, Joshi Chambers, Ahmedabad Street,  

Carnac Bunder, Masjid (East),  

Mumbai- 400009 

Website: https://www.kridhan.com/ 

E-Mail: cs@kridhan.com 

Tel: 022-49749740 

 

Bigshare Services Private Limited 

 

Office No. S6-2, 6th Floor, Pinnacle Business Park,  

Next to Ahura Centre Mahakali Caves Road, Andheri (East),  

Mumbai – 400093, Maharashtra, India. 

Email: lawoo@bigshareonline.com 

Tel: 022- 6263 8200 

Website: www.bigshareonline.com 

Contact Person: Lawoo Keluskar 

SEBI Registration No.: INR000001385. 

 

 

Shareholding Pattern as on March 31, 2024: 

 

Category No. of Shareholders Total number 

of shares 

% to total 

shareholders 

Promoters 

 

4 4,46,91,160 47.15% 

Non- Promoters 

 

   

Mutual funds/UTI 

 

-- -- -- 

Foreign Portfolio Investors 

Category I 

3 41,80,428 4.41% 

Public Individuals 29999 3,82,17,504 40.33% 

Hindu Undivided Family 559 16,74,298 1.77% 

https://www.kridhan.com/
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Bodies Corporate  82 42,49,518 4.48% 

Non Resident Indians (NRI) 273 16,59,437 1.75% 

Others - Clearing Members 

 

9 1,06,860 0.11% 

Total 

 
30929 9,47,79,205 100.00 

 

 

Status of Dematerialization of Shares as on March 31, 2024: 

 

Particulars Record Percentage Shares % to Capital 

NSDL 12107 38.37% 26,272,536 27.72% 

CDSL 19440 61.61% 68,441,644 72.21% 

Physical 5 0.02% 65,025 0.07% 

Total 31552 100% 94,779,205 100% 

 

 

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND 

PROTECTION FUND  

 

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund by the Company pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 of the Act and Investor 

Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 

(IEPF Rules). 

 

 

VIII. OTHER DISCLOSURES 

 

i. Materially Significant Related Party Transactions: 

 

There were no materially significant transactions with related parties during the financial year 2023-

24 which may be in conflict with the interest of the Company. Suitable disclosure as required by the 

Accounting Standards (AS-18) has been made in the notes of the Financial Statements. 

 

The Board has approved a policy on Materiality of Related Party Transactions which also includes 

procedure to deal with Related Party Transactions and such policy has been uploaded on the 

Company’s website at https://www.kridhan.com/  
 

ii. Details of non-compliance: 

 

There were no instances of non-compliance by the Company and no penalties or strictures were 

imposed on the Company by the stock exchange or Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), 

or any statutory authority on any matter related to the capital markets during the last three years 

expect the remarks mentioned under Annexure B. 

 

iii. Establishment of Vigil Mechanism/Whistle blower policy: 

https://www.kridhan.com/


 
 

 

 

 

The Company has adopted Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy to report concerns about 

unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the company’s code of conduct. 

No personnel has been denied access to the audit committee. A copy of Vigil 

Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy of the Company has been uploaded on Company’s 

website at https://www.kridhan.com/ 

 

iv. Compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non-mandatory 

requirements: 

 

The Company has complied with all mandatory requirements as laid down in SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 

 

v. Web link where policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries is disclosed: 

 

The Company’s policy on determining material subsidiary is available on Company’s 

website at https://www.kridhan.com/ 
 

vi. Commodity Price Risk or Foreign Exchange Risk and Hedging activities: 

 

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk on account of import and export 

transactions. The Company is proactively mitigating these risks by entering into 

commensurate hedging transactions as per the Company’s Risk Management Policy. 

 

 

vii. Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions 

placement as specified under Regulation 32 (7A): Not Applicable 

 

viii. Certificate from Mr. Rinkesh Gala, proprietor of Rinkesh Gala & Associates 

Practicing Company Secretaries is attached (which forms integral part of this report) 

confirming that none of the directors on the board of the company have been debarred or 

disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the 

Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. 

 

ix. There was no such instance during FY 2023-24 when the board had not accepted any 

recommendation of any committee of the board. 
 

 

x. Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 

Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013: 

 

a) Number of complaints filed during the financial year: Nil 

b) Number of complaints disposed of during the financial year: Nil 

c) Number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year: Nil 

 

https://www.kridhan.com/
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xi. Disclosure by listed entity and its subsidiaries of ‘Loans and advances in the nature of loans 

to firms/companies in which directors are interested by name and amount:  

Not Applicable 

 

xii. Details of material subsidiaries of the listed entity; including the date and place of 

incorporation and the name and date of appointment of the statutory auditors of such 

subsidiaries: Not Applicable 

 

xiii. Non-compliance of any requirement of corporate governance report of sub-paras (2) to (10) 

above, with reasons thereof shall be disclosed: 
 

The Company has complied with all Corporate Governance requirements specified in 

Regulation 17 to 27 and Clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 

xiv. CEO and CFO Certification: 

 

The Managing Director/Chief Financial Officer has given a certificate to the Board as 

contemplated in Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 

iv. Code of Conduct: 

 

The Board of Directors has laid down a Code of Conduct for all the Board members and 

Senior Management of the Company to ensure adherence to a high ethical professional 

conduct by them in the discharge of their duties. All the Board members and Senior 

Management personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct for the year 

2023-24. 

 

 
The corporate governance report shall also disclose the extent to which the discretionary 

requirements as specified in Part E of Schedule II have been adopted.  

 

 

For and on behalf of the Board  

Kridhan Infra Limited 

 

____________           _____________ 

Gautam Suri 

Managing Director 

DIN: 08180233 

Anil Agrawal 

Chairman & Non-Executive Director  

DIN: 00360114 

 

Date: August 14, 2024 

Place: Mumbai 

 



 
 

 

 

Annexure to Corporate Governance Report 

Declaration regarding Compliance with the Code of Conduct 

In terms of the requirement of Part D of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, this is to confirm that all members of the Board and the senior 

management personnel have affirmed compliance with Code of Conduct of the Company for the 

financial year ended March 31, 2024. 

 

For and on behalf of the Board  

Kridhan Infra Limited 

 

____________           _____________ 

Gautam Suri 

Managing Director 

DIN: 08180233 

Anil Agrawal 

Chairman & Non-Executive Director  

DIN: 00360114 

 

Date: August 14, 2024 

Place: Mumbai 
 



 
 

 
 

 
Annexure to Corporate Governance Report 

Declaration regarding Compliance with the Code of Conduct 

In terms of the requirement of Part D of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, this is to confirm that all members of the Board and the senior 
management personnel have affirmed compliance with Code of Conduct of the Company for the 
financial year ended March 31, 2024. 

 

For and on behalf of the Board  
Kridhan Infra Limited 

 

____________           _____________ 

Gautam Suri 
Managing Director 
DIN: 08180233 

Anil Agrawal 
Chairman & Non-Executive Director  
DIN: 00360114 

 
Date: August 14, 2024 
Place: Mumbai 
 



 
Certificate of Non-Disqualification of Directors 

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10) (I) of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

 
To, 
The Members of 
Kridhan Infra Limited 
203, Joshi Chambers, Ahmedabad Street,  
Carnac Bunder, Masjid (East),  
Mumbai 400009 
 
We have examined the relevant Registers, Records, forms, returns and disclosures received 
from the Directors of Kridhan Infra Limited, having CIN: L27100MH2006PLC160602 and having 
registered office at 203, Joshi Chambers, Ahmedabad Street, Carnac Bunder, Masjid (East),  
Mumbai 400009 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before us by the Company 
for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with 
Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(I) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including 
Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in as considered 
necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company & its officers, we hereby certify 
that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year 
ending on 31st March, 2024 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or 
continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs, RBI or any such other Statutory Authority. 
 
Sr. No. Name of Director DIN Date of original 

Appointment 
1.  Mr. Anil Dhanpat Agrawal 00360114 21/03/2006 
2.  Mr. Gautam Joginderlal Suri 08180233 31/12/2021 
3.  Mr. Rishiraj 06683367 07/09/2023 
4.  Mr. Mahdav Deshpande 01537794 14/08/2020 
5.  Ms. Priya Dilipbhai Shah 07594589 15/04/2019 
6.  Mrs. Rachna Achal Daga 09311592 22/03/2024 

 
Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the 
responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
these based on our verification through digital mode. This certificate is neither an assurance as 
to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the 
management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 
 
for Rinkesh Gala & Associates 
Practicing Company Secretaries 
 
____________ 
Rinkesh Gala  
Proprietor 
ACS No.42486 | C.P. No.20128  
Peer Review No: 2768/2022  
UDIN: A042486F001117868 
 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: September 3, 2024 



 
 

Compliance Certificate on Corporate Governance 
 

To, 
The Members of 
KRIDHAN INFRA LIMITED 
203, Joshi Chambers, Ahmedabad Street,  
Carnac Bunder, Masjid (East),  
Mumbai 400009 
 
We have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by Kridhan Infra 
Limited (‘the Company’) for the year ended on March 31, 2024, as stipulated under Regulations 17 
to 27, clauses (b) to (i) and (t) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and para C, D & E of Schedule 
V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time (“SEBI Listing Regulations”). 
 
The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Company’s 
management. Our examination was limited to the review of procedures and implementation thereof, 
as adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance with conditions of Corporate Governance. It is 
neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the representations and 
explanations given to us, the disclosures made by the management in the Corporate Governance 
Report and to the stock exchanges and considering the relaxations granted by the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs and, Securities and Exchange Board of India, we certify that the Company has 
complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the SEBI Listing Regulations 
for the year ended on March 31, 2024. 
 
We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs 
of the Company. 
 
for Rinkesh Gala & Associates 
Practicing Company Secretaries 
 
____________ 
Rinkesh Gala  
Proprietor 
ACS No.42486 | C.P. No.20128  
Peer Review No: 2768/2022  
UDIN: A042486F001118000 
 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: August 14, 2024 



Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
To The Members of  
Kridhan Infra Limited 
 
Report on the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements 
 
Qualified Opinion 
We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Kridhan Infra Limited (“the 
Company”), which comprises of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss 
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of 
Cash Flow for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except 
for the effects/possible effects, if any, of the matters described in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion” 
paragraph of our report, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by 
the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) in the manner so required and give a true and 
fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act 
read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st 
March 2024, its loss (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for 
the year ended on that date. 
 
Basis for Qualified Opinion 
As explained in Note 56 to the Standalone Statement, the Company has not provided for any further 
interest liability on its outstanding Bank borrowings since they have continued to remain under NPA 
classification. 
 
In absence of any further detailed information and management’s estimates of reliefs and concessions 
to be obtained from Settlement proposals being pursued, we are unable to comment upon the resultant 
impact, if any, on the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024, which may 
arise on account of non-provision of interest, reliefs & concessions on borrowings as 
referred above. 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 
audit of the Standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made 
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the Code of Ethics.  
 



We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other 
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in Other Matter paragraph below, is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Standalone financial statements. 
 
Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern:  
We draw attention to Note No. 57 to the standalone financial statements which explains that the loss 
incurred in the current year and past years have resulted in erosion of Company’s Net worth. These 
condition along with the fact that the Company has continued to remain NPA with its lenders indicate 
the existence 
of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern. However, the standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a 
going concern basis for the reasons stated in Note No. 57 to the Standalone Financial Statements. 
 
Emphasis of Matter 
We draw attention to Note No. 39 of the standalone financial statements, wherein the Company has 
made an assessment of the realisability of its Trade receivables, Investments and Loans and Advances 
and based on such assessment, has reversed provisions on account of realization of Receivable of Rs. 
893.74 lakhs towards its outstanding trade receivables, Impairment Provision of Rs. 3,471.48 Lakhs 
towards its Investments and Loans and Advances. 
 
These amounts have been disclosed under Exceptional Items. 
 
Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters. 
 
Key Audit Matters 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in 
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context 
of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 
provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

Sr. 
No 

Key Audit Matters Auditor’s response 

Litigation and Claims 
1.  Litigation and claims are pending with multiple tax 

and regulatory authorities which have not been 
acknowledged as debt by the company. 
 
In the normal course of business, financial exposures 
may arise from pending legal / regulatory 
proceedings and from above referred claims not 
acknowledged as debt by the company. 
 
Whether a claim needs to be recognized as liability, 
disclosed as contingent liability or considered as 
remote in the Standalone financial statements is 
dependent on a number of significant assumptions 
and judgments. The amounts involved are potentially 

Our audit procedures included the 
following: 
 
Understood Management’s process 
and control for determining tax 
litigations and other litigations and 
claims and its appropriate; 
 
 
Tested key controls surrounding such 
litigations. Discussed pending 
matters with the Company’s legal 
department Assessed management’s 
conclusions through understanding 



significant and determining the amount, if any, to be 
recognized or disclosed in the financial statements, is 
inherently subjective. 
 
We have considered Litigations and claims as Key 
Audit Matter as it requires significant management 
judgment, including accounting estimates that 
involves high estimation uncertainty. 

precedents set in similar cases; 
 
We have assessed the 
appropriateness of presentation of the 
most significant contingent liabilities 
in the Standalone financial 
statements. 

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and auditor’s report thereon 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other information. The Other 
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s 
Report including Annexures to the Board report, Business responsibility Report, Corporate 
Governance report and Shareholder’s information, but does not include the standalone financial 
statement and our auditor’s report thereon. 
 
Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 
 
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
other information, we required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
 
Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements  
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act 
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view 
of the financial position, financial performance (including other comprehensive income), changes in 
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. 
 
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of 
the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Management is responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  



 
The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists.  
 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these Standalone financial statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk 
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control.  

 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are 
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal 
financial control system with reference to financial statements in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls.  

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.  

 Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 
report to the related disclosures in the Standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the entity to cease 
to continue as a going concern.  

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  

 
Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone financial statements that individually 
or in aggregate makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of 
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative 



factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work and (ii) to 
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Standalone financial statements. 
 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit.  
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards. 
 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the Standalone financial statements of the current period and 
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences 
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication. 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) Except for the matters stated in “Basis for Qualified Opinion” paragraph above, we have 
sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(b) Except for the matters stated in “Basis for Qualified Opinion” paragraphs above, in our 
opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the company so far as 
it appears from our examination of those books and records. 

(c) The Standalone Balance sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit & Loss (including other 
comprehensive income), Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone Cash 
Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

(d) Except for the effects / possible effects of matters described in the “Basis for Qualified 
Opinion” paragraphs above, in our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone financial statements 
comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.  

(e) On the basis of the written representation received from the directors as on March 31, 2024 
taken on records by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on March 
31, 2024 from being appointed as a Directors in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone 
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to 
our separate Report in Annexure “B”. 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the 
requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us, No remuneration has been paid to the directors by the Company. Hence, provisions of 
Section 197 of the Act does not apply. 



(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of 
our information and according to the explanations given to us:  
i. The standalone financial statements have disclosed the impact of the pending litigations on 

its financial position of the company and its associates. (Refer Note No. 42 to the 
standalone financial statements)  

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

iii. There has been delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 
(a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or 
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, 
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or 
invest in other persons or entities identified 
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or 
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 
(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 
have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entities 
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that 
the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries; and 
(c) Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in 
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 
representation under sub clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) of The Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014, as provided under (a) and (b) above, contains any material 
misstatement. 

 
For B.R. Kotecha & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Regn. No. 105283W 
 
 
 
CA Bakulesh R Kotecha 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 036309 
Mumbai, Date: 29th May, 2024 
UDIN: 24036309BKESRG9656 

 
 
 
 



 
Annexure “A” referred to in “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of 
our report to the members of Kridhan Infra Limited of even date: 
i. (a) In respect of Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and Intangible Assets: 
The Company has maintained proper records, showing full including quantitative details and situation 
of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and Intangible Assets. 
(b) As explained to us, the Company has a phased program for physical verification of the PPE. In our 
opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable, considering the size of the Company and nature of 
its PPE. A major portion of fixed assets have been physically verified by the management in 
accordance with the program of verification. According to the information and explanations given to 
us, the discrepancies noticed on such verification were properly dealt with in the books of account. 
(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination and 
records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than properties where the 
Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favors of the lessee) are held in 
the name of the Company. 
(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right of use assets) or 
intangible assets or both during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company. 
(e) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 
our examination of the records, neither any proceedings have been initiated during the year nor are 
pending as at March 31, 2024 for any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) 
Act, 1988, as amended, and rules made thereunder and hence reporting under clause 3(i)(e) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company. 
 
ii. (a) The Company does not carry any inventory as at March 31st, 2024 and therefore, clause 3(ii)(a) 
is not applicable to the Company. 
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, Company has not filed the quarterly 
statements with the bank and accordingly we are unable to comment upon the clause 3(ii)(b) of the 
order. 
 
iii. According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year, the Company has not 
made investments or granted loans and advances secured or unsecured or provided any guarantee or 
security to companies, firms, limited liability partnership or any other parties during the year and 
hence sub-clauses  
iii (a) to (f), under clause (iii) of the Order are not applicable. 
 
iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 
our examination of the records, the Company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 
of the Act, to the extent applicable with respect to the guarantee provided during the year. The 
Company has not granted any loans to parties covered under Section 185 of the Act. 
 
v. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no deposits or 
amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant 
provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 have been accepted by 
the Company and hence reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
 



vi. As per the information and explanations provided to us, we are of the opinion that the maintenance 
of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under subsection (1) of section 148 
of the Act for the company. 
 
vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including 
Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service 
tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the 
appropriate authorities. 
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in 
respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, service tax, sales-tax, duty of 
custom, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other material statutory dues 
were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became 
payable, except for Tax Deducted at Source of Rs 3.14 lakhs pertaining to FY 2023-24 & Rs 2 lakhs 
pertaining to FY 2022-23. 
(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are certain cases of applicable 
statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute, which are detailed hereunder: 

Nature of statue and 
Nature of Dues 

Forum where dispute is 
pending 

FY to which the 
amount relates 

Amount 
involved (Rs in 

Lacs) 
Sales Tax Deputy Commissioner of 

Sales Tax 
2009-10, 
2010-11, 
2016-17, 
2017-18 

1330 

Income Tax under Income 
Tax Act,1961 

Commissioner of Income 
Tax (Appeals) 

2011-12 637 

Commissioner of Income 
Tax (Appeals) 

2017-18 2 

 
viii. According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no transactions relating to 
previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in 
the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) and hence reporting under clause 
3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
 
ix. (a) Based on our audit procedures and on the basis of information and explanations given to us, the 
Company has defaulted in repayment of borrowings from Union Bank of India for a period of 1155 
days. The amount of default as at the balance sheet date is Rs. 2005 Lakhs.  
(b) The Company has not been declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or 
other lender. 
(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
taken any term loan during the year and hence, reporting under clause (ix)(c) of the Order is not 
applicable. 
(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall 
examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, funds raised by the Company on 
short term basis have not been utilized for long term purposes. 



(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the 
financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person 
on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries and hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) of 
the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
(f) Based on our audit procedures and on the basis of information and explanations given to us, during 
the year the Company has not raised any funds on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries and 
hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
 
x. (a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initialpublic offer or further public offer 
(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause (x)(a) of the Order is 
not applicable. 
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment, private placement of 
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year or in the recent past and hence 
reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
 
xi. (a) During our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in accordance 
with the generally accepted auditing practices in India and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud by or on the Company, 
noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of such case by the management. 
(b) During the year, no report under sub section 12 of Section 143 of the Act has been filed by us in 
Form ADT-4 as prescribed in rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) rules, 2014 with the Central 
Government. 
(c) Based on our audit procedures performed and according to the information and explanations given 
to us, no whistle blower complaints received during the year by the Company and hence reporting 
under clause 3 (xi) (c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
 
xii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not 
a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 
 
xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the Company, all the transactions with related parties are in compliance with section 177 
and 188 of the Act and all the details have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as 
required by the applicable Accounting Standard (Refer Note 37 to the standalone financial 
statements).  
 
xiv. (a) In our opinion, the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the 
size and nature of its business. 
(b) We have considered the internal audit reports for the year under audit issued to the Company 
during the year and till date, in determining nature, timing and extent of our audit procedure. 
 
xv. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any 
non-cash transactions prescribed under Section 192 of the Act with directors or persons connected 
with them during the year. 
 



xvi. (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of 
India Act, 1934 and hence reporting under clause 3(xvi) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable 
to the Company.  
(b) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the “Companies in the Group” as 
defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 and hence reporting 
under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
 
xvii. The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and has 
incurred cash loss of Rs 225 lakhs in the immediately preceding financial year. 
 
xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year. Hence 
reporting under Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.  
 
xix. As referred to in ‘Material uncertainty related to Going concern’ paragraph in our audit report and 
on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and 
payment of financial liabilities, other 
information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and 
Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, there 
exists a material uncertainty that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date 
of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. 
We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further 
state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any 
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance 
sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 
 
xx. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and the records 
examined by us, no amount was required to be spent by the Company on the activities of CSR, as per 
provisions of Companies Act, 2013. 
Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(xx) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.  
 
xxi. The reporting under clause 3(xxi) is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial 
statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said clause 
under this report. 
 
For B.R. Kotecha & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Regn. No. 105283W 
 
 
 
CA Bakulesh R Kotecha 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 036309 
Mumbai, Date: 29th May, 2024 
UDIN: 24036309BKESRG9656 
  



Annexure “B” referred to in “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of 
our report to the Members of the Kridhan Infra Limited of even date:  
 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statements 
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act 
 
We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of the 
Kridhan Infra Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the 
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential component of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under the Act. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s Internal Financial Controls with 
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance 
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act to the 
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate Internal Financial 
Controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effectively in all material respects. 
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. 
 
Our audit of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an 
understanding of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk 
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error. 
 



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial 
statements. 
 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements 
A Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes 
those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii)provide 
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the entity are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management; (iii) 
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, 
use, or disposition of the entity's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements 
Because of the inherent limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial 
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements to future periods 
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may 
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

 
Opinion 
In our opinion, the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
Company has, broadly in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with 
reference to financial statements and such Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial 
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential Component of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over financial 
reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
 
For B.R. Kotecha & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Regn. No. 105283W 
 
 
 
CA Bakulesh R Kotecha 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 036309 
Mumbai, Date: 29th May, 2024 
UDIN: 24036309BKESRG9656 



KRIDHAN INFRA LIMITED
CIN : L27100MH2006PLC160602
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property Plant and Equipment 5 1,699.18                                1,737.09                                
Right-of-Use-Assets 5(i) -                                          -                                          
Financial Assets

Investments 6 175.00                                    3,646.48                                
Other Financial Assets 7 7.26                                        24.32                                      

Deferred Tax Asset 8 6.62                                        4.80                                        
Total Non Current Assets 1,888.06                                5,412.68                                

Current Assets
Investments 9 6.44                                        6.44                                        
Financial Assets

Trade Receivables 10 49.39                                      395.59                                    
Cash and cash equivalent 11 64.35                                      45.38                                      
Other Balances with Banks 12 3.31                                        3.31                                        
Loans & Advances 13 -                                          2.50                                        

Other Current Assets 14 1,168.14                                188.19                                    
Total Current Assets 1,291.64                                641.42                                    

TOTAL ASSETS 3,179.69                                6,054.11                                

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity
    Equity Share Capital 15 1,895.58                                1,895.58                                
    Other Equity 16 -37,273.68                             -34,774.22                             
Total Equity -35,378.09                            -32,878.63                            

Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities

Lease Liabilities 17 -                                          -                                          
Other Financial Liabilities 18 71.13                                      71.13                                      

Provisions 19 1.91                                        1.91                                        
Total Non Current Liabilities 73.04                                      73.04                                      

Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities

Borrowings 20 2,744.91                                2,044.13                                
Lease Liabilities 21 -                                          -                                          
Trade Payables 22

                - total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 20.79                                      20.79                                      
                - total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and 
                  small enterprises 123.84                                    147.48                                    

Other Financial Liabilities 23 35,592.12                              36,603.19                              
Other Current Liabilities 24 3.09                                        44.11                                      
Total Current Liabilities 38,484.75                              38,859.70                              

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 3,179.69                                6,054.11                                

Significant accounting policies and Key accounting estimates and judgements 1-4
See accompanying notes to Standalone  Financial Statements 5-59

In terms of our report attached

For B.R. Kotecha & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN 105283W
Bakulesh R Kotecha Gautam Suri Mahdav Deshpande
Proprietor Managing Director Independent Director
M No. 036309 DIN: 08180233
UDIN: 24036309BKESRG9656 Hemant Agarwal Bhavesh Nagda
Place: Mumbai Company Secretary CFO
Date : 29th May 2024

 As at 31.03.2024 

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Kridhan Infra Limited 

(All amounts in Rupees Lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars
Note 
No.

 As at 31.03.2023 



KRIDHAN INFRA LIMITED
CIN : L27100MH2006PLC160602
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2024

Note Year Ended Year Ended 
No. 31-03-2024 31-03-2023

 
Income 
Revenue from operations 25 84.50                                    344.67                                  
Other income 26 89.58                                    74.91                                    
Total Income 174.08                                  419.58                                  

Expenses
Purchases 27 -                                        137.78                                  
Changes in inventories of traded goods 28                                           -                                             -   
Employee benefits expense 29 27.82                                    28.20                                    
Finance costs 30 7.35                                      2.72                                      
Depreciation and amortisation expense 5 37.92                                    54.07                                    
Other expenses 31 24.54                                    86.36                                    
Total Expenses 97.63                                    309.13                                  

Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax 76.46                                    110.45                                  
Exceptional items 32 -2,577.74                             -5,110.72                             
Profit / (Loss) before tax -2,501.28                             -5,000.27                             
Tax Expense:
Current tax
Tax adjustments relating to previous year -                                        2.78                                      
Deferred tax charge/ (credit) -1.83                                     24.50                                    
MAT Credit Utilised
Total Tax Expenses -1.83                                     27.28                                    

Profit (Loss) for the year -2,499.46                             -5,027.54                             

Other Comprehensive Income
A     (i)  Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss                                           -   

       Remeasurements - On post employment benefit plan - gratuity                                           -   

        (ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or                                             -   
              loss
B     (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss                                           -   

       (ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss                                           -   

Total Comprehensive Income for the year -2,499.46                             -5,027.54                             

Earnings per equity share: [Nominal Value per share: Rs.2 (2022 : Rs.2)] 39
   '    '-Basic EPS (in ₹) -2.64                                     -5.30                                     
   '    '-Diluted EPS (in ₹) -2.64                                     -5.30                                     
   '    '-Number of shares considered for Basic EPS 947.79                                  947.79                                  
   '    '-Number of shares considered for Diluted EPS 947.79                                  947.79                                  
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For B.R. Kotecha & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN 105283W
Bakulesh R Kotecha Gautam Suri Mahdav Deshpande
Partner Managing Director Independent Director
M No. 036309 DIN: 08180233
UDIN: 24036309BKESRG9656 Hemant Agarwal Bhavesh Nagda
Place: Mumbai Company Secretary CFO
Date : 29th May 2024

Particulars

(All amounts in Rupees Lakh, unless otherwise stated)

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Kridhan Infra Limited 



FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23

Cash flow from Operating Activities
Net Profit before tax and adjustment of extraordinary items net of prior year adjustment -2,501.28                        -5,000.27                        
Adjustments for :
      Depreciation 37.92                               53.95                               
      Interest and Dividend received -15.37                             -3.40                                
      Interest & Finance charges 7.35                                 2.72                                 
      Sundry Balance write off /(write back) -0.51                                -2.23                                
      Loss on scrapping of assets -                                   0.20                                 
      Exceptional Items 2,577.74                         5,110.72                         
Operating Profit before working capital changes 105.84                            161.69                            
Working Capital Changes / Adjustments for 
Inventories -                                   0.13                                 
Trade Receivables 1,058.64                         83.94                               
Loans & Advances and Other Assets -778.58                           120.98                            
Trade Payables & Other Current liabilities including provisions -1,075.73                        -221.21                           
Cash generated / used from operations -795.67                           -16.17                             
Direct Taxes -                                   -                                   
Net cash from (used in) Operating Activities (A) -689.82                           145.53                            
Cash flow From Investing Activities
Purchase of Property,Plant & Equipment (Net) -                                   -                                   
Interest and Dividend Received 15.37                               3.40                                 
Investment -                                   -0.26                                
Net Cash from (used in) Investing Activities (B) 15.37                               3.14                                 
Cash flow From Financing Activities:
Repayment of  Borrowings 700.78                            -105.49                           
Payment of Lease Liabilities -                                   -12.35                             
Interest and finance charges -7.35                                -2.72                                
Net cash from Financing Activities (C ) 693.43                            -120.56                           
Net Increase/Decrease in Cash or Cash Equivalent( A+B+C) 18.97                               28.11                               
Cash & Cash Equivalent at the beginning of the year 48.69                               20.59                               
Cash and Cash Equivalent at the end of the year 67.66                               48.69                               
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KRIDHAN INFRA LIMITED
CIN : L27100MH2006PLC160602
STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024



Significant accounting policies and explanatory notes to Standalone Financial Statements 
1 
 
 

Corporate Information 
Kridhan Infra Limited (‘Kridhan’ or ‘the Company’) is a public limited company domiciled 
and incorporated in India having its registered office at 203, Joshi Chambers, Ahmedabad 
Street, Carnac Bunder, Masjid. Mumbai- 400 009. The Company’s shares are listed and traded 
on Stock Exchanges in India. The Company is engaged in the business of trading in iron and 
steel and allied materials. 

  
2. Application of new Indian Accounting Standards 
2.1 All the Indian Accounting Standards issued under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) under the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) till the financial statements are authorized have been 
considered in preparation of these Financial Statements. 

  
2.2 Recent Accounting Pronouncements 
 Standards issued but not yet effective: 

In March 2023, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 which amended certain Ind AS as explained below:  
 
i. Ind AS 1 – Presentation of Financial Statements 

The amendment prescribes disclosure of material accounting policies instead of significant 
accounting policies. The impact of the amendment on the Financial Statements is expected to 
be insignificant basis the preliminary evaluation.  

 
ii.  Ind AS 8 – Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors –  
The amendment added definition of accounting estimate and clarifies what is accounting 
estimate and treatment of change in the accounting estimate and accounting policy. There is no 
impact of the amendment on the Financial Statements basis the preliminary evaluation.  
 

iii.  Ind AS 12 – Income taxes –  
The definition of deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability is amended to apply initial 
recognition exception on assets and liabilities that does not give rise to equal taxable and 
deductible temporary differences. There is no impact of the amendment on the Financial 
Statements basis the preliminary evaluation.  
 
The above amendments are effective from annual periods beginning on or after 1st April, 
2023. 

  
3. Significant accounting policies 
  
3.1 Statement of compliance 

In accordance with the notification dated 16th February, 2015, issued by the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs, the Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind 
AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) 
with effect from April 1, 2017. 
The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS notified under the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended).  

  
3.2 Basis of preparation 
 The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention on accrual basis 



except for certain assets that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as 
explained in the accounting policies below. 
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for 
goods and services. 
As the operating cycle cannot be identified in normal course, the same has been assumed to 
have duration of 12 months. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities have been classified as 
current or non-current as per the Company’s operating cycle and other criteria set out in Ind 
AS-1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ and Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. 
The Standalone Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees and all values are 
rounded off to the nearest lakhs except otherwise stated. 

 Fair value measurement 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date under current market 
conditions.  
The Company categorizes assets and liabilities measured at fair value into one of three levels 
depending on the ability to observe inputs employed in their measurement which are described 
as follows: 

(a) Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities. 

(b) Level 2 inputs are inputs that are observable, either directly or indirectly, other than 
quoted prices included within level 1 for the asset or liability.  

(c) Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability reflecting significant 
modifications to observable related market data or Company’s assumptions about 
pricing by market participants. 

  
3.3 Investments in subsidiaries and associates  
 The Company records the investments in subsidiaries and associates at cost less impairment 

loss, if any.  
On disposal of investment in subsidiary and associate, the difference between net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amounts (including corresponding value of dilution in deemed 
investment) are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
Interest free loans provided to subsidiary are recognized at amount paid on the date of 
disbursement.  

  
3.4 Property, Plant and Equipment  
 The Company had elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its Property, Plant and 

Equipment recognized as of April 1, 2016 (transition date) measured as per the Previous 
GAAP and used that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date except in 
respect of its Land which has been measured at Fair Value as on the transition date. 
Freehold land is not depreciated. 
Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) used for business purposes are carried at cost, less any 
accumulated depreciation and recognized impairment loss. The cost of an asset comprises its 
purchase price or its construction cost (net of applicable tax credits), any cost directly 
attributable to bring the asset into the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of 
operating in the manner intended by the Management. It includes professional fees and, for 
qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalized in accordance with the Company’s accounting 
policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of PPE when completed and 
ready for intended use. Parts of an item of PPE having different useful lives and significant 
value and subsequent expenditure on Property, Plant and Equipment arising on account of 
capital improvement or other factors are accounted for as separate components.  
Depreciation of PPE commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. 



Depreciation is provided over the useful life of PPE as stated in the Schedule II to the 
Companies Act, 2013 or based on technical assessment by the Company.  
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed periodically 
and if necessary, changes in estimates are accounted for prospectively. 
Depreciation on additions / deletions to PPE during the year is provided for on a pro-rata basis 
with reference to the date of additions/deletions except low value items not exceeding 
Rs. 5,000/- which are fully depreciated at the time of addition. 
An item of PPE is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal 
or retirement of an item of PPE is determined as the difference between the net sales proceeds 
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

  
3.5 Intangible Assets 
 Intangible assets acquired separately 

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less 
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is recognized on 
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives not exceeding five years from the date of 
capitalization. The estimated useful life is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and the 
effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for prospectively. 
Intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected 
from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are 
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the 
asset, and recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized. 

  
3.6 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets 
 The Company reviews the carrying amount of its tangible and intangible assets at the end of 

each reporting period to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have 
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset 
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).  
An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period to see if there are any indications 
that impairment losses recognized earlier may no longer exist or may have come down. The 
impairment loss is reversed, if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the 
asset’s recoverable amount since the previous impairment loss was recognized. If it is so, the 
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the lower of its recoverable amount and the 
carrying amount that have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been 
recognized for the asset in prior years. After a reversal, the depreciation charge is adjusted in 
future periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a 
systematic basis over its remaining useful life. Reversals of Impairment loss are recognized in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

  
3.7 Inventories comprising of saleable stock are valued at cost or Net Realizable Value, whichever 

is lower.  
  
 Consumable stock are valued at Cost. 
  
3.8 Revenue recognition 
(i) Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when control of the products being sold is 

transferred to our customer and when there are no longer any unfulfilled obligations. The 
Performance Obligations in our contracts are fulfilled at the time of dispatch, delivery or upon 
formal customer acceptance depending on terms with customers 



Revenue from services is recognized when the outcome of services can be estimated reliably 
and it is probable that the economic benefits associated with rendering of services will flow to 
the Company, and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and 
represents amounts receivable for goods and services provided in the normal course of 
business, net of discounts, volume rebates and any taxes or duties collected on behalf of the 
Government such as Goods and Services Tax, etc. Any retrospective revision in prices is 
accounted for in the year of such revision. 

(ii) Interest on Fixed Deposits is recognized on accrual basis. 
(iii) Income from sale of Scrap is accounted on cash basis. 
(iv) Dividend income from investments is recognized when the shareholder's right to receive 

payment is established. 
  
3.9 Foreign Exchange Transactions 
 The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupees which represents the currency of the 

primary economic environment in which it operates. 
Transactions in currencies other than the Company’s functional currency (foreign currencies) 
are recognized at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of 
each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated using 
mean exchange rate prevailing on the last day of the reporting period.  
Exchange differences on monetary items are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in 
the period in which they arise. 

  
3.10 Borrowing Cost  
 Interest/Finance Cost on loans specifically borrowed for and expansion of projects, up to the 

point when the project is ready for start of commercial production is charged to the capital cost 
of the projects concerned.  
All other borrowing costs are charged to revenue. 

  
3.11 Employee Benefits 
 Employee benefits include salaries, wages, provident fund, gratuity, and other terminal 

benefits. 
All short term employee benefits are recognized at their undiscounted amount in the 
accounting period in which they are incurred. 

 
Defined contribution plans 
Employee Benefit under defined contribution plans comprising provident fund is recognized 
based on the undiscounted amount of obligations of the Company to contribute to the plan. 
The same is paid to the EPFO and charged to the statement of profit and loss. 
 
Defined benefit plans 
Defined retirement benefit plans comprising of gratuity and other terminal benefits, are 
recognized based on the present value of defined benefit obligation which is computed using 
the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each 
annual reporting period. These are accounted either as current employee cost or included in 
cost of assets as permitted. 
 
The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the Financial Statements represents the actual 
deficit or surplus in the Company’s defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this 
calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of 



reductions in future contributions to the plans. 
  
3.12 Income Taxes 
 Income tax expense represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax. 

 
Current tax 
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 
‘profit before tax’ as reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss because of items of income 
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or 
deductible. The Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates and laws that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

 
Deferred tax 
Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabilities in the Financial Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the 
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable 
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible 
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available 
against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized.  
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be 
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. 
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the 
period in which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) 
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.  
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would 
follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to 
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.  

  
3.13 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 
 Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) 

as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the 
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 
The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to 
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and 
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows 
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash 
flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material). 
Contingent assets are disclosed in the Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts when 
an inflow of economic benefits is probable. 
Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts, 
unless possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefit is remote. 

  
3.14 Financial instruments 
 Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when Company becomes a party to the 

contractual provisions of the instruments.  
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs 
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial 
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, 



as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition 
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized 
immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

  
3.15 Equity instruments 
 Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received. 
  
3.16 Financial assets 
 (i) Cash and cash equivalents  

The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily 
convertible into known amounts of cash that are subject to an insignificant risk of 
change in value and having original maturities of three months or less from the date 
of purchase, to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist of balances 
with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage. 

 
(ii) Financial assets at amortised cost  

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective 
interest method if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective 
is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual 
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.  

 
(iii) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income  

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if 
these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is achieved by both 
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual 
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.  

 
The Company has made an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive 
income subsequent changes in the fair value of equity investments not held for 
trading.  
 

(iv) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss  
Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is 
measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income on 
initial recognition. 

 
(v) Impairment of financial assets  

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether a financial asset or a 
group of financial assets is impaired. Ind AS 109 requires expected credit losses to 
be measured through a loss allowance. The Company recognizes lifetime expected 
losses for trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction. For all 
other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to 12 
month expected credit losses or at an amount equal to lifetime expected losses, if 
the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial 
recognition. 

 
(vi) Derecognition of financial assets 

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash 
flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially 



all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.  
 
On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety (except for equity instruments 
designated as FVTOCI), the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the 
sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognized in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. 

  
3.17 Financial liabilities 
 a) Financial liabilities  

Financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest 
method. 

b) Derecognition of financial liabilities 
The Company derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the 
Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference 
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the 
consideration paid and payable is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

  
3.18 Earnings per share 
 Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted 

average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share is 
computed by dividing the profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares 
considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the weighted average number of 
equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity 
shares. 

3.19 Cash Flow Statement 
 Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit after tax is adjusted for the 

effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future 
operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing 
or financing cash flows. The cash flows are segregated into operating, investing and financing 
activities. 

  
3.20 Segment reporting 
 Operating segments are identified and reported taking into account the different risks and 

returns, the organization structure and the internal reporting systems. 
  
4. Critical Accounting Judgments, Assumptions and Key Sources of Estimation 

Uncertainty 
 Inherent in the application of many of the accounting policies used in preparing the Financial 

Statements is the need for Management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses. Actual outcomes could differ 
from the estimates and assumptions used.  
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and future 
periods are affected. 
Key source of judgments, assumptions and estimation uncertainty in the preparation of the 
Financial Statements which may cause a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabilities within the next financial year, are in respect of impairment, useful lives of 
Property, Plant and Equipment, employee benefit obligations, impairment, provision for 
income tax, measurement of deferred tax assets and contingent assets and liabilities. 



4.1 Critical judgments in applying accounting policies 
 The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (Note 4.2), 

that the Management have made in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies 
and that have the significant effect on the amounts recognized in the Financial Statements. 

 (a) Determination of functional currency 
Currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates (“the 
functional currency”) is Indian Rupee (Rs.) in which the Company primarily 
generates and expends cash. Accordingly, the Management has assessed its 
functional currency to be Indian Rupee (Rs.). 

 (b) Classification of investment  
Judgement is required in assessing the level of control obtained in a transaction to 
acquire an interest in another entity; depending upon the facts and circumstances in 
each case, the Company may obtain control, joint control or significant influence 
over the entity or arrangement. Transactions which give the Company control of a 
business are business combinations. If the Company obtains joint control of an 
arrangement, judgement is also required to assess whether the arrangement is a joint 
operation or a joint venture. If the Company has neither control nor joint control, it 
may be in a position to exercise significant influence over the entity, which is then 
classified as an associate. 

  
4.2 Assumptions and key sources of estimation uncertainty 
 Information about estimates and assumptions that have the significant effect on recognition 

and measurement of assets, liabilities, income and expenses is provided below. Actual results 
may differ from these estimates. 

 (a) Impairment of assets 
Determination as to whether, and by how much, asset is impaired involves 
Management estimates on uncertain matters such as future prices, the effects of 
inflation on operating expenses, discount rate etc.  
 

(b) Litigations 
From time to time, the Company is subject to legal proceedings and the ultimate 
outcome of each being always subject to many uncertainties inherent in litigation. A 
provision for litigation is made when it is considered probable that a payment will be 
made and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Significant judgment is 
made when evaluating, among other factors, the probability of unfavourable outcome 
and the liability to make a reasonable estimate of the amount of potential loss. 
Provision for litigations are reviewed at the end of each accounting period and 
revisions made for the changes in facts and circumstances. 

 
 



Kridhan Infra Limited
Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 Mar, 2024

5 Property, Plant and Equipment
(All amounts in Rupees Lakh, unless otherwise stated)

 Land & Land 
Development 

 Factory 
Building 

 Plant & 
Machineries 

 Computer &  
Accessories 

 Furnitures & 
Fixtures 

 Vehicles  Total 

Gross Carrying Amount :
Deemed Cost
Balance as at March 31, 2022 1,475.48            87.62                 1,218.77            72.84                 49.63                 18.24                 2,922.59           

Add: Additions -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
Less: Disposals / Impairment -                      -                      200.00               -                      -                      -                      200.00               

Balance as at March 31, 2023 1,475.48           87.62                 1,018.77           72.84                 49.63                 18.24                 2,722.59           
Add: Additions -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
Less: Disposals / Impairment -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

Balance as at March 31, 2024 1,475.48           87.62                 1,018.77           72.84                 49.63                 18.24                 2,722.59           

Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment
Balance as at March 31, 2022 -                      55.37                 755.16               68.49                 43.61                 15.55                 938.19               

Add: Additions -                      3.82                    40.75                 0.41                    0.58                    1.73                    47.30                 
Less: Disposals / Impairment -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

Balance as at March 31, 2023 -                      59.20                 795.91               68.90                 44.19                 17.28                 985.49               
Add: Additions -                      2.67                    33.06                 0.24                    0.99                    0.96                    37.92                 
Less: Disposals / Impairment -                      -                      -                      -                      

Balance as at March 31, 2024 -                      61.87                 828.98               69.14                 45.18                 18.24                 1,023.41           

Net Carrying Amount 
Balance as at March 31, 2022 1,475.48           32.25                 463.61               4.35                    6.01                    2.69                    1,984.40           
Balance as at March 31, 2023 1,475.48           28.43                 222.86               3.93                    5.43                    0.96                    1,737.09           
Balance as at March 31, 2024 1,475.48           25.76                 189.80               3.70                    4.45                    -                      1,699.18           
Note:

5(i) Right of Use Assets

Particulars
 As at 31st 

March 2024 
 As at 31st 

March 2023 
Opening Balance -                      -                      
Additions                         -                           -   
Deletions                         -                           -   
Amortization                         -                           -   
Closing Balance                         -                           -   

Particulars
Tangible

5.1: Land has been mortgaged for the purpose of availing borrowing from banks by the company.



Note 
No.

 As at 31.03.2024  As at 31.03.2023 

6 Investments
Investments in Unlisted Equity Instruments of subsidiaries :
Cost / Deemed Cost 3,056.12                       3,056.12                       

Investments in Unlisted Preference Shares of subsidiaries :
Cost / Deemed Cost * 8,212.41                       8,212.41                       
Investments in Subsidiary 11,268.53                     11,268.53                     
Less: Provision for impairment 11,268.53                     11,268.53                     
Carrying amount of Investments in subsidiary -                                 -                                 

Investments in Unlisted Equity Instruments of Associates
Cost / Deemed Cost 9,841.70                       9,841.70                       
Additons during the year
Disposal and / or Impairment 6,370.22                       6,370.22                       
Share of profit accrued (Net) -3,471.48                     -                                 
Balance as at the year end -                                 3,471.48                       

Other Investment(s) in Associates and Subsidiary 1,232.08                       1,413.89                       
Less: Provision for impairment 1,057.08                       1,238.89                       
Carrying amount of Investments 175.00                          175.00                          

Total 175.00                          3,646.48                       

7  As at 31.03.2024  As at 31.03.2023 
Security Deposit 7.21                               24.32                             
Retention Deposit 39.03                             38.98                             
Less: Impairment for doubtful receivable -38.98                           -38.98                           

7.26                               24.32                             

8  As at 31.03.2024  As at 31.03.2023 

                               6.62                                4.80 
                                    -   
                                    -   

6.62                               4.80                               

9 Current Investmemts As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023

6.44                               6.44                               
6.44                               6.44                               

50,000.00                     50,000.00                     
5.00                               5.00                               

10 Trade Receivables As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023

Unsecured
Considered good 49.39                             395.59                          
Considered doubtful 1,038.20                       1,750.13                       
Less: Impairment for doubtful receivable -1,038.20                     -1,750.13                     

49.39                             395.59                          

Kridhan Infra Limited
Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 Mar, 2024

(All amounts in Rupees Lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Other Financial Assets

Deferred Tax Asset

Particulars

(Refer Note No. 34 for details of Subsidiaries and Associates)
*represents conversion of loan amount into preference shares

Unquoted, at fair value
In Debt Scheme of Mutual Funds

Details of Investments:
Particulars

 Unquoted Investments 
 Investments in Mutual funds (Fair value through profit or loss) 
     '- Union BankCorporate Debt Fund
No. of Units 
Cost ₹ In Lakhs

Component of Deferred Tax Liability
Component of Deferred Tax Asset

 Arising on account of: 

 Difference between written down value of fixed assets as per the books of accounts and Income Tax Act, 1961 
 Lease liability amortisation 
 Provision 



Particulars
 Less than 6 

Months 
 6 Months to 1 

Years 
 1-2 Years  2-3 Years  More than 3 Years 

Undisputed Trade Receivable
Considered good                   49.39                                 -                                           -                                       -                                       -   
Which have significant increase in credit risk                          -                                   -                                           -                                       -                                       -   
Credit Impaired                          -                                   -                                           -                                       -                                       -   
Disputed Trade Receivable
Considered good                          -                                   -                                           -                                       -                                       -   
Which have significant increase in credit risk                          -                                   -                                           -                                       -                                       -   
Credit Impaired                          -                                   -                                           -                                       -                                       -   

49.39                 -                             -                                     -                                 -                                 

Particulars
 Less than 6 

Months 
 6 Months to 1 

Years 
 1-2 Years  2-3 Years  More than 3 Years 

Undisputed Trade Receivable
Considered good                395.59                                 -                                           -                                       -                                       -   
Which have significant increase in credit risk                          -                                   -                                           -                                       -                                       -   
Credit Impaired                          -                                   -                                           -                                       -                                       -   
Disputed Trade Receivable
Considered good                          -                                   -                                           -                                       -                                       -   
Which have significant increase in credit risk                          -                                   -                                           -                                       -                                       -   
Credit Impaired                          -                                   -                                           -                                       -                                       -   

395.59               -                             -                                     -                                 -                                 

11 Cash and Cash Equivalents As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023
Balances with Banks:
     ' In current account 32.05                             20.04                             
     ' In deposit account 31.53                             21.09                             

Cash on hand 0.77                               4.25                               
64.35                             45.38                             

12 Bank Balances other than (10) above As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023
     ' In Dividend account 3.31                               3.31                               

3.31                               3.31                               

13 Loans & Advances As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023
Unsecured, considered good:
To Related Parties:
Loan to Subsidiary 1,516.75                       1,516.75                       
Loan to Associate 94.29                             94.29                             
Dividend from Subsidiaries 25.62                             25.62                             

1,636.66                       1,636.66                       
Less : Provision for Impairment of receivables* 1,636.66                       1,636.66                       
Carrying amount -                                 -                                 

To Others:
Inter Corporate Deposits given 1,211.96                       1,211.96                       
Less : Provision for Doubtful debts of receivables 1,211.96                       1,211.96                       

-                                 -                                 
Loans to Other concerns 534.20                          534.20                          
Less : Provision for Doubtful debts of receivables 534.20                          534.20                          
Staff Advances -                                 2.50                               

-                                 2.50                               

-                                 2.50                               

Trade Receivable Ageing As at 31 March 2023

Total

Total

10.1: The average credit period on sales is 60 - 90 days. 
10.2: There is no single party concentration of the receivables.
10.3: Further, based on assessement made by the management, depending on the past history, management does not expect any material loss on realisation of 
these receivables except for some provision made in the accounts. Based on its assessment and depending upon the realisability of the debts, management has 
made provision for some old receivables which are no doubtful to be received.

* represents amounts of Rs. 15.42 crs. receivable from Singapore subsidiary company which is under liquidation process for which provision has been made 
on a prudent basis, pending outcome of the said process.

Trade Receivable Ageing As at 31 March 2024



14 Other Current Assets As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023
Advances to Suppliers / Other receivables 60.56                             106.31                          
Less : Provisions for Impairment -11.26                           -11.26                           
Advance Income Tax, TDS and Others (net) 36.47                             26.20                             
Prepaid Expenses -                                 -                                 
Paid Towards OTS to lenders 1,037.00                       -                                 
Balance with Government Authorities 45.37                             66.94                             

1,168.14                       188.19                          

15 Equity Share Capital As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023
Authorised Share Capital
10,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 2 each 2,000.00                       2,000.00                       

Issued, Subscribed & Paid up share capital
As at the beginning of the year 1,895.58                       1,895.58                       
Closing Equity share capital 1,895.58                       1,895.58                       

15.1

Particulars

Balance at March 31, 2024 9,47,79,205.00           
Balance at March 31, 2023 9,47,79,205.00           

15.2

15.3 Shareholders holding more than 5% shares
Name of the shareholder No. of shares % No. of shares %
Anil Agrawal 2,62,60,160             27.71% 2,62,60,160.00           27.71%
Krish Steel & Trading Private Limited              1,13,81,000 12.01% 1,13,81,000.00           12.01%
Kridhan Petrochemicals Private Limited 70,00,000                7.39% 70,00,000.00               7.39%

Equity Shares of Re.2 each held by:
1 Anil Agrawal 2,62,60,160             -                                     2,62,60,160.00           0%
2 Krishnadevi Agrawal 50,000                      -                                     50,000.00                     0%
3 Krish Steel & Trading Private Limited 1,13,81,000             -                                     1,13,81,000.00           0%
4 Kridhan Petrochemicals Private Limited 70,00,000                -                                     70,00,000.00               0%

Equity Shares of Re.2 each held by:
1 Anil Agrawal 2,62,60,160             -                                     2,62,60,160.00           0%
2 Krishnadevi Agrawal 50,000                      -                                     50,000.00                     0%
3 Krish Steel & Trading Private Limited 1,13,81,000             -                                     1,13,81,000.00           0%
4 Kridhan Petrochemicals Private Limited 70,00,000                -                                     70,00,000.00               0%

16 Other Equity As at 31.03.2024  As at 31.03.2023 
(i)

25,892.04                     25,892.04                     
-                                 
-                                 

25,892.04                    25,892.04                    

(ii)
606.25                          606.25                          

-                                 -                                 
606.25                          606.25                          

As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023

Name of Promoter

 % Change in
shareholding

during
the year to
total shares 

Details of shares held by Promoter as at 31/03/2024:

Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding as at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Terms / Rights attached to Equity Shares

Details of shares held by Promoter as at 31/03/2023:
 % Change in
shareholding

during
the year to
total shares 

No. of Shares held 
At the Beginning 

of the year

Sale/Transfer During 
the Year

 No. of Shares held 
At the End of the 

year 

Name of Promoter
No. of Shares held 
At the Beginning 

of the year

Sale/Transfer During 
the Year

 No. of Shares held 
At the End of the 

year 

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ₹ 2 per share.  Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The 
dividend proposed, if any, by the Board of Directors shall be subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all 
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Capital Reserves
Opening Balance
Additions during the year
Closing Balance as at the year end

Securities Premium 
Opening Balance
Additions during the year
Utilisation during the year
Closing Balance as at the year end



(iii)
-61,272.50                   -56,244.96                   

-2,499.46                     -5,027.54                     

-63,771.96                   -61,272.50                   

-37,273.68                   -34,774.22                   

17 Lease Liability  As at 31.03.2024  As at 31.03.2023 
 Lease Liabilities                                     -   -                                 

-                                 -                                 

18 Other Financial Liabilities  As at 31.03.2024  As at 31.03.2023 
Retention Payable 71.13                             71.13                             

71.13                             71.13                             

19 Provisions  As at 31.03.2024  As at 31.03.2023 
Provision for Employee Benefits: 1.91                               1.91                               

1.91                               1.91                               

20 Borrowings  As at 31.03.2024  As at 31.03.2023 
Secured
-From Banks
Secured Working Capital facilities from Bank 2,004.75                       2,004.75                       

Unsecured
-From Related Parties
Loan from Directors & relatives 39.38                             39.38                             
Inter Corporate Deposits Taken 700.78                          

2,744.91                       2,044.13                       

21  As at 31.03.2024  As at 31.03.2023 
 Lease Liability                                     -   -                                 

-                                 -                                 

22 Trade Payables  As at 31.03.2024  As at 31.03.2023 
(a) Due to Micro and Small Enterprises 20.79                             20.79                             
(b) Others 123.84                          147.48                          

144.63                          168.27                          

Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities:
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-120 days terms.

Trade Payables Ageing As at 31 March 2024
 Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years  More than 3 Years 

(i) MSME -                             -                                     20.79                             -                                 
(ii) Others 3.26                           4.82                                   39.90                             
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME -                             -                                     -                                 -                                 
(iv) Disputed dues - Others -                             -                                     -                                 75.86                             

3.26                           4.82                                   60.69                             75.86                             

Trade Payables Ageing As at 31 March 2023
 Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years  More than 3 Years 

(i) MSME -                             20.79                                 -                                 -                                 
(ii) Others 39.00                         39.90                                 -                                 -                                 
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME -                             -                                     -                                 -                                 
(iv) Disputed dues - Others 2.00                           -                                     -                                 66.58                             

41.00                         60.69                                 -                                 66.58                             

Particulars

Total

Particulars

Total

Lease Liability

 Capital Reserve as on 01-Apr-2021 represents the amount of share warrant money received which has been forfeited since the balance amount due as call 
money on these share warrants were not paid. 

 i)    Working facilities are secured by Equitable Mortgage of the Factory Land & Building Situated at Village Vanwathe, Khopoli, Taluka, Khalapur, Raigad, 
Maharashtra. Further, secured by charge on Plant & Machineries of the company. Also secured by office premises of the Director.

 ii)    Further secured by Personal Guarantee of Director Mr. Anil Agrawal . 

Closing Balance as at the year end

Balance in Statement of Profit and Loss / Retained Earnings
Opening Balance

 Add: Profit for the year 
 Add: Unammortized Transaction cost/ other adjustments 



Disclosure relating to suppliers registered under MSMED Act based on the information available with the Company:
Particulars  As at 31.03.2024  As at 31.03.2023 

-                                 

-                                 

-                                 
-                                 

-                                 

23 Other Financial Liabilities  As at 31.03.2024  As at 31.03.2023 
Payable due to Guarantees Invoked 35,421.60                     36,474.99                     
Advance from Customers 67.68                             25.36                             
Other Financial Liabilities 102.85                          102.85                          

35,592.12                    36,603.19                    

24 Other Current Liabilities  As at 31.03.2024  As at 31.03.2023 
Statutory Dues 3.09                               44.11                             

3.09                               44.11                             

(e) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the
interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act.

(a) Amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year:
(b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, along with the amount of the
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year.
(c) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act.
(d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year.



25 Revenue From Operations

Particulars
 Year Ended 
31-03-2024 

 Year Ended 
31-03-2023 

Sale of Goods 84.50             344.67           
Other Operating Income -                  -                  
Total              84.50            344.67 

26 Other Income

Particulars
 Year Ended 
31-03-2024 

 Year Ended 
31-03-2023 

Interest Income 15.37             3.40                
Other Income 74.22             71.51             
Total              89.58              74.91 

27 Purchases

Particulars
 Year Ended 
31-03-2024 

 Year Ended 
31-03-2023 

Purchases -                  137.78           
Total                     -              137.78 

28 Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and traded goods

Particulars
 Year Ended 
31-03-2024 

 Year Ended 
31-03-2023 

Inventory at the beginning of the year -                  -                  
Inventory at the end of the year -                                      -   
Total                     -                       -   

29 Employee Costs

Particulars
 Year Ended 
31-03-2024 

 Year Ended 
31-03-2023 

Salaries and Wages 27.82             28.20             
Total              27.82              28.20 

30 Finance Cost

Particulars
 Year Ended 
31-03-2024 

 Year Ended 
31-03-2023 

Interest & Discounting Charges paid to Bank(s) and FI                 0.98 -                  
Interest on delay payment of taxes                 6.30 0.51                
Interest on Lease Liabilities                     -   1.83                
Bank Charges 0.06                0.38                
Total                 7.35                 2.72 

Kridhan Infra Limited
Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 Mar, 2024

(All amounts in Rupees Lakh, unless otherwise stated)



31 Other Expenses

Particulars
 Year Ended 
31-03-2024 

 Year Ended 
31-03-2023 

Rent Rates and Taxes 0.63                43.54             
Legal & Professional Fees 32.63             25.89             
Transportation Charges -                  -                  
Audit Fees -                  2.50                
Security Charges -                  -                  
Membership & Subscription Fees -                  -                  
Travelling & Conveyance 3.57                2.74                
Office Expenses 0.84                0.52                
Repairs & Maintainance -                  -                  
Electricity Charges -                  0.89                
Telephone & Internet Charges 0.28                0.92                
Loss on sale / scrapping of Fixed Assets -                  -                  
Other Expense -13.40            9.36                

Total 24.54             86.36             

32 Exceptional Items*

Particulars
 Year Ended 
31-03-2024 

 Year Ended 
31-03-2023 

Corporate Guarantee Invoked                     -   3,292.48        

Impairment of Loans and advances and other recoverables from others           -893.74 1,618.23        
Receipts from written off accounts
Impairment of Investment in Associate 3,471.48        -                  
Impairment of Plant,Property & Equipment (Refer Note no 55) -                  200.00           
Total         2,577.74         5,110.72 

*As in earlier year, the management has decided to write-off some old receivables and Investments which 
are not being collected despite considerable time lag and follow up.  Such write-off have been shown under 
exceptional items.



Kridhan Infra Limited
Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 Mar, 2024
(All amounts in Rupees Lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Statement of Changes in Equity

i) Equity Share Capital
(All amounts in Rupees Lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  Amount 
Balance as at 31st March, 2022                    1,895.58 
Changes in equity share capital during the year                                -   
Balance as at 31st March, 2023                    1,895.58 
Changes in equity share capital during the year                                -   
Balance as at 31st March, 2024                    1,895.58 

ii) Other Equity -                             

 Securities 
Premium 

 Capital Reserve  Retained Earnings  Total 

 Balance as at March 31, 2022 25,892.04                 606.25                      -56,244.96                -29,746.67                
 Profit for the period -                             -                             -5,027.54                  -5,027.54                  
 Balance as at March 31, 2023 25,892.04                 606.25                      -61,272.50                -34,774.22                
 Profit for the period -                             -                             -2,499.46                  -2,499.46                  
 Balance as at March 31, 2024 25,892.04                 606.25                      -63,771.96                -37,273.68                

Particulars
 Reserves and Surplus 



33 

A Calculation of fair values

i

ii

a. Financial Assets

Particulars
FVOCI (Equity 
instruments)

FVOCI (Other 
instruments)

FVTPL
Instruments 

carried at 
amortized cost

Total Fair 
Value

Total 
Carrying 

Value
As at 31st March, 2024

(i)     Investments -                          -                   -           181.44                  181.44      181.44     
(ii)   Other financial assets -                          -                   -           7.26                       7.26          7.26         
(iii)  Trade receivables -                          -                   -           49.39                     49.39        49.39       
(iv)   Cash and cash equivalents -                          -                   -           64.35                     64.35        64.35       
(v)    Other Balances with Banks -                          -                   -           3.31                       3.31          3.31         
Total -                          -                   -           305.75                  305.75      305.75     

As at 31st March, 2023
(i)     Investments -                          -                   -           3,652.92               3,652.92  3,652.92  
(ii)   Other financial assets -                          -                   -           24.32                     24.32        24.32       
(iii)  Trade receivables -                          -                   -           395.59                  395.59      395.59     
(iv)   Cash and cash equivalents -                          -                   -           45.38                     45.38        45.38       
(v)    Other Balances with Banks -                          -                   -           3.31                       3.31          3.31         
Total -                          -                   -           4,121.53               4,121.53  4,121.53  

b. Financial Liabilities

Particulars
Fair value 

through profit & 
loss

At amortized 
cost*

Total 
carrying 
amount

Total Fair Value

As at 31st March, 2024
         (i)  Borrowings -                          2,745               2,745       2,745                     
         (ii) Other  financial liabilities -                          35,663             35,663     35,663                   
         (ii) Trade payables -                          145                  145           145                        
Total -                          38,553             38,553     38,553                   

As at 31st March, 2023
         (i)  Borrowings -                          2,044               2,044       2,044                     
         (ii) Other  financial liabilities -                          36,674             36,674     36,674                   
         (ii) Trade payables -                          168                  168           168                        
Total -                          38,887             38,887     38,887                   

c. Fair value hierarchy

The details of significant accounting policies, including criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenditure are
recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed below and Note 3.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values of financial
instruments:

The fair value of the long-term borrowings carrying floating-rate of interest is not impacted due to interest rate changes and will not be significantly different
from their carrying amounts as there is no significant change in the under-lying credit risk of the Company (since the date of inception of the loans).

Cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, investments in term deposits, other financial assets, trade payables, and other financial liabilities have fair
values that approximate to their carrying amounts due to their short-term nature.

Instruments carried at fair value

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

 (All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless 
otherwise stated) 

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and/or disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation techniques:

*The carrying value and fair value approximation, if any.

KRIDHAN INFRA LIMITED
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Contd.)

Financial Assets and Liabilities
The accounting classification  of each category  of financial instruments, and their carrying amounts are set out as below:

Financial instruments



As at 31st March, 2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Assets at Fair Value
Investments in Equity and Preference Shares -                          -                   175.00     175.00                  
Investment in Mutual Funds 6.44                        -                   -           6.44                       

As at 31st March, 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Assets at Fair Value
Investments in Equity and Preference Shares -                          -                   3,646.48  3,646.48               
Investment in Mutual Funds 6.44                        -                   -           6.44                       

The below table summarises the categories of financial assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 measured at fair value:

• Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of
observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable,
the instrument is included in level 2.

The categories used are as follows:

• Level 1: It includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices and the mutual funds are measured using the closing Net Asset Value (NAV).

• Level 3:  inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).



Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024

34 Details of Investments in Subsidiaries and Associates made by the company

Readymade Steel Singapore Pte Limited. General 
wholesale trade

Singapore 100.00% 100.00%

Cost of Investments held in unlisted equity shares *                2,963.42                2,963.42 

Cost of Investments held in unlisted preference shares*                8,212.41                8,212.41 

Kridhan Infra Solutions Private Limited Services in Civil 
Engg

India 100.00% 100.00%

Cost of Investments held in unlisted equity shares (face 
value of Rs.10 each)*

                     92.70                      92.70 

*Above Investments have been fully impaired

Vijay Nirman Company Private Limited All types of civil 
projects

India 41.47% 41.47%

Cost of Investments held in unlisted equity shares (face 
value Rs. 10 each)*

               9,841.70                9,841.70 

35 Capital management

Amount in ₹ Lakhs
 Particulars  March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023 
Borrowings (Note 19) 2,744.91               2,044.13               
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 12) 64.35                     45.38                     
Less: Other Bank Balances (Note 12i) 3.31                       3.31                       
Net debt                2,677.24                1,995.44 

Total Equity             -35,378.09             -32,878.63 
Gearing ratio (%)                       -7.57                       -6.07 

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity
reserves attributable to the equity holders of the company. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to
maximise the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements
of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company's policy is to keep optimum gearing ratio. The Company includes within net
debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents, excluding discontinued
operations.

*Above Investments have been Fully impaired(Partially impaired in PY)

Name of Associate Principal activity
Place of 

incorporation 
and principal 

Proportion of ownership interest/ 
As at March 31, 

2024
As at March 31, 

2023

(All amounts in Rupees Lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Name of subsidiary Principal activity
Place of 

incorporation 
and principal 

Proportion of ownership interest/ 
As at March 31, 

2024
As at March 31, 

2023



36 Financial risk management objectives and policies (All amounts in Rupees Lakh, unless otherwise stated)

A) Credit Risk

i)   Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business,
ii)  Actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the counterparty,

The Company considers whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each
reporting period. It considers available reasonable and supportive forward-looking information.
Macroeconomic information (such as regulatory changes, market interest rate or growth rates) are also considered as part of
the internal credit management system.

iv) Significant changes in the value of the collateral supporting the obligation or in the quality of the third-party guarantees or 
credit enhancements.
Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectations of recovery. Where loans or receivables have been
written off, the Company continues engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries
are made, these are recognized in statement of profit & loss.

For other financial assets, the Company assesses and manages credit risk based on internal control and credit management
system. The finance function consists of a separate team who assess and maintain an internal credit management system.
Internal credit control and management is performed on a Company basis for each class of financial instruments with different
characteristics.

In performing its operating, investing and financing activities, the Company is exposed to the
 -Credit risk; 
-Market Risk;
-Interest Rate;
-Liquidity risk 

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are
reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management
framework.

Credit risk arises from the possibility that the value of receivables or other financial assets of the Company may be impaired
because counterparties cannot meet their payment or other performance obligations.

To manage credit risks from trade receivables other than Related Party, the credit managers from Order to Cash department of
the Company regularly analyse customer’s receivables, overdue and payment behaviours. Some of these receivables are
collateralised and the same is used according to conditions. These could include advance payments, security deposits, post-
dated cheques etc. Credit limits for this trade receivables are evaluated and set in line with Company’s internal guidelines.
There is no significant concentration of default risk.
Credit risks from financial transactions are managed independently by Finance department. For banks and financial institutions,
the Company has policies and operating guidelines in place to ensure that financial instrument transactions are only entered
into with high quality banks and financial institutions. The Company had no other financial instrument that represents a
significant concentration of credit risk. 
The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis through out each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase
in credit risk the Company compares the risk of default occurring on asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at
the date of initial recognition. It considers reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information such as:

iii) Financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the counterparty’s ability to meet its 
obligations,



Credit risk on Financial Assets

B)Market Risk

'Carrying amount of Financial Assets and Liabilities:
Financial assets (carried at amortised cost) :

 March 31, 
2024 

 March 31, 
2023 

Loans                         -                      2.50 
Trade receivable                  49.39                395.59 
Cash and cash equivalents                  64.35                  45.38 
Other Balances with Banks                    3.31                    3.31 
Other Financial Assets                    7.26                  24.32 
At end of the period                124.31                468.61 

Particular

A default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails to make payments as per contract. This definition of default is
determined by considering the business environment in which entity operates and other macro-economic factors.

The Company measures the expected credit loss of trade receivables from individual customers based on historical trend,
industry practices and the business environment in which the entity operates. Loss rates are based on actual credit loss
experience and past trends. Based on the historical data, no additional provision has been considered necessary in respect of
trade receivables since the management has taken suitable measures to recover the said dues and is hopeful of recovery in due
course of time. However, inresult of the best efforts made by management, some receivables which were continuing since
earlier years realised due to which an amount of 712 lakhs (Previous Year -284 lakhs) has been reversed during the year and
provision for bad debts for an amount of Rs.  712 lakhs (Previous Year Rs. -200 lakhs) has been reversed.
The Company maintains exposure in cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks, investments, and other financial assets.
Individual risk limits are set for each counter-party based on financial position, credit rating and past experience. 
Credit limits and concentration of exposures are actively monitored by the Management of the Company. 
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets. 
Additionally, considering the COVID 19 situation, the Company has also assessed the performance and recoverability of trade
receivables. The Company believes that the current value of trade receivables reflects the fair value/ recoverable values. 

The company is primarily engaged in the business of trading in Iron and Steel. Payments by it are typically not secured by any
form of credit support such as letters of credit, performance guarantees or escrow arrangements. Credit risk is the risk that
counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to
credit risk from its operating activities and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks, foreign exchange
transactions and other financial  instruments.
Financial assets that are potentially subject to concentrations of credit risk and failures by counter-parties to discharge their
obligations in full or in a timely manner consist principally of Trade Receivables, Loans and Advances and other assets. Credit
risk on cash balances with Bank are limited because the counterparties are entities with acceptable credit ratings. The
exposure to credit risk for trade receivable is low as it mainly consists of customers who are assessed by the management and
the collection is received on timely basis within the credit period which is about 60 to 90 days. 

The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the Balance Sheet at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 
2023 is the carrying amounts.
The average credit period taken to settle trade payables is about 30 to 90 days. The other payables are with short-term 
durations. The carrying amounts are assumed to be a reasonable approximation of fair value.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity
price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, FVTOCI
investments and derivative financial instruments.
The following table summaries the carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities recorded at the end of the period by
categories:



Financial liabilities carried  at amortised cost
Borrowings            2,744.91            2,044.13 
Trade payables                144.63                168.27 
Lease Liabilities                         -                           -   
Other financial liabilities          35,663.25          36,674.32 
At end of the period          38,552.79          38,886.72 

C)Interest Rate Risk

Amount in ₹ Lakhs
 March 31, 

2024 
 March 31, 

2023 
Financial Assets
Interest bearing

  - Fixed interest rate
Other bank balances -                     -                     
Others -                     -                     
Loans -                     -                     

  - floating interest rate -                     -                     

Non interest bearing
Loans -                     2.50                   
Trade receivable 49.39                 395.59               
Cash and cash equivalent 64.35                 45.38                 
Other Balances with Bank 3.31                   3.31                   
Other Financial Assets 7.26                24.32             

Financial Liabilities
Interest bearing

 - floating interest rate
Borrowings 2,004.75           2,004.75           

Non interest bearing
Borrowings 39.38                 39.38                 
Trade and other payables 144.63               168.27               
Other financial liabilities 35,663.25         36,674.32         

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.
The sensitivity analysis have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of fixed to floating interest
rates of the debt and derivatives and the proportion of financial instruments in foreign currencies are all constant and in place
at  March 31, 2024.

The following assumptions  have been made in calculating the sensitivity analyses:
The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based
on the financial  assets and financial  liabilities held at March 31,2024 and March 31, 2023.

The company does not operate in an industry that requires intense capital and hence the exposure to interest rate risk is
reasonably moderate. The major component of the interest charge for the company is denominated in variable risk
instruments which are basically in the form of loan from banks and FI's. The details of the borrowings of the company is given
in the respective notes on borrowings. 
The interest rate risk exposure is mainly from changes in fixed and floating interest rates. The interest rate are disclosed in the
respective notes to the financial statement of the Company. The following table analyse the breakdown of the financial assets
and liabilities by type of interest rate:  

Particulars



Interest rate sensitivity

 March 31, 
2024 

 March 31, 
2023 

Increase in basis points
        '- Basis points 50.0                   50.0                   
Effect on profit before tax
        '- INR in Lakhs -10.0                  -10.0                  
Decrease in basis points
       '- Basis points 50.0                   50.0                   
Effect on profit before tax
        '- INR in Lakhs 10.0                   10.0                   

D)'Liquidity risk

Maturities of financial liabilities

Maturity analysis of significant financial liabilities

Upto 1 year
More than 1 

year
Total Carrying 

Value
Rs. Rs. Rs.

Year ended 31 March, 2024
Borrowings 2,744.91           -                     2,744.91           
Other financial liabilities 35,592.12         71.13                 35,663.25         
Trade and other payables 20.79                 -                     20.79                 

38,357.82         71.13                 38,428.95         
Year ended 31 March, 2023
Borrowings 2,044.13           -                     2,044.13           
Other financial liabilities 36,603.19         71.13                 36,674.32         
Trade and other payables 168.27               -                     168.27               

38,815.59         71.13                 38,886.72         

Particulars

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and
borrowings affected, after excluding the credit exposure for which interest rate swap has been taken and hence the interest
rate is fixed. With all other variables are held constant, the Company's profit before tax is affected through the impact on
floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations
without incurring unacceptable losses. The Company’s objective is to, at all times maintain optimum levels of  liquidity to meet
its cash and collateral requirements. The Company closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash
management system. It maintains adequate sources of financing including debt and overdraft from banks at an optimised cost.
The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its
liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking
damage to the Company’s reputation. 
Due to the dynamic nature of underlying businesses, the Company maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability
under committed credit lines. 
Management monitors rolling forecast of Company’s liquidity position (comprising the undrawn borrowing facilities below) and
cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. In addition, the company’s liquidity management policy involves
projecting cash flows in major currencies and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet these, monitoring balance
sheet liquidity ratios against internal and external regulatory requirements and maintaining debt financing plans. 

The tables below analyse the company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual
maturities for:
All non-derivative financial liabilities, and the amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

Contractual Cash Flows

Particulars



(All amounts in Rupees Lakh, unless otherwise stated)
37      Related Party Statement

a) 

Sr. No. Relationship

1 KMP 
2 KMP 
3 Relative of KMP
4 KMP interested concern
5 KMP interested concern
6

KMP interested concern

7 Subsidiary Company
8 Step down Subsidiary Company

9 Subsidiary Company
10 Associate Company
11 Related to Associate Company

b) 

Sr. No. Relationship
Nature of 

Transaction

Volume of 
Transaction during 

the period 01-04-23 
to 31-03-24

Amount outstanding 
as on 31-03-24

Shares Alloted 
CY Nil
PY Nil

CY 525.20
PY 525.20

Loan taken/ 
(Repayment) (Net) 

CY Nil
PY Nil

CY 29.87
PY 29.87

Remuneration
CY 1.15
PY Nil

CY 1.04
PY 29.87

2 Relative of KMP
Loan taken/ 
(Repayment) (Net)

CY NIL
PY NIL

CY 9.51
PY 9.51

Shares Alloted 
 CY Nil
PY Nil

CY 227.62
PY 227.62

Rental Income
CY 7.08
PY Nil

CY 2.92
PY 10

5 KMP interested concern
Allotment of 
Shares

CY Nil
PY Nil

CY 140
PY 140

7 KMP Shares Alloted 
CY Nil 
PY Nil

CY 1
PY 1

8 Subsidiary Company Loan Repayment
CY 181.85

PY 32
CY 882^

PY 1,063.93^ 

9 Subsidiary Company Investment made*
CY Nil
PY Nil

CY 92.70^
PY 92.70^

10 Subsidiary Company Investment made
CY Nil 
PY Nil

CY 11,175.83^
PY 11,175.83^

11 Subsidiary Company
Loan Given and 
interest on loan(net)

CY Nil 
PY Nil

CY 1,516.75^
PY 1,516.75^

12 Subsidiary Company Dividend Income
CY Nil
PY Nil

CY 25.62^
PY 25.62^

13 Associates Company 
Investment made in 
Equity #

 CY Nil
PY Nil 

 CY 9,841.70^
PY 9,841.70^ 

14 Associates Company 
Working Capital 
Advance

 CY Nil
PY Nil 

CY 94.29^
PY 94.29^

15 Associates Company 
Sales/ Receipts 
(net)**

CY 254.77
PY 5  

CY 17.52^
PY 272^ 

16 KMP of Associate Company Advance
 CY Nil
PY Nil 

CY 175## 
PY 175##

CY:Current Year ; PY : Previous Year
* Includes foreign exchange fluctuation
** Includes late payment charges
# Represents the aggregate of amount paid and value of shares alloted to the associate company and its shareholders
^The said investment, loan & dividend receivable have been fully impaired.
##The said investment & loan and advances have been partially impaired.

Vijay Nirman Company Private Limited.

Vijay Nirman Company Private Limited.

S Vijay Kumar

Nikki Agrawal (Prop. of Krishna Trading)

3
Krish Steel & Trading Private Limited. (Formerly known 
as Kridhan Infrastructures Private Limited)

KMP interested concern

Vijay Nirman Company Private Limited.

Kridhan Petrochemicals Private Limited

Krishna Devi Agrawal 

Kridhan Infrasolutions Private Limited

Kridhan Infrasolutions Private Limited

Readymade Steel Singapore PTE Limited 

Readymade Steel Singapore PTE Limited 

Readymade Steel Singapore PTE Limited 

Vijay Nirman Company Private Limited.
S Vijay Kumar

Transactions with related party (ies) and balances thereof

Name of the Party

1 Anil Agrawal KMP 

Readymade Steel Singapore PTE Limited 

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024

Names of the Related Parties & relationship

Name of the Party

Anil Agrawal 
Krishna Devi Agrawal 
Nikki Agrawal (Prop. of Krishna Trading)
Kridhan Petrochemicals Private Limited
K.H.F.Pte Singapore Limited.
Krish Steel & Trading Private Limited. (Formerly known 
as Kridhan Infrastructures Private Limited)

Kridhan Infrasolutions Private Limited
KH Foges India Private Limited.



38      Earnings per Share (EPS)

The Computation of EPS is set out below : (All amounts in Rupees Lakh, except EPS)
For the year ended 

31st March 2024
For the year ended 

31st March 2023
Basic & Diluted Basic & Diluted

Earnings
Net Profit for the year (in Rs.) -2,499.46                      -5,027.54                       

Shares
Number of Shares at the beginning of the year 9,47,79,205.00            9,47,79,205.00              
Equity Shares alloted during the year -                                 -                                   
Total number of Equity Shares outstanding at the end of the year 9,47,79,205.00            9,47,79,205.00              
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year - Basic 9,47,79,205.00            9,47,79,205.00              
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year - Diluted 9,47,79,205.00            9,47,79,205.00              
Face Value (in Rs.)                                2.00                                  2.00 
Earnings per share Basic (in Rs.) -2.64                             -5.30                               
Earnings per share Diluted (in Rs.) -2.64                             -5.30                               

39      
Amount in ₹ Lakhs

Refer Note
Opening as on 

1 Apr 2023
Provision made / 

(utilised)
Closing as on 
31 Mar 2024

6 & 13                     24,343.55                        2,577.74                        26,921.29 

5                           500.00                                    -                               500.00 

23                     36,474.99                                    -                          36,474.99 
                    61,318.54                        2,577.74                        63,896.28 

40      

41      Leases
Particulars

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Opening Balance -                                 63.14                               
Additions -                                 -                                   
Deletions -                                 56.38                               
Amortisation -                                 6.77                                 
Closing Balance -                                 -                                   

42      Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
                     17,732.00                        17,732.00 

Not Ascertainable Not Ascertainable

43      

44      

45      

46      Segment Reporting 

*Corporate guarantees have been given to assist subsidiaries in availing banking facilities.

Fixed Assets and Cash balance were physically verified by the management. The Certification of the same as given by the managment has been relied upon by
the auditors.  

The current assets, loans and advances have the values at least equal to the amount at which they are stated in the Balance sheet on their realisation in ordinary
course of business. Provisions for all known liabilities are adequate and not in excess of the amount reasonably necessary.  

Balances of Current Assets and Current Liabilities are subject to confirmation and consequential adjustment, if any. However, based on the best estimates made
by the management and as per the past trends management is of the view that the impact arising there from, if any, is not likely to be material.

The company operates in only one segment. Hence, there are no other reportable segment as per Ind AS - 108 issued by ICAI. 

Corporate Guarantees issued to parties*
a) Income tax and VAT liabilities in respect of pending / ongoing assessments
b) The company has earlier received notices of demand from Office of Income Tax for Rs. 2.18 Lakhs for the A.Y
18-19 and for Rs. 636.53 Lakhs for AY. 2012-13 and from Office of Sales Tax for Rs. 1329.63 Lakhs for payment of
tax and other dues for which it has filed / represented at appropriate forums and are pending at these forums.
Based on the progress made and as per the best estimates made by the company, considering that the company
has already applied under Amnesty scheme and its application has been approved, the company will not be
required to pay any material amount in respect of the same. 

Movement of Provisions made during the year:

*Provision has been reduced from the respective asset(s) to arrive at the corresponding carrying amount

The company has one subsidiary each in Singapore namely Readymade Steel Singapore Pte Limited. and in India namely Kridhan Infrasolutions Private Limited.
The company has made long term investment in these companies.

Particulars

Amount in ₹ Lakhs

Contingent liabilities not provided for: Amount in ₹ Lakhs

Particulars

Provision for Guarantees Invoked

Provision for Impairment of Investment,
Receivables & Loans and Advances*
Provision for Impairment of Property,Plant and 
Equipment



Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024

47 Events after reporting period

48 Gratuity as Defined contribution benefits Scheme
Defined Benefit Plan

Amount in ₹ Lakhs
Statement of profit and loss 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Net Employee benefit expenses recognised in the employee cost
Current Service Cost -                           -                           
Interest Cost on Obligation -                           -                           
Expected return on plan assets -                           -                           
Net Actuarial (gain)/loss recognised in the year -                           -                          
Past Service Cost -                           -                           

-                           -                           

Recognised in earlier year(s) -                           -                           
Recognised in current year -                           -                           

-                           -                           

Changes in Present value of defined benefit obligation 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Opening Defined benefit obligation 7.92                         7.92                         
Current Service Cost -                           -                           
Interest Cost -                           -                           
Net Actuarial (gain)/loss recognised in the year -                           -                           
Benefits Paid
Closing Balance of Defined benefit obligation (Non Current) 7.92                         7.92                         

Principle Assumptions
Rate of Interest
Salary Growth
Withdrawal Rate

Mortality Rates
Retirement Age

49 Disclosure towards Impairment

50 Disclosure pursuant to SEBI (Listing obligations and disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015

Amount in ₹ Lakhs

Particulars
Outstanding as at 

the end of the 
year

Maximum 
amount 

outstanding 
during the year

Loans to Subsidiaries
Readymade Steel Singapore Pte Limited. 1,516.75                 1,516.75                 

Loans to Associates
Vijay Nirman Construction (P) Limited. 94.29                       94.29                       

Loan to entities in the nature of loan to firms / companies in which directors are 
interested -                           -                           

No subsequent events that would have a material impact on the financials were observed after the reporting period for which effect have
not been considered in the financial statements. As informed earlier, the subsidiary Readymade Steels Singapore Pte Limited. is under
liquidation process and a material step down subsidiary K.H.Foges Pte Limited is placed under Judicial Management at Singapore.
Correspondingly, full provision towards impairment of Investments and other Loans and Advances / receivables from these entities have
already been made in the books and provision for all anticipated / known liabilities have been created.

Under the said Act, an employee who has completed 5 years of service is entitled to specific benefit. The level of benefits provided depends
upon the strength of service of the employees and the salary at the retirement age. 

Following table summarises the components of net benefit expenses recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss and amounts 

6.75% Per Annum
5.50% Per Annum

1% at all ages
Indian Assured Lives (2012-14) 

Ult. Mortality Rates
58 Years

The company has long term investments in its subsidiaries based at Singapore and India. These are long term
investments and hence generally there is no impairment in respect of these considering the nature and long term
visibility of these companies. However, considering the present prevailing conditions as further explained at Note No.
32 & 39, the company has provided for an amount of Rs. 23,450 lacs towards impairment of investments and an
amount of Rs. 36,475 lacs towards impairment of other loans and advances and receivables as on 31st March 2024.

The company has not advanced any money to its employees for the purpose of investment in the securities of the company.



51 Financial Ratios

Sr
No

Note 
reference

March 31, 
2024

March 31, 
2023

% Variance
Reason for
Variance

1   a
0.03              0.02              -103.33% Due to recovery from doubtful 

debts

2   b
-0.08            -0.06            -24.80% Due to loss incurred during the 

year
3   c NA NA NA Loan accounts are NPA
4   d NA* NA* NA
5   e NA NA NA There is no Inventory

6   f
0.38              0.64              40.94% Due to non collection / slow

collection from Customers

7   g
-                0.40              100.00% There are no purchases during 

the year

8   h
-2957.94% -1458.65% -102.79% Mainly due to higher Exceptional 

items
during the Last year

9   i
-0.00            -0.01            57.37% Mainly due to Provision of 

Corporate Guarantee Invoked as 
Current Liabilities

10 j
-0.26% -0.37% 30.03% Due to loss incurred during the 

year
11 k NA* NA* NA*

Note :
a
b
c
d
e
f
g
h
i
j
k

52 (A)

(B)
(C)
(D)

(E)
(F)

(i)

Net profit ratio

Net capital turnover ratio (in times)

Return on capital employed (%)

Return on investment (ROI)

Debt Service Coverage Ratio
Return on Equity (ROE):
Inventory Turnover Ratio

Trade receivables turnover ratio

Trade payables turnover ratio

KRIDHAN INFRA LIMITED
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Contd.)

ROCE : Earning before interest and taxes / Capital Employed    (Capital Employed = Tangible Net Worth + Total Debt + Deferred 

Particulars

Current ratio (in times) : Current Assets / Current liabilities
Debt - Equity ratio : Total Debt  divided by Equity
Debt Service Coverage Ratio (DSCR) (no. of times) : Profit before interest, divided by Interest expense.
ROE : Net Profits after taxes – Preference Dividend (if any) / Average Shareholder’s Equity
Inventory turnover ratio: Revenue from operations / Average Inventory 
Trade receivable turnover ratio: Revenue from operations / Average (Trade receivable and contract assets) 
Trade payables turnover ratio = Net Credit Purchases /  Average Trade Payables
Net profit margin (in %) : profit after tax / Revenue from operation
Net capital turnover ratio = Net Sales / Working Capital

Current Ratio

Debt – Equity Ratio

Return on investment (ROI) : Profit after tax / Total Equity
 *As the Net-worth is negative as on March 31, 2024 & March 31,2023.

No proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988, as amended, and rules made thereunder.
The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.
The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.
There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered and disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.
The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off.
The Company has not advanced or loaned to or invested in funds to any other person(s) or entity(is), including foreign entities
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

directly or indirectly lend to or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or



(ii)

(G)

(i)

(ii)
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Kridhan Infra Limited

Place: Mumbai Gautam Suri
Date : 29th May 2024 Managing Director

DIN: 08180233
Hemant Agarwal
Company Secretary

Mahdav Deshpande
Independent Director

Bhavesh Nagda
CFO

directly or indirectly lend to or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(is), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall

The Financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Directors dated May 29, 2024.

The Figures have been regrouped & re-arranged where necessary to conform to current period's classification.All figures of financial
Statements  has been rounded off to nearest lakhs rupees.

provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

The accounts of certain Banks, Loans & Advances given, Trade Receivables, Other Current Assets, Lenders’ liability, Trade Payables
and Other liabilities are subject to confirmations, reconciliations and adjustments.

There are various Legal cases filed by/ against the company. Since the cases are ongoing and the management believes that they
have a strong case. The Company do not foresee any material impacts on the financial statement of the Company.

The Company has during the year ended March 31, 2024, undertook an extensive physical verification of its fixed assets across

various locations (including its factory sites). During the course of such verification, the Company have not been able to trace and

identify certain assets which were either discarded from active use owing to the expiry of their useful life or have been appropriated

by the Contractors at the closed sites due to non-payment of their dues. Accordingly, the Company have impaired such fixed assets

aggregating to Rs. NIL (PY Rs 200 lacs) and have grouped the same under exceptional items.

The loss incurred in the current year and last year have resulted in erosion of Company's Net worth. However, the management is
of the opinion that subject to approval of settlement proposals with lenders and cost reduction measures , the Company will be
able to earn profit over next few years and may be in position to repay the outstanding borrowings. Hence, the financial results are
prepared assuming that it will continue as going concern.

The Company has not provided for interest liability on its Bank borrowings for the year ended March 31, 2024 since the Company 
have continued to remain under NPA classification.



Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
To The Members of  
Kridhan Infra Limited 
 
Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Qualified Opinion 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Kridhan Infra Limited (“the 
Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as 
“the Group”) and associates which comprises of consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the 
consolidated statement of Profit & Loss (including other comprehensive income), the consolidated 
Statement of changes in equity and the consolidated Statement of cash flow for the year than ended, 
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information. 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except 
for the effects/possible effects, if any, of the matters described in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion” 
paragraph of our report, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required 
by the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31st March 2024, its 
loss (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended 
on that date. 
 
Basis for Qualified Opinion 
a. We draw attention to Note 50 to the Consolidated Statement, the Holding Company has not 

provided for any further interest liability on its outstanding Bank borrowings since they have 
continued to remain under NPA classification. 
In absence of any further detailed information and Holding Company management’s estimates of 
reliefs and concessions to be obtained from Settlement proposals being pursued, we are unable to 
comment upon the resultant impact, if any, on the consolidated financial statements for the year 
ended March 31, 2024, which may arise on account of non-provision of interest, reliefs & 
concessions on borrowings as referred above. 

b. We draw attention to Note No. 51 of the consolidated financial statements the management has 
disclosed that the consolidated financial statements also include the Group’s share of loss (net) of 
Rs. 18,401.58 Lakhs for the twelve months ended 31st March, 2024, as considered in the 
consolidated financial statements, in respect of its associate, whose financial statements / 
financial information have not been audited by us and the financial information of the said 
associate is available till 31st March, 2024 which has been considered for the purpose of 
consolidated financial statements  

c. These financial statements/financial information of the associate are unaudited and have been 
furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in 
so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of the associate, and our 
report in so far as it relates to the aforesaid associate, is based solely on such unaudited financial 
statements/financial information. Accordingly, the same are subject to changes, if any, arising on 
audit of the same. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us 
by the Management, these financial statements and other financial information are material to the 
Group. 
 



We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 
audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made 
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the Code of Ethics.  
 
We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other 
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in Other Matter paragraph below, is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements. 
 
Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern:  
We draw attention to Note No. 52 to the consolidated financial statements which indicates that the 
loss incurred in the current year and past years have resulted in erosion of Group’s Net worth. These 
conditions along with the fact that the Holding Company continues to be under NPA classification by 
its lenders indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the 
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. However, the Consolidated financial statements of the 
Group have been prepared on a going concern basis for the reasons stated in Note No. 53 to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements. 
 
Emphasis of Matter 
We draw attention to  

a) Note No. 15 of the consolidated financial statements, wherein the Holding Company 
management has disclosed that the Singapore subsidiary of the company is under the process 
of liquidation and its material step-down subsidiary at Singapore is under Judicial 
Management. Hence, due to non-availability of the figures for the year ended 31st March 2024 
and 31st March 2024, the same have not been considered for the purpose of consolidated 
financial statements. 

b) Note No. 30 of the consolidated financial statements, wherein the Holding Company has made 
an assessment of the realisability of its Trade receivables, Investments and Loans and Advances 
and based on such assessment, has reversed on account of realization of Receivable of Rs. 
897.74 lakhs towards its outstanding trade receivables, Impairment Provision of Rs. 3,471.48 
Lakhs towards its Investments and Loans and Advances. 
These amounts have been disclosed under Exceptional Items. 

 
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements is not modified in respect of the above matter. 
 
Key Audit Matters 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in 
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context 
of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 
provide a separate opinion on these matters. 
Sr. 
No 

Key Audit Matters Auditor’s response 

Litigation and Claims 
1.  Litigation and claims are pending with multiple tax 

and regulatory authorities which have not been 
acknowledged as debt by the Holding company. 
 

Our audit procedures included the 
following: 
 
a) Understood Management’s process 



In the normal course of business, financial exposures 
may arise from pending legal / regulatory 
proceedings and from above referred claims not 
acknowledged as debt by the company. Whether a 
claim needs to be recognized as liability, disclosed as 
contingent liability or considered as remote in the 
consolidated financial statements is dependent on a 
number of significant assumptions and judgments. 
The amounts involved are potentially significant and 
determining the amount, if any, to be recognized or 
disclosed in the financial statements, is inherently 
subjective. 
 
We have considered Litigations and claims as Key 
Audit Matter as it requires significant management 
judgment, including accounting estimates that 
involves high estimation uncertainty. 

and control for determining tax 
litigations and other litigations and 
claims and its appropriate; 
 
 
b) Tested key controls surrounding such 
litigations. Discussed pending matters 
with the Company’s legal department 
Assessed management’s conclusions 
through understanding precedents set in 
similar cases; 
 
c) We have assessed the appropriateness 
of presentation of the most significant 
contingent liabilities in the consolidated 
financial statements. 

 
Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and auditor’s report thereon 
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other information. 
The Other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures 
to the Board report but does not include the consolidated financial statement and our auditor’s report 
thereon. 
 
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 
 
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
 
Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements  
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of 
the Act with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and 
fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance (including other 
comprehensive income), consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group 
including its Associates in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, 
including the accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. 
 
The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 



or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements 
by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid. 
 
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the Companies 
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis 
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or 
has no realistic alternative but to do so.  
 
The respective Board of Directors of the Companies included in the Group are also responsible for 
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists.  
 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these consolidated financial statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk 
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control.  

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are 
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company and its subsidiaries 
has adequate internal financial control system with reference to financial statements in place and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls.  

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.  

 Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the entity to cease 
to continue as a going concern.  

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  

 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or 
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial 



statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the 
consolidated financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements 
of which we are independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial 
statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for 
the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely 
responsible for our audit opinion. 

 
Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that 
individually or in aggregate makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative 
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the 
results of our work and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the consolidated 
financial statements. 
 
We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company of which we are the 
independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 
during our audit.  
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards. 
 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period 
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences 
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication. 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) Except for the matters stated in “Basis for Qualified Opinion” paragraph above, we have 
sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(b) Except for the matters stated in “Basis for Qualified Opinion” paragraphs above, in our 
opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Group so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books and records. 

(c) The Consolidated Balance sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss (including other 
comprehensive income), Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated 
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

(d) Except for the effects / possible effects of matters described in the “Basis for Qualified 
Opinion” paragraphs above, in our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements 
comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.  

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding 
Company as on March 31, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding 
Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group 



Companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as 
a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Holding Company and its Indian subsidiary and the operating effectiveness of such controls, 
please refer Annexure B of the consolidated audit report attached with the consolidated 
financial statements included in this annual report. 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the 
requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us, no remuneration has been paid to the directors by the Holding Company. Hence, 
provisions of Section 197 of the Act does not apply. 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of 
our information and according to the explanations given to us:  
i. The Consolidate financial statements have disclosed the impact of the pending litigations 

on its financial position of the Group and its associates. (Refer Note No. 39 to the 
consolidated financial statements)  

ii. The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which 
there were any material foreseeable losses. 

iii. There has been delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company. 

iv. (a) The respective Managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary which are 
Companies incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited under the 
Act, have represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds have 
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any 
other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or by any of the such subsidiary to 
or in any other person or entity, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, 
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary 
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries. 
(b) The respective Managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary which are 
Companies incorporated in India has represented whose financial statements have been 
audited under the Act, that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, other than as 
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the Holding 
Company and by any of the such subsidiary from any person or entity, including foreign 
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary shall, whether, directly or 
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by 
or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 
(c) Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in 
the circumstances performed by us on the Holding Company and its subsidiary which are 
companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the 
Act, nothing has come to the notice that has caused to believe that the representations under 
sub-clause (a) and (b) above contain any material misstatement. 

2. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s 
Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order”/“CARO”) issued by the Central Government in terms of 
Section 143(11) of the Act, to be included in the Auditor’s report, according to the 
information and explanations given to us, and based on the CARO reports issued by us for the 



Parent Company and by the auditors of the subsidiary company included in the consolidated 
financial statements of the Parent Company, to which reporting under CARO is applicable, we 
report that the auditor of the Subsidiary Company, Kridhan Infra Solutions Private Limited 
(U27310MH2010PTC205177) have reported the qualifications in clause no. iii(b) and xix in 
CARO. 

 
For B.R. Kotecha & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Regn. No. 105283W 
 
 
 
CA Bakulesh R Kotecha 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 036309 
Mumbai, Date: 29th May, 2024 
UDIN: 24036309BKESRH9205 
 
 
 
  



Annexure “A” referred to in “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of 
our report to the members of Kridhan Infra Limited of even date: 
 
i. (a) In respect of Holding Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and Intangible Assets: 
The holding company has maintained proper records, showing full including quantitative details and 
situation of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and Intangible Assets. 
(b) As explained to us, the Holding Company has a phased program for physical verification of the 
PPE. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable, considering the size of the Holding 
Company and nature of its PPE. A major portion of fixed assets have been physically verified by the 
management in accordance with the program of verification. According to the information and 
explanations given to us, the discrepancies noticed on such verification were properly dealt with in the 
books of account. 
(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination and 
records of the Holding Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than properties where 
the Holding Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favors of the lessee) 
are held in the name of the Holding Company. 
(d) The Holding Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right of use 
assets) or intangible assets or both during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(i)(d) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Holding Company. 
(e) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 
our examination of the records, neither any proceedings have been initiated during the year nor are 
pending as at March 31, 2024 for any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) 
Act, 1988, as amended, and rules made thereunder and hence reporting under clause 3(i)(e) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Holding Company. 
 
ii. (a) The Holding Company does not carry any inventory as at March 31st, 2024 and therefore, 
clause 3(ii)(a) is not applicable to the Holding Company. 
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Holding Company has not filed the 
quarterly statements with the bank and accordingly we are unable to comment upon the clause 3(ii)(b) 
of the order. 
 
iii. According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year, the Holding Company 
has not made investments or granted loans and advances secured or unsecured or provided any 
guarantee or security to companies, firms, limited liability partnership or any other parties during the 
year and hence sub-clauses  
 
iii (a) to (f), under clause (iii) of the Order are not applicable. 
 
iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 
our examination of the records, the Holding Company has complied with the provisions of section 185 
and 186 of the Act, to the extent applicable with respect to the guarantee provided during the year. 
The Holding Company has not granted any loans to parties covered under Section 185 of the Act. 
 
v. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no deposits or 
amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant 
provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 have been accepted by 
the Holding Company and hence reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Holding Company. 
 



vi. As per the information and explanations provided to us, we are of the opinion that the maintenance 
of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under subsection (1) of section 148 
of the Act for the Holding Company. 
 
vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records, the Holding Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues 
including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, 
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the 
appropriate authorities. 
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in 
respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, service tax, sales-tax, duty of 
custom, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other material statutory dues 
were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became 
payable, except for Tax Deducted at Source of Rs 3.14 lakhs pertaining to FY 2023-24 & Rs 2 lakhs 
pertaining to FY 2022-23. 
 
(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are certain cases of applicable 
statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute, which are detailed hereunder: 

Nature of statue and 
Nature of Dues 

Forum where dispute is 
pending 

FY to which the 
amount relates 

Amount 
involved (Rs in 

Lacs) 
Sales Tax Deputy Commissioner of 

Sales Tax 
2009-10, 
2010-11, 
2016-17, 
2017-18 

1330 

Income Tax under Income 
Tax Act,1961 

Commissioner of Income 
Tax (Appeals) 

2011-12 637 

Commissioner of Income 
Tax (Appeals) 

2017-18 2 

 
viii. According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no transactions relating to 
previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in 
the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) and hence reporting under clause 
3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Holding Company. 
 
ix. (a) Based on our audit procedures and on the basis of information and explanations given to us, the 
Holding Company has defaulted in repayment of borrowings from Union Bank of India for a period of 
1155 days. The amount of default as at the balance sheet date is Rs. 2005 Lakhs.  
(b) The Holding Company has not been declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial 
institution or other lender. 
(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Holding 
Company has not taken any term loan during the year and hence, reporting under clause (ix)(c) of the 
Order is not applicable. 
(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall 
examination of the standalone financial statements of the Holding Company, funds raised by the 
Holding Company on short term basis have not been utilized for long term purposes. 
(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the 
financial statements of the Holding Company, the Holding Company has not taken any funds from 
any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries and hence reporting 
under clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Holding Company. 



(f) Based on our audit procedures and on the basis of information and explanations given to us, during 
the year the Holding Company has not raised any funds on the pledge of securities held in its 
subsidiaries and hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Holding 
Company. 
 
x. (a) The Holding Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public 
offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause (x)(a) of the Order 
is not applicable. 
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the Holding Company, the Holding Company has not made any preferential allotment, 
private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year or in the recent 
past and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Holding Company. 
 
xi. (a) During our examination of the books and records of the Holding Company carried out in 
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud by or on the Holding 
Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of such case by the 
management. 
(b) During the year, no report under sub section 12 of Section 143 of the Act has been filed by us in 
Form ADT-4 as prescribed in rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) rules, 2014 with the Central 
Government. 
(c) Based on our audit procedures performed and according to the information and explanations given 
to us, no whistle blower complaints received during the year by the Holding Company and hence 
reporting under clause 3 (xi) (c) of the Order is not applicable to the Holding Company. 
 
xii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Holding 
Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3 (xii) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Holding Company. 
 
xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the Holding Company, all the transactions with related parties are in compliance with 
section 177 and 188 of the Act and all the details have been disclosed in the standalone financial 
statements as required by the applicable Accounting Standard (Refer Note 37 to the standalone 
financial statements).  
 
xiv. (a) In our opinion, the Holding Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate 
with the size and nature of its business. 
(b) We have considered the internal audit reports for the year under audit issued to the Holding 
Company during the year and till date, in determining nature, timing and extent of our audit 
procedure. 
 
xv. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Holding Company has not entered 
into any non-cash transactions prescribed under Section 192 of the Act with directors or persons 
connected with them during the year. 
 
xvi. (a) the Holding Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve 
Bank of India Act, 1934 and hence reporting under clause 3(xvi) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Holding Company.  
(b) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the “Companies in the Group” as 
defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 and hence reporting 
under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Holding Company. 



 
xvii. The Holding Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our 
audit and has incurred cash loss of Rs 225 lakhs in the immediately preceding financial year. 
 
xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Holding Company during the year. 
Hence reporting under Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Holding Company.  
 
xix. As referred to in ‘Material uncertainty related to Going concern’ paragraph in our audit report and 
on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and 
payment of financial liabilities, other 
information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and 
Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, there 
exists a material uncertainty that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date 
of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. 
We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Holding Company. We 
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither 
give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from 
the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Holding Company as and when they fall due. 
 
xx. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and the records 
examined by us, no amount was required to be spent by the Holding Company on the activities of 
CSR, as per provisions of Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(xx) of the 
Order are not applicable to the Holding Company.  
 
xxi. The reporting under clause 3(xxi) is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial 
statements of the Holding Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said 
clause under this report. 
 
For B.R. Kotecha & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Regn. No. 105283W 
 
 
 
CA Bakulesh R Kotecha 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 036309 
Mumbai, Date: 29th May, 2024 
UDIN: 24036309BKESRH9205 
  



Annexure “B” referred to in “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of 
our report to the Members of the Kridhan Infra Limited of even date:  
 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial statements 
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act 
 
We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of 
the Kridhan Infra Limited (“the Holding Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our 
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are 
companies incorporated in India, as of that date. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company, its subsidiaries and associates which are 
companies incorporated in India, responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding 
Company considering the essential component of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to holding company’s policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, 
as required under the Act. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company's Internal Financial Controls with 
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance 
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act to the 
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements was 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an 
understanding of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk 
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial 
statements of the Holding Company, its subsidiaries and its associates, which are companies 
incorporated in India. 
 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements 



A Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes 
those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii)provide 
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the entity are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management; (iii) 
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, 
use, or disposition of the entity's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements 
Because of the inherent limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial 
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements to future periods 
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may 
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

 
Opinion 
In our opinion, the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Holding 
Company has, broadly in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with 
reference to financial statements and such Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial 
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential Component of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over financial 
reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
 
Other Matters 
Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of 
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in so far as it relates to a 
subsidiary which is a company incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding standalone reports 
of the auditors, as applicable, of such companies incorporated in India. Our aforesaid report under 
Section 143(3) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements does not include in respect of one associate, which is a 
company incorporated in India whose audit reports are not made available to us.  
 
For B.R. Kotecha & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Regn. No. 105283W 
 
 
 
CA Bakulesh R Kotecha 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 036309 
Mumbai, Date: 29th May, 2024 
UDIN: 24036309BKESRH9205 
 



Particulars
Note 
No.

 As at 31.03.2024  As at 31.03.2023 

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property Plant and Equipment 5 1,712.04                       1,747.06                             
Right-of-Use-Assets 5(i) -                                -                                       

Financial Assets
Investments 6 175.00                          175.00                                 
Other Financial Assets 7 47.49                            68.24                                   

Deferred Tax Assets 8 6.62                              4.80                                     
Total Non Current Assets 1,941.15                       1,995.10                             

Current Assets
Investments 9 6.44                              6.44                                     
Financial Assets

Trade Receivables 10 49.39                            579.38                                 
Cash and cash equivalent 11 137.79                          87.67                                   
Other Balances with Bank 11(i) 3.31                              3.31                                     
Loans & Advances 12 0.63                              91.40                                   

Other current assets 13 1,184.23                       214.17                                 
Total Current Assets 1,381.81                       982.37                                 

Total Assets 3,322.96                       2,977.47                             

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Equity Share Capital 14 1,895.58                       1,895.58                             
Other Equity 15 -37,431.25                   -38,210.20                          

Total Equity -35,535.67                   -36,314.62                          

Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities

Lease Liabilities 16 -                                -                                       
Other Financial Liabilities 17 78.21                            78.21                                   

Provisions 18 1.91                              1.91                                     
Total Non Current Liabilities 80.12                            80.12                                   
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities

Borrowings 19 2,744.91                       2,044.13                             
Lease Liabilities 16 -                                -                                       
Trade Payables 20
      - total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 20.79                            20.79                                   

      - total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 313.27                          354.23                                 
Other financial liabilities 21 35,623.48                     36,674.55                           

Other Current Liabilities 22 76.05                            118.26                                 
Total Current Liabilities 38,778.50                     39,211.97                           

Total Equity and Liabilities 3,322.96                       2,977.47                             
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As per our report of even date attached 

For B.R. Kotecha & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN 105283W
Bakulesh R Kotecha Gautam Suri Mahdav Deshpande
Proprietor  Managing Director Independent Director
M No. 036309 DIN: 08180233
UDIN: 24036309BKESRH9205 Hemant Agarwal Bhavesh Nagda
Place: Mumbai Company Secretary CFO
Date : 29th May 2024

KRIDHAN INFRA LIMITED

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024
(All amounts in Rupees Lakh, unless otherwise stated)

CIN : L27100MH2006PLC160602

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Kridhan Infra Limited 



KRIDHAN INFRA LIMITED
CIN : L27100MH2006PLC160602

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

Particulars 31-03-2024 31-03-2023
Income 
Revenue from operations 23 84.50                            562.20                                  
Other income 24 89.73                            87.38                                    
Total Income 174.23                          649.58                                  

Expenses
Purchases of Stock-in-trade 25 -                                 355.06                                  

Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and traded goods 26                                    -                                              -   

Employee benefits expense 27 27.82                            28.81                                    
Finance costs 28 7.35                               2.92                                       
Depreciation and amortisation expense 5 & 5(i) 39.40                            57.41                                    
Other expenses 29 38.47                            174.32                                  
Total expenses 113.04                          618.52                                  

Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax 61.20                            31.06                                    
Exceptional items 30 2,573.74                       5,543.43                               
Profit / (Loss) before tax -2,512.54                     -5,512.37                             
Tax expense:
Current tax -                                 -                                         
Tax adjustments relating to previous year -                                 2.78                                       
Deferred tax charge/ (credit) -1.83                             35.25                                    
Total Tax Expenses -1.83                             38.03                                    
Profit (Loss) for the year -2,510.72                     -5,550.40                             
Other Comprehensive Income
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss                                    -                                              -   

Remeasurements - On post employment benefit plan - gratuity                                    -                                              -   
   (ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss                                    -                                              -   
B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss                                    -                                              -   
   (ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss                                    -                                              -   
Total Comprehensive Income for the year                                    -                                              -   
Total Income for the year -2,510.72                     -5,550.40                             
Share of Profit / (Loss) of Associate(s) -18,401.58                   -883.21                                 
Total Income for the year -20,912.30                   -6,433.61                             
Attributable to Non Controlling Interest -                                 -                                         
Attributable to Share holders of the company -20,912.30                   -6,433.61                             

Earnings per equity share: [Nominal Value per share: Rs.2 (2022: Rs.2)] 36
-Basic (in Rs.) -22.06                           -6.79                                     
-Diluted (in Rs.) -22.06                           -6.79                                     
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As per our report of even date attached 

For B.R. Kotecha & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN 105283W
Bakulesh R Kotecha  Gautam Suri Mahdav Deshpande
Proprietor  Managing Director Independent Director
M No. 036309  DIN: 08180233 
UDIN: 24036309BKESRH9205 Hemant Agarwal Bhavesh Nagda
Place: Mumbai Company Secretary CFO
Date : 29th May 2024

(All amounts in Rupees Lakh, unless otherwise stated)

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Kridhan Infra Limited 



KRIDHAN INFRA LIMITED
CIN : L27100MH2006PLC160602
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23
Cash flow from Operating Activities
Net Profit before tax and adjustment of extraordinary items net of prior year adjustment -2,512.54                      -5,512.37                              
Adjustments for :
      Depreciation 39.40                              57.41                                     
      Interest and Dividend received -15.51                            -3.66                                      
      Interest & Finance charges 7.35                                2.92                                       
      Sundry Creditors written back -0.51                              -2.23                                      
      Gain/Loss on sale of Fixed Asset / Investments -                                  -11.63                                    
      Exceptional Items 2,573.74                        5,543.43                               
Operating Profit before working capital changes 91.92                             73.87                                     
Working Capital Changes / Adjustments for 
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories -                                  -0.13                                      
(Increase)/Decrease in Receivables 1,246.43                        -100.60                                 
(Increase)/Decrease in Loans & Advances and Other Assets -676.89                          309.79                                   
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables & Other Current liabilities including provisions -1,134.24                      -102.61                                 
Cash generated / used from operations -564.70                          106.33                                   
Direct Taxes -                                         
Net cash from (used in) Operating Activities (A) -472.78                          179.70                                   
Cash flow From Investing Activities
Purchase of fixed assets -4.37                              0.49                                       
Sale of Fixed Assets -                                  15.70                                     
Interest and Dividend Received 15.51                              3.66                                       
Investment -                                  0.62                                       
Net Cash from (used in) Investing Activities (B) 11.14                             20.47                                     
Cash flow From Financing Activities:
Repayment/Acceptance of Borrowings 519.12                           -130.55                                 
Payment of Lease Liabilities -                                  -12.05                                    
Interest and finance charges -7.35                              -2.92                                      
Net cash from Financing Activities (C ) 511.77                           -145.41                                 
Total Cash Inflow (A) + (B) + (C ) 50.12                             54.51                                     
Cash & Cash Equivalent at the beginning of the Year 90.98                             36.47                                     
Cash and Cash Equivalent at the end of the year 141.10                           90.98                                     
This cash flow has been prepared in indirect method as per IndAS 7 issued by ICAI

Significant accounting policies and Key accounting estimates and judgements 1-4
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As per our report of even date attached 
For B.R. Kotecha & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN 105283W
Bakulesh R Kotecha Gautam Suri Mahdav Deshpande

Proprietor Managing Director Independent Director
M No. 036309 DIN: 08180233
Place: Mumbai Hemant Agarwal Bhavesh Nagda
Date : 29th May 2024 Company Secretary CFO

(All amounts in Rupees Lakh, unless otherwise stated)

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Kridhan Infra Limited 



Significant accounting policies and explanatory notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
1 Corporate Information 

Kridhan Infra Limited (‘Kridhan’ or ‘the Company’) is a public limited company 
domiciled and incorporated in India having its registered office at 203, Joshi Chambers, 
Ahmedabad Street, Carnac Bunder, Masjid. Mumbai- 400 009. The Consolidated 
Financial Statements comprise of financial statements of Kridhan Infra Limited (‘the 
Company’ or ‘the Holding Company’) and its subsidiaries (collectively, "the Group") 
for the year ended March 31, 2024. The Company is a public company domiciled in 
India and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. 
Its share are listed on two recognised stock exchanges in India viz BSE and NSE. 

2. Application of new Indian Accounting Standards 
2.1 All the Indian Accounting Standards issued under section 133 of the Companies Act, 

2013 and notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) under the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) till the financial statements 
are authorized have been considered in preparation of these Financial Statements. 

2.2 Recent Accounting Pronouncements 
 Standards issued but not yet effective: 

In March 2023, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 which amended certain Ind AS as 
explained below:  
i. Ind AS 1 – Presentation of Financial Statements –  
The amendment prescribes disclosure of material accounting policies instead of 
significant accounting policies. The impact of the amendment on the Financial 
Statements is expected to be insignificant basis the preliminary evaluation.  

ii. Ind AS 8 – Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and 
Errors –  

The amendment added definition of accounting estimate and clarifies what is 
accounting estimate and treatment of change in the accounting estimate and accounting 
policy. There is no impact of the amendment on the Financial Statements basis the 
preliminary evaluation.  

iii. Ind AS 12 – Income taxes –  
The definition of deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability is amended to apply 
initial recognition exception on assets and liabilities that does not give rise to equal 
taxable and deductible temporary differences. There is no impact of the amendment on 
the Financial Statements basis the preliminary evaluation.  

The above amendments are effective from annual periods beginning on or after 1st 
April, 2023. 

2.3 Basis of Preparation 
 The financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2023 have been 

prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended thereafter. 

  
 The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, 

except for certain financial assets and liabilities (refer accounting policy regarding 
financial instruments) which have been measured at fair value. The consolidated 
financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee ('INR') which is also the Group's 
functional currency and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs, except when 
otherwise indicated. 

3. Significant accounting policies 
3.1 Statement of compliance 

In accordance with the notification dated 16th February, 2015, issued by the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs, the Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (referred to 



as “Ind AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 
(as amended) with effect from April 1, 2017. 
The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS notified under 
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended).  
Previous period figures in the Financial Statements have been restated in compliance to 
Ind AS.  

3.2 Basis of consolidation 
 The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the 

Company and its subsidiaries as at 31 March 2022. Control is achieved when the Group 
is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and 
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Subsidiaries 
are entities controlled by the Group. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the 
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of 
the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or 
disposed off during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements from 
the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the 
subsidiary. 
 
Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for 
like transactions and other events in similar circumstances. 
 
The financial statements of each of the subsidiaries used for the purpose of 
consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date as that of the Company, i.e., year 
ended on 31 March except in respect of Singapore subsidiary Readymade Steel 
Singapore Pte Ltd. which is under liquidation process.  For the said reason the 
financials of the Singapore Subsidiary have not been consolidated with that of the 
holding company due to non-availability of the figures of the same for the year ended 
31st March 2022.  

3.2.1 Process for consolidation 
 Consolidation procedure: 

i. Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash 
flows of the parent with those of its subsidiary(ies). For this purpose, 
income and expenses of the subsidiary(ies) are based on the amounts of the 
assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements at 
the acquisition date. The exchange rate used for conversion in case of items 
of profit and loss is the average rate for the year and for the balance sheet 
items is the closing rate for the year / period. 

ii. Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each 
subsidiary and the parent’s portion of equity of each subsidiary. Business 
combinations policy explains how to account for any related goodwill. 

iii. Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses 
and cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the group (profits 
or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, 
such as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full, except as stated.  

iv. Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in 
the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS12 Income Taxes applies to 
temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses 
resulting from intragroup transactions. 

v. Non-controlling interests, if any, in the net assets of consolidated 
subsidiaries consists of: 
a) The amount of equity attributed to non-controlling interests at the date 

on which investment in a subsidiary relationship came into existence; 



b) The non-controlling interest share of movement in equity since the date 
parent subsidiary relationship came into existence; 

c) Non-controlling interest share of net profit/(loss) of consolidated 
subsidiaries for the year is identified and adjusted against the profit after 
tax of the Group. 

vi. The following components have been considered for the purpose of the 
consolidated financial statements: 

Direct Subsidiaries: 
- Kridhan Infrasolutions Pvt. Ltd. (100% holding as on 31 Mar 22 & 31 

Mar 21)  
vii. The following components have been ignored for the purpose of the 

consolidated financial statements: 
Direct Subsidiaries: 

- Readymade Steel Singapore Pte. Ltd. (100% holding as on 31 Mar 22 & 
31 Mar 21) as the same is under liquidation process. 
Step Down Subsidiaries (being subsidiaries of Readymade Steel 
Singapore Pte. Ltd.) 

3.2.2 Business combinations and goodwill & Impairment thereof  
 The Group has exercised exemption and elected not to apply Ind AS accounting for 

business combinations retrospectively. 
The excess of cost to the group of its investments in subsidiary companies over its share 
of the equity of the subsidiary companies at the dates on which the investments in the 
subsidiary companies are made, is recognised as ‘Goodwill’ being an asset in the 
Consolidated Financial Statements. This Goodwill is tested for impairment at the close 
of each financial year. Alternatively, where the share of equity in the subsidiary 
companies as on the date of investment is in excess of cost of investment of the group, 
it is recognised as ‘Capital Reserve’ and shown under the head ‘Reserves and Surplus’, 
in the consolidated financial statements. 
Goodwill is accordingly de-recognised when there are indications of impairment of the 
investments or the group cedes control of the subsidiary by disposal, sale or otherwise.  

 Fair value measurement 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a 
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date 
under current market conditions.  

 
The Company categorizes assets and liabilities measured at fair value into one of three 
levels depending on the ability to observe inputs employed in their measurement which 
are described as follows: 

 
(a) Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical 

assets or liabilities.  
(b) Level 2 inputs are inputs that are observable, either directly or indirectly, 

other than quoted prices included within level 1 for the asset or liability.  
(c) Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability reflecting 

significant modifications to observable related market data or Company’s 
assumptions about pricing by market participants. 

3.3 Investments in associates  
 The Company records the investments in subsidiaries and associates at cost less 

impairment loss, if any.  
 
On disposal of investment in subsidiary and associate, the difference between net 
disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts (including corresponding value of dilution 



in deemed investment) are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
 
Interest free loans provided to subsidiary are recognized at amount paid on the date of 
disbursement.  

3.4 Property, Plant and Equipment  
 The Group had elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its Property, Plant 

and Equipment recognised as of April 1, 2016 (transition date) measured as per the 
Previous GAAP and used that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date 
except in respect of its Land which has been measured at Fair Value as on the transition 
date. 
Freehold land is not depreciated. 
Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) used for business purposes are carried at cost, less 
any accumulated depreciation and recognised impairment loss. The cost of an asset 
comprises its purchase price or its construction cost (net of applicable tax credits), any 
cost directly attributable to bring the asset into the location and condition necessary for 
it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the Management. It includes 
professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance 
with the Company’s accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate 
categories of PPE when completed and ready for intended use. Parts of an item of PPE 
having different useful lives and significant value and subsequent expenditure on 
Property, Plant and Equipment arising on account of capital improvement or other 
factors are accounted for as separate components.  
Depreciation of PPE commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. 
Depreciation is provided over the useful life of PPE as stated in the Schedule II to the 
Companies Act, 2013 or based on technical assessment by the Company.  
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed 
periodically and if necessary, changes in estimates are accounted for prospectively. 
Depreciation on additions / deletions to PPE during the year is provided for on a pro-
rata basis with reference to the date of additions/deletions except low value items which 
are fully depreciated at the time of addition. 
An item of PPE is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the 
disposal or retirement of an item of PPE is determined as the difference between the net 
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss. 

3.5 Intangible Assets 
 Intangible assets acquired separately 

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost 
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is 
recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives not exceeding five 
years from the date of capitalisation. The estimated useful life is reviewed at the end of 
each reporting period and the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for 
prospectively. 
 
Intangible assets are derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are 
expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an 
intangible asset are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and 
the carrying amount of the asset, and recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
when the asset is derecognised. 

3.6 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets 
 The Group reviews the carrying amount of its tangible and intangible assets at the end 

of each reporting period to determine whether there is any indication that those assets 



have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount 
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).  
 
An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period to see if there are any 
indications that impairment losses recognized earlier may no longer exist or may have 
come down. The impairment loss is reversed, if there has been a change in the estimates 
used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the previous impairment loss 
was recognized. If it is so, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the lower of 
its recoverable amount and the carrying amount that have been determined, net of 
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. After 
a reversal, the depreciation charge is adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset’s 
revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its 
remaining useful life. Reversals of Impairment loss are recognized in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. 

3.7 Inventories comprising of saleable stock are valued at cost or Net Realisable Value, 
whichever is lower.  

 Consumable stock are valued at Cost. 
3.8 Revenue recognition 
(i) Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when control of the products being sold is 

transferred to our customer and when there are no longer any unfulfilled obligations. 
The Performance Obligations in our contracts are fulfilled at the time of dispatch, 
delivery or upon formal customer acceptance depending on terms with customers 
 
Revenue from services is recognized when the outcome of services can be estimated 
reliably and it is probable that the economic benefits associated with rendering of 
services will flow to the Company, and the amount of revenue can be measured 
reliably. 
 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and 
represents amounts receivable for goods and services provided in the normal course of 
business, net of discounts, volume rebates and any taxes or duties collected on behalf of 
the Government such as Goods and Services Tax, etc. Any retrospective revision in 
prices is accounted for in the year of such revision. 

(ii) Interest on Fixed Deposits is recognised on accrual basis. 
(iii) Income from sale of scrap is accounted on cash basis. 
(iv) Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder's right to receive 

payment is established. 
3.9 Foreign Exchange Transactions 
 The functional currency of the Group is Indian Rupees which represents the currency of 

the primary economic environment in which it operates. 
 

Transactions in currencies other than the Company’s functional currency (foreign 
currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the 
transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in 
foreign currencies are translated using mean exchange rate prevailing on the last day of 
the reporting period.  

 
Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss in the period in which they arise. 

3.10 Borrowing Cost  
 Interest/Finance Cost on loans specifically borrowed for and expansion of projects, upto 

the point when the project is ready for start of commercial production is charged to the 



capital cost of the projects concerned.  
 
All other borrowing costs are charged to revenue. 

3.11 Employee Benefits 
 Employee benefits include salaries, wages, provident fund, gratuity, and other terminal 

benefits. 
 

All short term employee benefits are recognized at their undiscounted amount in the 
accounting period in which they are incurred. 

 
Defined contribution plans 
 
Employee Benefit under defined contribution plans comprising provident fund is 
recognized based on the undiscounted amount of obligations of the Group to contribute 
to the plan. The same is paid to the EPFO and charged to the statement of profit and 
loss. 
 
Defined benefit plans 
 
Defined retirement benefit plans comprising of gratuity and other terminal benefits, are 
recognized based on the present value of defined benefit obligation which is computed 
using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the 
end of each annual reporting period. These are accounted either as current employee 
cost or included in cost of assets as permitted. 
 
The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the Financial Statements represents the 
actual deficit or surplus in the Company’s defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting 
from this calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits available 
in the form of reductions in future contributions to the plans. 

3.12 Income Taxes 
 Income tax expense represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax. 

 
Current tax 
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs 
from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss because of items 
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are 
never taxable or deductible. The Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates and 
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

 
Deferred tax 
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities in the Financial Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in 
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all 
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all 
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will 
be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.  

 
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting 
period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable 
profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. 

 
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to 



apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax 
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the 
reporting period.  

 
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that 
would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting 
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. 

3.13 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 
  

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or 
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the group will be required to 
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the 
obligation. 

 
The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required 
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the 
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using 
the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the 
present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is 
material). 

 
Contingent assets are disclosed in the Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts 
when an inflow of economic benefits is probable. 

 
Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the Financial Statements by way of notes to 
accounts, unless possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefit is 
remote. 

3.14 Financial Instruments 
 Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when Group becomes a party to 

the contractual provisions of the instruments.  
 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction 
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and 
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value 
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial 
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs 
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair 
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss. 

3.15 Equity instruments 
 Equity instruments issued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds received. 
3.16 Financial assets 
 (i) Cash and cash equivalents  

The Group considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are 
readily convertible into known amounts of cash that are subject to an 
insignificant risk of change in value and having original maturities of three 
months or less from the date of purchase, to be cash equivalents. Cash and 
cash equivalents consist of balances with banks which are unrestricted for 
withdrawal and usage. 

 
(ii) Financial assets at amortised cost  

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 



effective interest method if these financial assets are held within a business 
whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash 
flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified 
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the 
principal amount outstanding.  

 
(iii) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income  

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive 
income if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is 
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial 
assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified 
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the 
principal amount outstanding.  

 
The Group has made an irrevocable election to present in other 
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value of equity 
investments not held for trading.  
 

(iv) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss  
Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is 
measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive 
income on initial recognition. 

 
(v) Impairment of financial assets  

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether a financial asset or a 
group of financial assets is impaired. Ind AS 109 requires expected credit 
losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The Group recognises 
lifetime expected losses for trade receivables that do not constitute a 
financing transaction. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are 
measured at an amount equal to 12 month expected credit losses or at an 
amount equal to lifetime expected losses, if the credit risk on the financial 
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition. 

 
(vi) Derecognition of financial assets 

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the 
cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and 
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another 
party.  

 
On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety (except for equity 
instruments designated as FVTOCI), the difference between the asset’s 
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

3.17 Financial liabilities 
 a) Financial liabilities  

Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method. 

 
b) Derecognition of financial liabilities 

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the 
Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The 
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability 



derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 

3.18 Earnings per share 
 Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the 

weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted 
earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit after tax by the weighted average 
number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the 
weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion 
of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

3.19 Cash Flow Statement 
 Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit after tax is adjusted 

for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or 
future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated 
with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows are segregated into operating, 
investing and financing activities. 

3.20 Segment reporting 
 Operating segments are identified and reported taking into account the different risks 

and returns, the organization structure and the internal reporting systems. 
3.21 Current versus non-current classification 
 The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-

current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is: 
- Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle 
- Held primarily for the purpose of trading 
- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a 
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. 
 
All other assets are classified as non-current. 
 
A liability is current when: 
 
- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle 
- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 
- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 
twelve months after the reporting period 
 
The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 
 
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and 
their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Group has identified twelve months 
as its operating cycle. 

4. Critical Accounting Judgments, Assumptions and Key Sources of Estimation 
Uncertainty 

 Inherent in the application of many of the accounting policies used in preparing the 
Financial Statements is the need for Management to make judgments, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses. 
Actual outcomes could differ from the estimates and assumptions used.  

 



Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and 
future periods are affected. 
 
Key source of judgments, assumptions and estimation uncertainty in the preparation of 
the Financial Statements which may cause a material adjustment to the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are in respect of 
impairment, useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment, employee benefit 
obligations, impairment, provision for income tax, measurement of deferred tax assets 
and contingent assets and liabilities. 

4.1 Critical judgments in applying accounting policies 
 The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (Note 

4.2), that the Management have made in the process of applying the Company's 
accounting policies and that have the significant effect on the amounts recognized in the 
Financial Statements. 

 (a) Determination of functional currency 
Currency of the primary economic environment in which the Group operates 
(“the functional currency”) is Indian Rupee (`) in which the Group primarily 
generates and expends cash. Accordingly, the Management has assessed its 
functional currency to be Indian Rupee (`). 

 
 (b) Classification of investment  

Judgement is required in assessing the level of control obtained in a 
transaction to acquire an interest in another entity; depending upon the facts 
and circumstances in each case, the Group may obtain control, joint control or 
significant influence over the entity or arrangement. Transactions which give 
the Group control of a business are business combinations. If the Group 
obtains joint control of an arrangement, judgement is also required to assess 
whether the arrangement is a joint operation or a joint venture. If the Group 
has neither control nor joint control, it may be in a position to exercise 
significant influence over the entity, which is then classified as an associate. 

4.2 Assumptions and key sources of estimation uncertainty 
 Information about estimates and assumptions that have the significant effect on 

recognition and measurement of assets, liabilities, income and expenses is provided 
below. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

 (a) Impairment of assets 
Determination as to whether, and by how much, asset is impaired involves 
Management estimates on uncertain matters such as future prices, the effects of 
inflation on operating expenses, discount rate etc.  

 
(b) Litigations 

From time to time, the Group is subject to legal proceedings and the ultimate 
outcome of each being always subject to many uncertainties inherent in 
litigation. A provision for litigation is made when it is considered probable that 
a payment will be made and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. 
Significant judgment is made when evaluating, among other factors, the 
probability of unfavourable outcome and the liability to make a reasonable 
estimate of the amount of potential loss. Provision for litigations are reviewed at 
the end of each accounting period and revisions made for the changes in facts 
and circumstances. 

 



KRIDHAN INFRA LIMITED
Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024
(All amounts in Rupees Lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Statement of Changes in Equity

i) Equity Share Capital
(All amounts in Rupees Lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Amount
Balance as at 31st March, 2022                      1,896 
Changes in equity share capital during the year                             -   
Balance as at 31st March, 2023                      1,896 
Changes in equity share capital during the year -                          
Balance as at 31st March, 2024 1,896                     

ii) Other Equity (All amounts in Rupees Lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Securities 
Premium

Capital reserve
Retained 
earnings

Total

Balance as at March 31, 2022 25,891.76              606.25                -59,620.66            -33,122.65             
Addition during the year -                          -                       -6,433.61              -6,433.61               
Add: Impairment reversal on consolidation of Associate -                          -                       1,346.05               1,346.05                 
Balance as at March 31, 2023 25,891.76              606.25                -64,708.22            -38,210.21             
Addition during the year -                          -                       -20,912.30            -20,912.30             
Add: Impairment reversal on consolidation of Associate -                          -                       21,691.26             21,691.26               
Balance as at March 31, 2024 25,891.76              606.25                -63,929.26            -37,431.25             

Particulars
Reserves and Surplus



Kridhan Infra Limited
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024

5 Property, Plant and Equipment
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Land & Land 
Development

Factory 
Building

Plant & 
Machineries

Computer &  
Accessories

Furnitures & 
Fixtures

Vehicles Total

Gross Carrying Amount :
Deemed Cost
Balance as at March 31, 2022 1,475.49           87.62               1,393.33         73.08               49.45               70.91               3,149.87         

Add: Additions -                     -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Less: Disposals / Impairment -                     -                   244.86             -                   -                   27.49               272.35             

Balance as at March 31, 2023 1,475.49           87.62               1,148.47         73.08               49.45               43.42               2,877.52         
Add: Additions -                     -                   -                   -                   -                   4.37                 4.37                 
Less: Disposals / Impairment -                     -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Balance as at March 31, 2024 1,475.49           87.62               1,148.47         73.08               49.45               47.79               2,881.90         

Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment
Balance as at March 31, 2022 -                     55.38               873.58             68.59               43.62               61.76               1,102.93         

Add: Additions for the year -                     3.82                 43.28               0.41                 0.58                 2.55                 50.65               
Less: Disposals during the year -                     -                   -                   -                   -                   23.12               23.12               

Balance as at March 31, 2023 -                     59.21               916.86             69.01               44.20               41.19               1,130.46         
Add: Additions for the year -                     2.67                 33.61               0.24                 0.99                 1.88                 39.40               
Less: Disposals during the year -                     -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Balance as at March 31, 2024 -                     61.88               950.47             69.25               45.18               43.07               1,169.86         

Net Carrying Amount 
Balance as at March 31, 2023 1,475.49           28.41               231.61             4.08                 5.25                 2.23                 1,747.06         
Balance as at March 31, 2024 1,475.49           25.74               198.00             3.83                 4.26                 4.72                 1,712.04         

5(i) Right of Use Assets

Particulars
 As at 31st 

March 2024 
 As at 31st 

March 2023 
Opening Balance -                     63.14               
Additions                         -                         -   
Deletions                         -                  56.38 
Amortization                         -                    6.77 
Closing Balance                         -                         -   

Particulars
Tangible Assets

5.1: The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of its PPE recognised as of April 1, 2016 (transition date) measured as per the Previous GAAP and used 
that carrying value as its deemed cost as on the transition date as per Para D7AA of Ind AS 101  except for land which is being measured at fair value on the transition 
5.2: Land has been mortgaged for the purpose of availing borrowing from banks by the company.
5.3: The amounts provided in the Note are after adjustment of the assets of the subsidiaries in Singapore whose figures have not been included in the consolidated 
Balance Sheet and hence have been reduced from the assets.  



Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 
No.

Particulars
 As at 31 March 

2024 
 As at 31 March 

2023 

6 Investments
Investments in Equity Instruments of Associates

Cost / Deemed Cost 9,841.70              9,841.70              
Additions during the year
Share of profit accrued (Net) -3,471.48             -4,817.53             
Disposal and / or Impairment -6,370.22             -5,024.18             
Balance as at the year end -                        -                        
Other Investment(s)
Cost / Deemed Cost 350.00                 350.00                 
Disposal and / or Impairment 175.00                 175.00                 

175.00                 175.00                 
175.00                 175.00                 

(Refer Note No. 33 for details of associate(s))

7 Other Financial Asset  As at 31 March 
2024 

 As at 31 March 
2023 

Security Deposit 14.67                   31.78                   
Less: Impairment for doubtful receivable -7.46                    -7.46                    
Retention Deposit 87.42                   87.37                   
Less: Impairment for doubtful receivable -87.37                  -87.37                  
Fixed Deposit with Bank 1.55                      1.55                      
Advance to Supplier 44.45                   48.13                   
Less: Impairment for doubtful receivable -5.76                    -5.76                    

47.49                   68.24                   

8 Deferred Tax Asset/Deferred Tax Liability  As at 31 March 
2024 

 As at 31 March 
2023 

Component of Deferred Tax Asset
 Arising on account of: 

                      6.62                       4.80 
 Lease Liability Amortisation                           -                             -   
 Provision                           -                             -   

Component of Deferred Tax Liability

                          -                             -   
6.62                      4.80                      

9 Current Investmemts  As at 31 March 
2024 

 As at 31 March 
2023 

Unquoted, at fair value
In Debt Scheme of Mutual Funds 6.44                      6.44                      

6.44                      6.44                      
Unquoted Investments

-Union Liquid Fund Growth
No. of Units 50,000.00            50,000.00            
Cost Rs. In Lacs 5.00                      5.00                      

10 Trade Receivables  As at 31 March 
2024 

 As at 31 March 
2023 

Current :
Unsecured
Considered good 49.39                   579.38                 
Considered doubtful 1,038.20              2,314.72              

1,087.59              2,894.10              
Less: Impairment for doubtful receivable -1,038.20             -2,314.72             

49.39                   579.38                 

Particulars  Less than 6 
Months 

 6 Months to 
1 Years 

 1-2 Years  2-3 Years 
 More than 3 

Years 
 Total 

Undisputed Trade Receivable
Considered good              49.39                     -                                   -                                 -                             -                      49.39 
Which have significant increase in credit risk                     -                       -                                   -                                 -                             -                             -   

 Difference between written down value of fixed assets as per the books of accounts and Income Tax Act, 1961 

Trade Receivable Ageing As at 31 March 2024

10.1: The average credit period on sales is 30-60 days. No interest is charged during this credit period. Thereafter, interest on delayed payments is charged at SBI Base 
rate plus 4%-6% per annum compounded each quarter on the outstanding balance.
10.2: There is no single party concentration of the receivables.
 10.3: Further, based on assessemtnt made by the management, depending on the past history, management does not expect any material loss on realisation of these 
receivables.  

Investments in Mutual funds (Fair value through profit or loss)

 Timing Difference on account of difference in depreciation and Gratuity 



Credit Impaired                     -                       -                                   -                                 -                             -                             -   
Disputed Trade Receivable
Considered good                     -                       -                                   -                                 -                             -                             -   
Which have significant increase in credit risk                     -                       -                                   -                                 -                             -                             -   
Credit Impaired                     -                       -                                   -                                 -                             -                             -   
Total 49.39             -                  -                              -                            -                        49.39                   

Particulars  Less than 6 
Months 

 6 Months to 
1 Years 

 1-2 Years  2-3 Years 
 More than 3 

Years 
 Total 

Undisputed Trade Receivable
Considered good            305.09             274.29                                 -                                 -                             -                    579.38 
Which have significant increase in credit risk                     -                       -                                   -                                 -                             -                             -   
Credit Impaired                     -                       -                                   -                                 -                             -                             -   
Disputed Trade Receivable
Considered good                     -                       -                                   -                                 -                             -                             -   
Which have significant increase in credit risk                     -                       -                                   -                                 -                             -                             -   
Credit Impaired                     -                       -                                   -                                 -                             -                             -   
Total 305.09           274.29            -                              -                            -                        579.38                 

11 Cash and Bank Balance  As at 31 March 
2024 

 As at 31 March 
2023 

Balances with Banks:
 In current account 93.31                   48.95                   
 In deposit account 35.31                   24.72                   

Cash on hand 9.18                      14.00                   
137.79                 87.67                   

11(i) Other Bank Balance

   In Dividend account 3.31                      3.31                      
3.31                      3.31                      

12 Loans & Advances  As at 31 March 
2024 

 As at 31 March 
2023 

Unsecured, considered good:

To Related Parties:
Loan to Subsidiary 1,516.75              1,516.75              
Loan to Associate 94.29                   94.29                   
Dividend from Subsidiaries 25.62                   25.62                   

1,636.66              1,636.66              
Less : Provision for Impairment of receivables* 1,636.66              1,636.66              

-                        -                        
To Others:
Inter Corporate Deposits given 1,211.96              1,212.46              
Less : Provision for Doubtful debts of receivables* 1,211.96              1,212.46              

-                        -                        
Loans to Other concerns 534.84                 623.11                 
Less : Provision for Doubtful debts of receivables* 534.20                 534.20                 

0.63                      88.90                   
Staff Advances -                        2.50                      

0.63                      91.40                   
*Based on the assessment made by the company.

13 Other current assets  As at 31 March 
2024 

 As at 31 March 
2023 

Advances to Suppliers 60.56                   106.31                 
Less : Provisions for doubtful advances -11.26                  -11.26                  

49.30                   95.05                   
Advance Income Tax 36.47                   26.20                   
Balance with Government Authorities 53.41                   74.98                   
Prepaid expenses -                        0.20                      
Other Receivable 8.05                      17.73                   
Paid Towards OTS to lenders 1,037.00              -                        

1,184.23              214.17                 

14 Equity Share Capital  As at 31 March 
2024 

 As at 31 March 
2023 

Authorised Share Capital
10,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 2 each 2,000.00              2,000.00              

Issued, Subscribed & Paid up share capital
As at the beginning of the year 1,895.58              1,895.58              
Alloted during the year
Closing Equity share capital 1,895.58              1,895.58              

Trade Receivable Ageing As at 31 March 2023



14.1: Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding as at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Particulars

Balance at the beginning of the year 9,47,79,205.00   9,47,79,205.00   
 Changes during the year -                        -                        
Balance at the end of the year 9,47,79,205.00   9,47,79,205.00   

No of Shares % No of Shares %
2,62,60,160               27.71% 2,62,60,160.00   0.28                      
1,13,81,000               12.01% 1,13,81,000.00   0.12                      

70,00,000                  7.39% 70,00,000.00      0.07                      

No. of Shares held 
At the Beginning of 

the year

Sale/Transfer 
During the Year

 No. of Shares 
held At the End 

of the year 

 % Change in 
shareholding 

during
the year to total 

shares 
Equity Shares of Re.2 each held by:

1 Anil Agrawal                2,62,60,160                               -      2,62,60,160.00                           -   
2 Krishnadevi Agrawal                         50,000                               -               50,000.00                           -   
3 Krish Steel & Trading Private Limited 

(Formerly known as Kridhan Infrastructures Private 
               1,13,81,000                               -      1,13,81,000.00                           -   

4 Kridhan Petrochemicals Private Limited                   70,00,000                               -         70,00,000.00                           -   

No. of Shares held 
At the Beginning of 

the year

Sale/Transfer 
During the Year

 No. of Shares 
held At the End 

of the year 

 % Change in 
shareholding

during
the year to total 

shares 
Equity Shares of Re.2 each held by:

1 Anil Agrawal                2,62,60,160                               -      2,62,60,160.00                           -   
2 Krishnadevi Agrawal                         50,000                               -               50,000.00                           -   
3 Krish Steel & Trading Private Limited 

(Formerly known as Kridhan Infrastructures Private 
Limited)

               1,13,81,000 
                              -   

   1,13,81,000.00 
                          -   

4 Kridhan Petrochemicals Private Limited                   70,00,000                               -         70,00,000.00                           -   

15 Other Equity

(i) Securities Premium 
Opening Balance 25,892.04            25,892.04            
Additions during the year -                        -                        
Utilisation during the year -                        -                        
Closing Balance as at the year end 25,892.04            25,892.04            

(ii) Capital Reserves
Opening Balance 606.25                 606.25                 
Additions during the year -                        -                        
Utilisation during the year -                        -                        
Closing Balance as at the year end 606.25                 606.25                 

(iii) Balance in Statement of Profit and Loss / Retained Earnings
Opening Balance -64,708.49           -59,620.93           

 Add/(Less): Profit/(Loss) for the year -20,912.30           -6,433.61             
Add: Impairment reversal on consolidation of Associate             21,691.26               1,346.05 

Closing Balance as at the year end -63,929.54          -64,708.49          

-37,431.25          -38,210.20          

16 Lease Liabilities  As at 31 March 
2024 

 As at 31 March 
2023 

Current -                        -                        
Non-Current -                        -                        

-                        -                        

Details of shares held by Promoter as at 31/03/2024:

Details of shares held by Promoter as at 31/03/2023:

a) Capital Reserve represents the amount of share warrant money received which had been forfeited since the balance amount due to call of these share warrants were not 
paid
b )The subsidiary Company at Singapore viz. Readymade Steel Singapore Pte. Ltd., is under liquidation process and the step down subsidiary of the Company at Singapore viz.
K.H.Foges Pte. Ltd. is under judicial management. Hence, due to non-availability of the figures for the year ended 31st March, 2024 and for the year ended 31st March 2023,
the same have not been considered for the purpose of the consolidated financials. Accordingly, the Consolidated figures for the year ended 31st March, 2024 includes only the
Indian subsidiary’s figures . As already informed earlier, as a matter of prudence, the Company has, already impaired its investments and loans outstanding in the said
subsidiary Readymade Steel Singapore Pte. Ltd., in its standalone financials. In view of the same, there will be no material impact of the said liquidation on the financials of the
Company.

 Name of Promoter 

Name of Promoter

As at 31 March 2024

14.2: Terms / rights attached to equity shares

As at 31 March 2023

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential
amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

14.3:Shareholders holding more than 5% shares
Name of the shareholder
Anil Agarwal
Krish Steel & Trading Private Limited
Kridhan Petrochemicals Private Limited



17 Other Financial Liabilities  As at 31 March 
2024 

 As at 31 March 
2023 

Retention Payable 78.21                   78.21                   
78.21                   78.21                   

18 Provisions  As at 31 March 
2024 

 As at 31 March 
2023 

Provision for Employee Benefits:
Opening Balance as at the beginning of the year 1.91                      1.91                      
Add: Additions / (Release) during the year -                        -                        
Less: Utilised during the year -                        -                        
Closing Balance as at the year end 1.91                      1.91                      

19 Short Term Borrowing  As at 31 March 
2024 

 As at 31 March 
2023 

Secured
-From Banks
Secured Working Capital facilities from Bank 2,004.75              2,004.75              
Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowing -                        

Unsecured
-From Related Parties
Inter Corporate Deposits Taken 700.78                 -                        
Loan from Directors & relatives 39.38                   39.38                   

2,744.91              2,044.13              

20 Trade Payables  As at 31 March 
2024 

 As at 31 March 
2023 

Due to Micro and Small Enterprises 20.79                   20.79                   
Others 313.27                 354.23                 

334.06                 375.02                 

Trade Payables Ageing As at 31 March 2024
 Less than 1 

Year 
1-2 Years 2-3 Years  More than 3 

Years 
Total

(i) MSME -                  20.79                          -                            -                        20.79                   
(ii) Others 3.26                4.82                            39.90                       265.30                 313.27                 
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME -                  -                              -                            -                        -                        
(iv) Disputed dues - Others -                  -                              -                            -                        -                        

3.26                25.61                          39.90                       265.30                 334.06                 

Trade Payables Ageing As at 31 March 2023
 Less than 1 

Year 
1-2 Years 2-3 Years  More than 3 

Years 
Total

(i) MSME -                  20.79                          -                            -                        20.79                   
(ii) Others 48.64              38.61                          -                            155.41                 242.65                 
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME -                  -                              -                            -                        -                        
(iv) Disputed dues - Others 1.51                0.55                            3.52                          105.99                 111.57                 

50.45              60.75                          3.52                          261.40                 375.02                 

21 Other financial liabilities  As at 31 March 
2024 

 As at 31 March 
2023 

Payable due to Guarantees Invoked 35,421.60            36,474.99            
Advance from Customers 67.68                   65.36                   
Other Financial Liabilities 134.21                 134.21                 

35,623.48            36,674.55            

22 Other Current Liabilities  As at 31 March 
2024 

 As at 31 March 
2023 

Statutory Dues 76.05                   118.26                 
76.05                   118.26                 

Total

*Secured by Equitable Mortgage of the Factory Land & Building Situated at Village Vanwathe, Khopli, Taluka, Khalapur, Raigad, Maharashtra. Further, secured by charge on
Plant & Machineries of the company. Also secured by office premises of the Director. 

Total

Particulars

Particulars



Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

23

Particulars
 Year ended 
31-03-2024 

 Year ended 
31-03-2023 

Sale of Goods & Services 84.50              562.20             
Other Operating Income -                   -                   

Total 84.50        562.20      

24

Particulars
 Year ended 
31-03-2024 

 Year ended 
31-03-2023 

Interest Income 15.51              3.66                 
Other Income 74.22              83.72               

Total 89.73              87.38               

25 PURCHASES OF STOCK IN TRADE

Particulars
 Year ended 
31-03-2024 

 Year ended 
31-03-2023 

Purchases -                   355.06             

Total -                   355.06             

26 Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and traded goods

Particulars
 Year ended 
31-03-2024 

 Year ended 
31-03-2023 

Inventory at the beginning of the year -                   -                   
Less:Inventory at the end of the year -                   -                   

Total -                   -                   

27 EMPLOYEE COSTS

Particulars
 Year ended 
31-03-2024 

 Year ended 
31-03-2023 

Salaries and Wages 27.82              28.81               

Total 27.82              28.81               

28

Particulars
 Year ended 
31-03-2024 

 Year ended 
31-03-2023 

Interest Expense                  7.28                  2.54 

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

OTHER INCOME

FINANCE COSTS



Bank Charges 0.06          0.38           

Total 7.35                 2.92                 



29 OTHER EXPENSES

Particulars
 Year ended 
31-03-2024 

 Year ended 
31-03-2023 

Rent Rates and Taxes 0.63                 123.04             
Legal & Professional Fees 30.77              25.89               
Profit (Loss) on Sale of Assets 11.63              -                   
Electricity Charges -                   0.89                 
Audit Fees 2.25                 2.70                 
Office Expenses 0.84                 0.52                 
Telephone & Internet Charges 0.28                 0.92                 
Travelling & Conveyance 3.94                 8.05                 
Miscellaneous Expenses -11.86             12.30               

Total 38.47              174.32             

30

Particulars
 Year ended 
31-03-2024 

 Year ended 
31-03-2023 

Corporate Guarantee Invoked -                   3,292.48         

Impairment of Investment,Loans and advances and other recoverables*            -897.74          2,006.08 
Impairment of Investment in Associate 3,471.48         
Impairment of Plant,Property & Equipment (Refer Note no 50) -                   244.86             

Total 2,573.74         5,543.43         

*As in earlier year, the management has decided to write-off some old receivables and Investments which
are not being collected despite considerable time lag and follow up. Such write-off have been shown under
exceptional items.

EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS*



KRIDHAN INFRA LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Contd.)
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

31  Financial instruments

A Calculation of fair values

i

ii

Financial Assets and Liabilities
The accounting classification  of each category  of financial instruments, and their carrying amounts are set out as below:
a. Financial Assets

FVOCI (Equity 
instruments)

FVOCI (Other 
instruments)

FVTPL
Instruments 

carried at 
amortized cost

Total Fair 
Value

Total Carrying 
Value

As at 31st March, 2024
(i)     Investments -                    -                    6.44                  175.00             175.00             175.00             
(ii)   Other financial assets -                    -                    -                    47.49                47.49                47.49                
(iii)  Trade receivables -                    -                    -                    49.39                49.39                49.39                
(iv)   Cash and cash equivalents -                    -                    -                    137.79             137.79             137.79             
(v)    Other Balances with Banks -                    -                    -                    3.31                  3.31                  3.31                  
Total -                    -                    6.44                  412.99             419.43             419.43             

As at 31st March, 2023
(i)     Investments -                    -                    6.44                  175.00             1,162.00          1,162.00          
(ii)   Other financial assets -                    -                    -                    68.24                68.24                68.24                
(iii)  Trade receivables -                    -                    -                    579.38             579.38             579.38             
(iv)   Cash and cash equivalents -                    -                    -                    87.67                87.67                87.67                
(v)    Other Balances with Banks -                    -                    -                    3.31                  3.31                  3.31                  
Total -                    -                    6.44                  913.60             1,900.60          1,900.60          

b. Financial Liabilities

Particulars
Fair value 

through profit 
& loss

At amortized 
cost*

Total carrying 
amount

Total Fair 
Value

As at 31st March, 2024
         (i)  Borrowings -                    2,745                2,745                2,745                
         (ii) Other  financial liabilities -                    35,623             35,623             35,623             
         (ii) Trade payables -                    334                   334                   334                   
Total -                    38,702             38,702             38,702             

As at 31st March, 2023
         (i)  Borrowings -                    2,044                2,044                2,044                
         (ii) Other  financial liabilities -                    36,675             36,675             36,675             
         (ii) Trade payables -                    375                   375                   375                   
Total -                    39,094             39,094             39,094             

*The carrying value and fair value approximation, if any.

c. Fair value hierarchy
The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and/or disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation techniques:

The categories used are as follows:

As at 31st March, 2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets at Fair Value

The below table summarises the categories of financial assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023  measured at fair value: 

The details of significant accounting policies, including criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenditure are
recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed below and Note 3.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values of financial 

The fair value of the long-term borrowings carrying floating-rate of interest is not impacted due to interest rate changes and will not be significantly different
from their carrying amounts as there is no significant change in the under-lying credit risk of the Group (since the date of inception of the loans).
Cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, investments in term deposits, other financial assets, trade payables, and other financial liabilities have fair values
that approximate to their carrying amounts due to their short-term nature.

Instruments carried at fair value

• Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of
observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

 (All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless 
otherwise stated) 

• Level 1: It includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices and the mutual funds are measured using the closing Net Asset Value (NAV).

• Level 3:  inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).



Investments in Equity and Preference Shares -                    -                    175.00             175.00             
Investment in Mutual Funds 6.44                  -                    -                    6.44                  

As at 31st March, 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets at Fair Value

Investments in Equity and Preference Shares -                    -                    175.00             175.00             
Investment in Mutual Funds 6.44                  -                    -                    6.44                  
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32 Details of Investments in Associates made by the company

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Unquoted, Fully Paid up

Vijay Nirman Company Pvt Ltd
All types of civil 

projects
India 41.47% 41.47%

Face Value - Rs. 10 
Investments in Equity Instruments (at cost) (in Rs.)*                          9,842                          9,842 
*Above Investments have been Fully impaired(Partially impaired in PY)

33 Capital management

Amount in ₹ Lakhs
 Particulars  March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023 
Borrowings (Note 16 & Note 21) 2,744.91                     2,044.13                    
Less: cash and cash equivalents (Note 11) 137.79                         87.67                         
Less: Other Bank Balances (Note 11i) 3.31                             3.31                            
Net debt                      2,603.80                     1,953.15 

Total Equity                   -35,535.67                 -36,314.62 
Gearing ratio (%)                             -7.33                           -5.38 

For the purpose of the Group's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the
equity  holders of the parent / group. The primary objective  of the Group's capital  management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Group's policy is to keep optimum gearing ratio. The
Group includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents, excluding discontinued
operations.

Name of Associate Principal activity

Place of 
incorporation and 
principal place of 

business

Proportion of ownership interest/ voting rights held by 
the Company

As at March 31, 
2024

As at March 31, 
2023



KRIDHAN INFRA LIMITED

(All amounts in Rupees Lakh, unless otherwise stated)
34 Financial risk management objectives and policies

A) Credit Risk

i)   Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business,
ii)  Actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the counterparty,

The Group considers whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting
period. It considers available reasonable and supportive forward-looking information.

A default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails to make payments as per contract. This definition of default is
determined by considering the business environment in which entity operates and other macro-economic factors.
The Group measures the expected credit loss of trade receivables from individual customers based on historical trend, industry
practices and the business environment in which the entity operates. Loss rates are based on actual credit loss experience and
past trends. Based on the historical data, no additional provision has been considered necessary in respect of trade
receivables since the management has taken suitable measures to recover the said dues and is hopeful of recovery in due
course of time. 

Macroeconomic information (such as regulatory changes, market interest rate or growth rates) are also considered as part of
the internal credit management system.

iv) Significant changes in the value of the collateral supporting the obligation or in the quality of the third-party guarantees or 
credit enhancements.
Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectations of recovery. Where loans or receivables have been
written off, the Group continues engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries
are made, these are recognized in statement of profit & loss.
For other financial assets, the Group assesses and manages credit risk based on internal control and credit management
system. 
The finance function consists of a separate team who assess and maintain an internal credit management system. Internal
credit control and management is performed on a Group basis for each class of financial instruments with different
characteristics.

In performing its operating, investing and financing activities, the Group is exposed to the
 -Credit risk; 
-Market Risk;
-Interest Rate;
-Liquidity risk

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Contd.)

The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate
risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed
regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group’s activities.

The Board of Directors of the Parent Company has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s
risk management framework.

Credit risk arises from the possibility that the value of receivables or other financial assets of the Group may be impaired
because counterparties cannot meet their payment or other performance obligations.

To manage credit risks from trade receivables other than Related Party, the credit managers from Order to Cash department of
the Group regularly analyse customer’s receivables, overdue and payment behaviours. Some of these receivables are
collateralised and the same is used according to conditions. These could include advance payments, security deposits, post-
dated cheques etc. Credit limits for this trade receivables are evaluated and set in line with Group's internal guidelines. 
There is no significant concentration of default risk.
Credit risks from financial transactions are managed independently by Finance department. For banks and financial
institutions, the Group has policies and operating guidelines in place to ensure that financial instrument transactions are only
entered into with high quality banks and financial institutions. The Group had no other financial instrument that represents a
significant concentration of credit risk. 
The Group considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis through out each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase
in credit risk the Group compares the risk of default occurring on asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the
date of initial recognition. It considers reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information such as:

iii) Financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the counterparty’s ability to meet its 
obligations,



Credit risk on Financial Assets

B)Market Risk

'Carrying amount of Financial Assets and Liabilities:
Financial assets (carried at amortised cost) :

 March 31, 
2024 

 March 31, 
2023 

Loans                    0.63                  91.40 
Trade receivable                  49.39                579.38 
Cash and cash equivalents                137.79                  87.67 
Other Balances with Banks                    3.31                    3.31 
Other Financial Assets                  47.49                  68.24 
At end of the period                238.62                830.00 

Financial liabilities carried  at amortised cost
Borrowings            2,744.91            2,044.13 
Trade payables                334.06                375.02 
Lease Liabilities                        -                          -   
Other financial liabilities          35,701.69          36,752.77 
At end of the period          38,780.66          39,171.92 

C)Interest Rate Risk

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

The sensitivity analysis have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of fixed to floating interest
rates of the debt and derivatives and the proportion of financial instruments in foreign currencies are all constant and in place
at  March 31, 2024

The following assumptions  have been made in calculating the sensitivity analyses:
The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based
on the financial  assets and financial  liabilities held at March 31,2024 and March 31, 2023.

Particular

The Group maintains exposure in cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks, investments, and other financial assets.
Individual risk limits are set for each counter-party based on financial position, credit rating and past experience. 
Credit limits and concentration of exposures are actively monitored by the Management of the Group. 
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets. 
Additionally, considering the COVID 19 situation, the Group has also assessed the performance and recoverability of trade
receivables. The Group believes that the current value of trade receivables reflects the fair value/ recoverable values. 

The Group is primarily engaged in the business of trading in Iron and Steel. Payments by it are typically not secured by any
form of credit support such as letters of credit, performance guarantees or escrow arrangements. Credit risk is the risk that
counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to
credit risk from its operating activities and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks, foreign exchange
transactions and other financial  instruments.
Financial assets that are potentially subject to concentrations of credit risk and failures by counter-parties to discharge their
obligations in full or in a timely manner consist principally of Trade Receivables, Loans and Advances and other assets. Credit
risk on cash balances with Bank are limited because the counterparties are entities with acceptable credit ratings. The
exposure to credit risk for trade receivable is low as it mainly consists of customers who are assessed by the management and
the collection is received on timely basis within the credit period which is about 60 to 90 days. 
The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the Balance Sheet at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 
is the carrying amounts.
The average credit period taken to settle trade payables is about 30 to 90 days. The other payables are with short-term 
durations. The carrying amounts are assumed to be a reasonable approximation of fair value.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity
price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, FVTOCI
investments and derivative financial instruments.
The following table summaries the carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities recorded at the end of the period by
categories:



Amount in ₹ Lakhs
 March 31, 

2024 
 March 31, 

2023 
Financial Assets
Interest bearing

  - Fixed interest rate
Other bank balances -                     -                     
Others -                     -                     
Loans -                     -                     

  - floating interest rate -                     -                     

Non interest bearing
Loans 0.63                   91.40                 
Trade receivable 49.39                 579.38               
Cash and cash equivalent                137.79                  87.67 
Other Balances with Bank                    3.31                    3.31 
Other Financial Assets                  47.49                  68.24 

Financial Liabilities
Interest bearing

 - floating interest rate
Borrowings 2,004.75           2,004.75           

Non interest bearing
Borrowings 39.38                 39.38                 
Trade and other payables 334.06               375.02               
Other financial liabilities 35,623.48         36,674.55         

Interest rate sensitivity

 March 31, 
2024 

 March 31, 
2023 

Increase in basis points
        '- Basis points 50.0                   50.0                   
Effect on profit before tax
        '- INR in Lakhs -10.0                  -10.0                  
Decrease in basis points
       '- Basis points 50.0                   50.0                   
Effect on profit before tax
        '- INR in Lakhs 10.0                   10.0                   

D)'Liquidity risk

The Group does not operate in an industry that requires intense capital and hence the exposure to interest rate risk is
reasonably moderate. The major component of the interest charge for the group is denominated in variable risk instruments
which are basically in the form of loan from banks and FI's. The details of the borrowings of the group is given in the respective
notes on borrowings. 

The interest rate risk exposure is mainly from changes in fixed and floating interest rates. The interest rate are disclosed in the
respective notes to the financial statement of the group. The following table analyse the breakdown of the financial assets and
liabilities by type of interest rate:  

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and
borrowings affected, after excluding the credit exposure for which interest rate swap has been taken and hence the interest
rate is fixed. With all other variables are held constant, the Group's profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating
rate borrowings, as follows:



Maturities of financial liabilities

Maturity analysis of significant financial liabilities

Upto 1 year
More than 1 

year
Total Carrying 

Value
Rs. Rs. Rs.

Year ended 31 March, 2024
Borrowings 2,744.91           -                     2,744.91           
Other financial liabilities 35,701.69         -                     35,701.69         
Trade and other payables 334.06               -                     334.06               

38,780.66         -                     38,780.66         
Year ended 31 March, 2023
Borrowings 2,044.13           -                     2,044.13           
Other financial liabilities 36,752.77         -                     36,752.77         
Trade and other payables 375.02               -                     375.02               

39,171.92         -                     39,171.92         

Particulars

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without
incurring unacceptable losses. The Group's objective is to, at all times maintain optimum levels of  liquidity to meet its cash and
collateral requirements. The Group closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system. It
maintains adequate sources of financing including debt and overdraft from banks at an optimised cost.
The Group;s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its
liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking
damage to the Group's reputation. 

Due to the dynamic nature of underlying businesses, the Group maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under
committed credit lines. 

Management monitors rolling forecast of Group's liquidity position (comprising the undrawn borrowing facilities below) and
cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. In addition, the company’s liquidity management policy
involves projecting cash flows in major currencies and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet these,
monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal and external regulatory requirements and maintaining debt financing
plans. 

The tables below analyse the Group's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities
for:
All non-derivative financial liabilities, and the amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

Contractual Cash Flows
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35        Related Party Statement

a) 

Sr. No. Relationship
1 KMP 
2 KMP 
3 Relative of KMP
4 KMP interested concern
5 KMP interested concern
6 KMP interested concern
7 Subsidiary Company
8 Step down Subsidiary Company
9 Subsidiary Company

10 Associate Company
11 Related to Associate Company

b) 

Sr. No. Relationship Nature of Transaction
Volume of Transaction 

during the period 01-04-
23 to 31-03-24

Amount 
outstanding as 

on 31-03-24

Shares Alloted 
CY Nil
PY Nil

CY 525
PY 525

Loan taken/ (Repayment) (Net) 
CY Nil
PY Nil

CY 30 
PY 30  

2 Relative of KMP Loan taken/ (Repayment) (Net)
CY NIL
PY NIL

CY 10
PY 10

4 KMP interested concern Loan taken & Interest on loan
CY NIL
PY NIL

CY Nil
PY Nil

5 KMP interested concern Sales
CY NIL
PY NIL

CY Nil
PY Nil

6 KMP interested concern
Allotment of 
Shares

CY Nil
PY Nil

CY 140
PY 140

7 KMP Shares Alloted 
CY Nil 
PY Nil

CY 1
PY 1

8 Subsidiary Company Loan Repayment
CY 182
PY 32 

CY 882 ^
PY 1,064^ 

9 Subsidiary Company Investment made*
CY Nil
PY Nil 

CY 93^
PY 93^

10 Subsidiary Company Investment made
CY Nil 
PY Nil

CY 11,176^
PY 11,176^

11 Subsidiary Company
Loan Given and interest on 
loan(net)

CY Nil 
PY Nil

CY 1,517^
PY1,517^

12 Subsidiary Company Dividend Income
CY Nil
PY Nil

CY 26^
PY 26^

13 Associates Company Investment made in Equity #
 CY Nil
PY Nil 

 CY 9,841^
PY 9,841^ 

14 Associates Company Working Capital Advance
 CY Nil
PY Nil 

CY 94^
PY 94^

15 Associates Company Sales/ Receipts (net)**
CY 255

PY 5  
CY 17^

PY 272^ 

16 KMP of Associate Company Advance
 CY Nil
PY Nil 

CY 175## 
PY 175##

CY:Current Year ; PY : Previous Year
** Includes late payment charges
# Represents the aggregate of amount paid and value of shares alloted to the associate company and its shareholders
Previous years' figures are given in bracket
^The said investment, loan & dividend receivable have been fully impaired.
##The said investment & loan and advances have been partially impaired.
PLS INCLUDE ANY TRANSACTION WITH 
SGP RPT- RMS added

S Vijay Kumar

Readymade Steel Singapore PTE Limited 

Readymade Steel Singapore PTE Limited 

Vijay Nirman Company Private Limited.

Vijay Nirman Company Private Limited.

Vijay Nirman Company Private Limited.

Readymade Steel Singapore PTE Limited 

Readymade Steel Singapore PTE Ltd 

Kridhan Petrochemicals Private Limited
K.H.F.Pte Singapore Ltd.
Krish Steel & Trading Private Limited.(Formerly known as 
Kridhan Infrasolutions Private Limited
KH Foges India Private Limited.

Krish Steel & Trading Private Limited. (Formerly known as 
Kridhan Infrastructures Private Limited)

 CY Nil
PY Nil

CY 228
PY 228

Krishna Devi Agrawal 

Kridhan Infrasolutions Private Limited

S Vijay Kumar

Transactions with related party (ies) and balances thereof

Name of the Party

Krish Steel & Trading Private Limited. (Formerly known as 
Kridhan Infrastructures Private Limited)

KMP interested concern Shares Alloted 

Kridhan Infrasolutions Private Limited

Nikki Agrawal (Prop. of Krishna Trading)

Krish Steel & Trading Private Limited. (Formerly known as 
Kridhan Infrastructures Private Limited)

Kridhan Petrochemicals Private Limited

Names of the Related Parties & relationship

Name of the Party
Anil Agrawal 
Krishna Devi Agrawal 

3

Anil Agrawal KMP 1

Vijay Nirman Company Private Limited.

Nikki Agrawal (Prop. of Krishna Trading)
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36 Earnings per Share (EPS)
The Computation of EPS is set out below :

For the year 
ended 31st 
March 2024

For the year 
ended 31st 
March 2023

Basic & Diluted Basic & Diluted

-20,912.30           -6,433.61             

9,47,79,205.00   9,47,79,205.00   
-                        -                        

9,47,79,205.00   9,47,79,205.00   
9,47,79,205.00   9,47,79,205.00   
9,47,79,205.00   9,47,79,205.00   

2.00                      2.00                      
-22.06                  -6.79                     
-22.06                  -6.79                     

37

38 Leases

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Opening Balance -                        63.14                    
Additions -                        -                        
Deletions -                        56.38                    
Amortisation -                        6.77                      
Closing Balance -                        -                        

39 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
17,732                  17,732                  

40

41 Segment Reporting 

The current assets, loans and advances have the values at least equal to the amount at which they are stated in the Balance sheet on their
realisation in ordinary course of business. Provisions for all known liabilities are adequate and not in excess of the amount reasonably 

The Group operates in a single business segment but there are two geographical segments but since the figures for Singapore subsidiaries are
not available, the segment reporting is not submitted.

a) Income tax and VAT liabilities in respect of pending / ongoing assessments
b) The Holding company has earlier received notices of demand from Office of Income Tax for Rs. 2.18
Lakhs for the A.Y 18-19 and for Rs. 636.53 Lakhs for AY. 2012-13 and from Office of Sales Tax for Rs.
1329.63 Lakhs for payment of tax and other dues for which it has filed / represented at appropriate forums
and are pending at these forums. Based on the progress made and as per the best estimates made by the
company, considering that the company has already applied under Amnesty scheme and its application has
been approved, the company will not be required to pay any material amount in respect of the same. 

Not Ascertainable

*Corporate guarantees have been given to assist subsidiaries in availing banking facilities.

 Corporate Guarantees issued to parties*

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year - Basic
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year - Diluted
Face Value (in Rs.)
Earnings per share Basic (in Rs.)
Earnings per share Diluted (in Rs.)

The Parent company has one subsidiary each in Singapore namely Readymade Steel Singapore Pte Ltd. and in India namely Kridhan
Infrasolutions Private Limited. The Parent company has made long term investment in the equity of these companies. However for the reasons
mentioned at Note no. 15, as a matter of prudence, the Parent Company has, already impaired its investments and loans outstanding in the
said subsidiary Readymade Steel Singapore Pte. Ltd in its standalone financials. In view of the same, there will be no material impact of the said
liquidation on the financials of the Group.

Amount in Rs. Lakhs

Amount in Rs. Lakhs
Particulars

Contingent liabilities not provided for:

(All amounts in Rupees Lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Total number of Equity Shares outstanding at the end of the year

Particulars

Earnings
Net Profit for the year (in Rs.)

Shares
Number of Shares at the beginning of the year 
Equity Shares alloted during the year 
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42

43

Defined Benefit Plan

Statement of profit and loss 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Net Employee benefit expenses recognised in the employee cost
Current Service Cost -                                  -                                   
Interest Cost on Obligation -                                  -                                   
Expected return on plan assets -                                  -                                   
Net Actuarial (gain)/loss recognised in the year ended March 31, 2024 -                                  -                                  
Past Service Cost -                                  -                                   

-                                  -                                  

Changes in Present value of defined benefit obligation 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

7.92                                 7.92                                 
-                                   -                                   
-                                   -                                   
-                                   -                                   
-                                   -                                   

7.92                                 7.92                                 

Principle Assumptions

Rate of Interest
Salary Growth
Withdrawal Rate

Mortality Rates
Retirment Age

44 Goodwill on Consolidation 
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Following table summarises the components of net benefit expenses recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss and amounts recognised in the
balance sheet for the gratuity plan:

The amount of Goodwill impaired during the year ended 31 Mar 2022 of Rs. 23 Lacs represents the excess amount paid on acquisition of a subsidiary.

The Consolidated Financial statements of the Group have been prepared based on the audited financials of the subsidiary in India. 

Events after reporting period

No subsequent events that would have a material impact on the financials were observed after the reporting period for which effect have not been
considered in the financial statements. As stated elsewhere in the financials, full provision towards impairment of Investments and other Loans and
Advances / receivables from the subsidiary Readymade Steel Singapore Pte Ltd., Singapore have been made in the books and provision for all
anticipated / known liabilities have been created.

Gratuity as Defined contribution benefits Scheme

The company has an unfunded defined benefit gratuity plan. The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.

Under the said Act, employee who has completed 5 years of service is entitled to specific benefit. The level of benefits provided depends upon the
strength of service of the employees and the salary at the retirement age. 

Opening Defined benefit obligation 
Current Service Cost
Interest Cost
Net Actuarial (gain)/loss recognised in the year ended March 31, 2024 less considered in earlier year
Benefits Paid / Past Service cost

58 Years

Closing Balance of Defined benefit obligation (Non Current)

6.75% Per Annum
5.50% Per Annum
1% at all ages
Indian Assured Lives (2012-14)
Ult. Mortality Rates
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(i)
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53 The Financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Directors dated May 29, 2024.
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Kridhan Infra Limited
Place: Mumbai Gautam Suri Mahdav Deshpande
Date : 29th May 2024 Managing Director Independent Director

DIN: 08180233
Hemant Agarwal Bhavesh Nagda
Company Secretary CFO

The Figures have been regrouped & re-arranged where necessary to conform to current period's classification.All figures of financial Statements has been
rounded off to nearest lakhs rupees.

The accumulated losses incurred in the current and past years have resulted in erosion of Group’s Net worth. However, the management is of the opinion that
subject to approval of settlement proposals with lender and cost reduction measures , the Group will be able to earn profit over next few years and may be in
position to repay the outstanding borrowings. Hence, the financial statements are prepared assuming that it will continue as going concern.

The Holding Company had during the year ended March 31, 2023, undertook an extensive physical verification of its fixed assets across various locations
(including its factory sites). During the course of such verification, the Holding Company have not been able to trace and identify certain assets which were
discarded from active use owing to the expiry of their useful life. Accordingly, the Holding Company have impaired such fixed assets  aggregating to Rs. 0 lacs (PY 
Rs 200 lacs) and have grouped the same under exceptional items.

The Group has not advanced or loaned to or invested in funds to any other person(s) or entity(is), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the 
understanding that the Intermediary shall:

directly or indirectly lend to or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group (Ultimate 
Beneficiaries) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

The Group has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(is), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Group shall

directly or indirectly lend to or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

The accounts of certain Banks, Loans & Advances given, Trade Receivables, Other Current Assets, Lenders’ liability, Trade Payables and Other liabilities are
subject to confirmations, reconciliations and adjustments.

There are various Legal cases filed by/ against the Holding company. Since the cases are ongoing and the management believes that they have a strong case.
The Holding Company do not foresee any material impacts on the financial statement of the Company.

The Holding Company has not provided for interest liability on its Bank borrowings for the year ended March 31, 2024 since the Holding Company have
continued to remain under NPA classification.

The consolidated financial statements also include the Group’s share of loss (net) of Rs. 18,401.58 Lakhs for the twelve months ended 31st March, 2024. The
unaudited financial information of the said associate is available upto March 31, 2024 which has been considered for the purpose of consolidated financial
statements. 

No proceeding has been initiated or pending against the group for holding any Benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988, 
as amended, and rules made thereunder.

The Group does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

The Group has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered and disclosed as income during the year in the tax 
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

The Group does not have any transactions with companies struck off.
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